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From the Director: 

This past year saw many accoinplishinents, challenges addressed 
and changes made. This annual report will highlight the span of the 
department services and the expertise o.fthe staff. From the irritat­
ing pothole that needs to be taken care of to the handling of 20,000 
toM of waste, I hope the following will be an illustration of the impact 
to the community on what services the Department provides. 

The Department's goals are to; 

Protect and prolong the life ofour assets 
Support the advancement of the. quality of .life 
Provide cost effective and efficient services 

We are proud of what we do; what we have to offer, and will continue 
tq share that with the community throughout the year. 

Every day; not only do we accomplish typical public works tasks, we 
alsq·provic;

f

e supportto other town departments, from assisting Re.c­
reation and Parks with our heavy and high reach equipment to.the 
Registrars. of Voters in the setup ofthe various. voting locations. 

In 2021, we saw the completion of the Municipal Complex, The pro­
ject, managed by the Municipal Building Committee will serve the 
Tbwn's needMar into the future. Another notable project was the 
Public Toilets at Waterford Town Beach. Public Works provided sup­
port such as tree removal, asphalt and accounting: 

Speaking of tree work; this pastyear has been hare:! on our trees. 
Public Works was not only addressing trees along our roads, we also 
assisted with removals in the Town Center; 

Next year looks Just as good as this last year. Infrastructure repairs 
and renovations, standing ready to assist in the Town Center project 
and to respond to what nature has in store us, all in a typical day of 
Public Works; 

156 

OFFICE 

CONTACTS 



2021 Public Works Annual Report 

Building new is easy, to maintain is difficult, but not impossible. 

The focus for Public Works is to maintain our Roads (asset valued at $28 million), our 

Fleet and Mobile Equipment (replacement costs of over $6 million), manage the col­

lection and disposal of solid waste and equally important, focusing on; 

* High level of Cu5tomer Service

* Excellent records management

* Compliance with Environmental Operating Permits

* Ability to respond to Emergency Management Incidents

This Annual Report provides not only general information, it provides the "how many 

or how much" of the major tasks assigned to the Department. There is also a section 

entitled 110f Special Interest" which has "Frequently Asked Questions" for Public 

Works issues. 

Funding: 

The Department is funded annually by several revenue streams. 

Figure 1 shows what was projected for the Fiscal year ending June 30, 2021. In gen­

eral, the revenue streams remains the same, with the majority of the funding from the 

general fund. 

Figure 2 represents where the budget is allocated. Note that 26% of the budget is to 

manage waste. 

Staffing: 

Figure 3 illustrated how the department is organized. Personnel are assigned to a 

division, but are moved between divisions to match the work flow. 
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Figure 1 

2021 PW Revenues 

1. Municipal Solir::I Waste

2. Bulky Waste

3. Curbside

4. Scrap Metal

5. Yard Waste

6. Carts

7. State Aid

8. General Fund
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2021 PW Budget 

1.-Administration / Clerical 

2.-Engineering 

3.-Equiprnent Maintenance 

4.-Highway 

5.-Sanitation 

6.-Snow removal 

7. -Environmental

8.-Facilities 
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Figure 3 
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HIGHWAY OPERATIONS is not just the asphalt, but 
everything within ·the ·Right of Way. 

(This budget accounts fo(largcst portion of the Public Works Annual 
Budget.) 

It is important for the residents to have well-maintained and well-lit 
roads to ensure that traffic flows as smoothly and safely as possible. 
In order to accomplish that, the Department mixes in-house work with 
contracted work to provide a cost effective delivery of services. 

Resurfacing of our toads, bridge and culvert renovations and side­
walk replacements are funded from either the Capital Improvement 
Program or the Capital non-Recurring funds that are approved sepa­
rate from the annual Public Works operating budget. 

For our '120 miles ofimproved Lown roads and 0.27 miles of unim­
proved Town roads with a replacement value of over $28 million, 

our highway operations generally consists of: 

*Pothole and pavement repairs *Dead Animal removal

*Signs and roadway markings *Sidewalk and curbing repairs

*Stre:et Lighting *Street Sweeping

*Snow & Ice response *Tree Work

*Utter Control *Vegetation Control (mowing)

:1tStorm drainage system maintenance and repairs 

It also includes the maintenance of all town bridges, all Town drain­
age pipe; catch basins, and all sidewalks including those on state 
road$. 

Highway operations personnel also provide support for other activities 
such as the Transfer Station operation; substitute drivers for the sani­
tation division, polling place set up and break down and emergency 
response. The personnel also perform the residential curbside bulky 
waste and brush collections. 
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This Division, with the use of a 65-footaerial bucket truck, maintains approximately 8,200 street 
trees, assists Recreation and Parks in maintaining their ballpark lights and maintains the Fire De­
partment's preemption devices at the major roadway intersections, so that the emergency vehi­
cles ensure safe passage through busy intersections. 

Highway operations maintains everything within the right of way (usually 50 feetwide) , see 
E:xhilJil A of our streets and all easements for drainage. 

By the numbers, we maintain: 

• 20 l:!ridge & major culverts (plus 2 bridges shared with NL)

• 33 Miles of sidewalks

,+ 3,200 stormwater catch basins 

• $$. miles ofsto.rmwater piping

• .3 traff1(;: sigrtal locations

• 3,40Otraffic�Jgns

·• 70.7 street name locations

• ;521 ·stop bars

• 4 Railroad crossing signage

• 44 Grosswalk lqcatipns

• 560,000 LF of center line markings

• 4.9 miles of guide rails (wire, rope, rail and guard posts)

• 1,900 street light units

• 8,200 street trees
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SO'RIGf!TOFVD.Y 

11-12'"1AAVEll-"'E 11-12' TRAVEL lANE 

LOAM&!IYDR 

COMP.ACTEOGRAVEllVISECOURSE -----
PLACJ���==i"J-��; UllLITl���rLm'---------

TYPICAL 2-LANE ROADWAY CROSS SECTION 

CROWNED-CURB OR BERM 
NOTTO SCALE 
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EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

This Division's skilled mechanics perform services and 
repairs for the simple $125 weed wacker to the 
$350,000 automated collection truck. 

What is funded here? 

Funded from this division are all costs (labor & parts) 
for repairs to the Public Works assigned vehicles and 
an Administration vehicles assigned to other Town De­
partments. AU other vehicles and equipment 
repairs parts are charged to the.irrespective 
departments. 
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EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE STAFF 

603WORKORDERS IN FY21 

Serviced by this. diVision: 

o Senior Service vans

o Police

o . Recreation & Parks

o Utility Commission

o Fire (admin & small trucks)

o Public Works
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Solid Waste (This budget is the second larg­
est portion of the Public Works Budget) 

(Curb$ide· collection and Transfer Station Operations) 

The best place to start this discussion is from 
where the waste is .generated, the home. Busi­
nesses, apartment complexes and condominiums 
may be a little different, but basically it follows the 
same. 

The Department collects from the curbside once a 
week for garbage (BLUE cart) and every other 
week for recyclables (GREEN cart). If you haven't 
heard from new residents who have moved into 
Waterford from the surrounding area, this color

scheme may be confusing. The color scheme is 
the reverse for all other communities. (blue for re­
cycling, green for garbage) 

soun WASTE STAFF 

�­
Ing materialsnpe•te,11)' 

� .. J?·I 
��:=.=:ncifflake 

Residents purchase a cart (s) fromthe Department. The Department delivers the 
newly purchased carts wee:kly. The Department maintains the carts by replacing the 
wheels and lids. 

For collection, we use automated side loading vehicles, dividing the town into 5 col­
lection areas (Monday-Friday). We also have a limited dumpster route that ser­
vices condominiums, public buildings and fire stations. 

Bulky waste is collected between April-October by appointment Yard waste is also 
collected curbside between April-November picking up the biodegradable paper 
bags. Appointments must be made for both of these, with some fees assigned. 

FY21 FUN FACTS 

297 Bulky Waste stops 

30 Paid Brush Stops 

1 ,4 76 Yard waste Stops 
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Now that it is on the truck. what happens next? 

The Town is a member of Southeastern Connecticut regional resources recovery 
Authority (SCRRRAor the Authority). The Authority has a long range disposal 
contractwith Wheelabr.ator, Inc. The waste on the truck is brought to the Waste to 
Energy Facility located in Lisbon, CT. in accordance with the Municipal Services 
Agreement which was si_gneo Tn October of 2019. The tipping fee or cost per ton 
has been established by the Authority at $58/ton for FY21. This tip fee has re .. 
mained stable:since 2014. The Waste to Energy Facility bills SCRRRA who then 
bills the Town. 

For single stream recycling, the Authority has also taken on this issue by including 
the disposal of recyclables in the Municipal Service Agreement. The Authority has 
a 5 year contract with WillimanJic Waste (Willimantic, CT) as the location to pro .. 
cess the recyclable$. The Authority forthe FY21 covered the processing cost 
($70/ton) for each of its member towns. For Waterford that number is close to 
$140,000 in avoided cost. Due to market changes, the Town no longer receives 
revenues from recyclables. 

Waterford Transfer Station 

The Bulky Waste Transfer Station is located at the Municipal Complex. This fa­
cility serves only the Town of Waterford residents and commercial businesses. 

The Transfer Station is open 4 days a week from April-December and 3 days 
from January-March. It accepts material for disposal. (see attached list for ac­
cepted ,materials and corresponding fees) 
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SCRRRA, as a service to its' members, provides at no cost the following services to 

the Town. Removal of: 

*Propane tanks (86)

*Flourescent Bulbs (3,594 pounds)

*Electronics (53. 72 tons)

*Batteries (3080 vehicle) (841 alkaline)

*Tires (736)

*Motor Oil (2,875 gallons)

*Freon (835units)

*Oil Filters and oily rags·

*Mattresses (1,631)

Wood Grinding and chip removal is provided to help us dispose of our yard waste. 

Regional Household Hazardous Waste Collection Days are offered to Waterford res­

idents from April-November which also include confidential paper shredding at 

each event. 

GARBAGE 

CURBSIDE 

,FY TONS 

18 7,285 

19 7,326 

20 7,510 

21 7,776 

RECYCLABLES TONNAGES 

FY TONS 

18 2,242 

19 2,171 

20 2,012 

21 1,658 

4 YEAR AVERAGE 2�021 

BY THE NUMBERS 

COMMERCIAL 
TONS TOTAL 

4,426 11,711 

5,267 12,593 

4,745 12,255 

4,834 12,610 

4 YEAR AVERAGE12,292 

CARTS IN THE TOWN OF WATERFORD 

11,570 BLUE CARTS 

8,430 GREEN CARTS 

25 LOCATIONS ARE PICKED UP EVERY WEEK BY 
OUR DUMPSTER TRUCK 
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WATERFORD TRANSFER STATION 

FEE SCHEDULE 

TIRES: FEE DETERMINED BY SIZE: 

Passenger Tires - (off rims) $ 2.00 each 

Truck Tires 7:50 x 16 & up $ 5.00 each 

Earth Moving Equipment Tires $50.00 each 

STUMPS: NOT ACCEPTED 

LOGS: > 6" in diameter $110.00/TON 

BRUSH: BY LOAD SIZE 
. ;,.,:,,...,.., .. -�,� .. 

Pickup Truck 1 Cubic Yard $5.00/Load 

Small Dump Truck 3 Cubic Yards $10.00/Load 

Small Dump Truck (1-2 axle) 3 Cubic Yards $10.00/Load 

Large Dump Truck 6 Cubic Yards $15.00/Load 

ATTENDANT Will USE JUDGEMENT ON ODD SIZE LOADS 

DEMOLITION/CONSTRUCTION DEBRIS: $110.00/TON 

Demolition Debris/Shingles/Sheetrock/Lumber, etc. 

Sofas, Stuffed Chairs, Carpets 

$5,00 Minimum Charge 

ATTENDANT Will USE JUDGEMENT ON MINIMUM CHARGE. 

$110.00/ 
MIXED LOADS TON 

APPLIANCES: $15.00/Each 

Refrigerators, Freezers, Air Conditioners, Dehumidifiers, etc. 

TRANSFER STATION DOES NOT ACCEPT 

Regular household trash, bottles, cans, newspaper and magazines (collected curbside) 

Household Hazardous Waste (Special Collections, Call 860-444-5864) 

Grass Clippings, Rubble, Stone, Concrete, Asphalt, Dirt, Stumps:, Rock&: 

NO FEE ITEMS 

Used Motor Oil, Anti-Freeze, Flourescent light Bulbs, Propane Cylinders, 

Batteries, Metal, Leaves (NO PLASTIC BAGS) 

Matress, Boxspring, Stoves, Washers, Dryers 

Electronics: Computers, Monitors, TV's, Fax Machines, Printers, Scanners, 

Adding Machines, Stereos, Speakers 
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THESE CARTS ARE TOO 

CLOSE TO THE TELE­

PHONE POLE, SO NO 

COLLECTION. 

CART CONDITIONS 

THIS IS WHAT 

HAPPENS TO THE 

GARBAGE CARTS 

WHEN HOT 

COALS ARE 

PLACED IN THEM. 

ITEMS LIKE THESE RUGS NEED TO 

60 TO THE TRANSFER STATION 

THIS RECYCLING 

Will FALL ALL 
OVER THE smEET 
INSTEAD OFTHE 

TRUCK 

PLEASE 

PLACE 

\'OUR 

CARTS 

PROPERLV 
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ADMINISTRATION DIVISION -

Br
oadly this division: 

• Manages ancJ accounts for our assets

• Manages personnel assigned to the Department

• Prepares the Capital Improvement Plan

• Plans for Emergency Management and Disaster Miti­
gation

• Incorporates sustainable practices into Public Works
practices

ADMINISTRATION 

Engineering -- The engineering function is to provide engineeriqg reviews and recommendc1tions for 
the Town. Most of this work is performed by consulting engineering firms contracted by the Town 
to perform the work. It also includes engineering services in the form of plan reviews and bond esti­
mates for Town agencies. 

Maintaining a Balanced Buc:fget -- Finding solutions, including cost-containment options, to ensure a 
balanced budget ahd that resources are ptbvided to focus on the town's priorities. 

Legislative Analysis-The division completes reviews on State and Federal legislative proposals as· 
they pertain to Public Works, providing thorough analysis of policy and financial is.sues that could 
affect the Town. 

Fiscal Analysis -- The Division reviews in detail quarterly expenditures of 108 line items. 

Efficiencies -This division worked with all Public Works divisions to continue to find efficiencies in 
our operations. 

Human Resources-Weekly payroll, training, education and accident investigation 

Purchasing - Requested approximately 99 purchase orders with the proper JustJfication for 
every purchase. 

Information Technology-- Eachdivision's needs are consolidated and presented to the IT Commit­
tee for action. 

Accounting -- Authorizing the payment of vendor and contractor invoices is a major endeavor of this 
division. Matching the "bill" to the proper account, ensuring the material has been received or the 
work completed and the invoice has the proper pricing is a continuous task. 
Approximately '200 invoices are process monthly. 

Emergency Management-'---Plan for response to weather and manmade events. 

Fuel-This D.ivision manages the fuel system for the Town. In FY21 a total of 203,157 gallons of 
fuel was purchased. 
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FY 21 CAPITAL PROJECTS 

Major repairs to our roads have moved to the forefront.after a decade of taking a back seat 
to other are'as of the infrastructure repair and replacement. Pavernentmanagementoffers 
the potential for improved road conditions with reduced maintenance cost. The goal is to 

maintain roads in .a good condition at a relatively low cost instead of allowing them to dete­
riorate to where a costly and extensive rehabilitation or reconstruction is required. 

Bloomingdale 
Road 

Gallows Lane 

Industrial Drive has very heavy traffic with the State DOT garage. on it,. so we used a thicker 
applicationtohelpthe life o

f 

this road. 

Industrial Drive 
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OF SPECIAL INTEREST 

• Our new garage was used for a Covid Vaccination Drive through clinic by
Ledgelight Health District.

• Public:: Works is responsible
for the LED street lights in
Town.

• Then� are 2,072 Street lights
in town.

• We took 71 complaints for is.,
sues with Street lights

• There, are$' lq_c::ation� throughoutthe Town, that
Public Works is responsible for the maintenance
qf traffic slgnals
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ENVIRONMENTAL COMPLIANCE 

Public Works has always secured one-time permit approvals for all of its operations and con­
struction projects, but over the past several years the Department has been assigned the custo­
dian of numerus authorizations, permits and operational compliance reporting that require contin­
uous attention, reporting and updating. 

In general, the Department must monitor, inspect and address the following areas: 

• Natural Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Permits (Clean Water Act)

Town Wide - MS4 General Permit 

• Spill Prevention Control and Countermeasures Rule

2 sites 

• Underground Storage Tank Regulations

4 Sites 

• Gas Dispensing Facilities Regulations

3 Sites 

• Solid Waste Regulations

2 sites 

• Environmental Health and Safety

Of all the permits listed above, it is the compliance with general permit for Municipal Separate 
Storm Sewer Systems (MS4) (which falls under the first bullet, Clean Water Act) that has the 
most impact on our annual budgets and the Capital Improvement Program but it is also the one 
that residents can assist the town in reaching its compliance. 

The MS4 permit mandates the Town to develop, implement and enforce best management prac­
tices (BMP's) for the six Minimum Control Measures. For the six minimum control measures, the 
Town has identified 38 Best Management Practices or tasks that must be met. One of the larg­
est impacts is that the permit requires the Town to implement a screening and monitoring pro­
gram for all outfalls that discharge to impaired waters as defined in the most recent Connecticut 
Integrated Water Quality Report. The Town must also meet certain criteria for discharges to im­
paired waters, or waters which nitrogen, phosphorus, bacteria or mercury are Stormwater Pollu­
tants of Concern, or waters which have pollution load reductions specified within the Total Maxi­
mum Daily toad 0(TMDL is the water quality implementation plan established pursuant to Sec­
tion 303 of the Clean Water Act). There are now requirements for any new discharges to both 
impaired and high quality waters. 
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This program involves 
• Inspect of retention/detention
• Samples of Stormwater
• Clean annually Catch Basins - (1,000 annually out 0(3,200 total)
• Inspection of 283 outfalls (end of pipe)
• Maintenance of58 miles of pipe.

What can a resident do to improve the health of our brooks, rivers and Long Island Sound? 
:...> Pick ·up. litter and pet waste so that is doesn'twash in the catch basins 
⇒ Minimize the use of insecficides, herbicides ancl feJtilizers
⇒ Install a rain barrel
--:>· Create a rain garden
⇒ Never Qllmp <;1nything down the catch basin
⇒ If you have a septic system, maintain it by inspections and regular pumping

INSTALL A RAIN GARDEN 
, 

, , 

Constrµct a rain garden toincrease 
your property's ability to absorb 
water and improve water quality, 
Direct roofrun--off or driveway run� 
off to. these.areas; 
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REDIRECT DOWNSPOUTS TO 

GRASS OR GARDENS 

Redirect run-off water from your 
driveway and away from the street to 
places where it can infiltrate irito the 
ground and decrease the amount of 
water thatentersstorin cjrains. 

SAVE WATER IN RAIN BARRELS 

Coilectand store water in ra,n· barrels 
for lawri and garden use. 



SNOW 

Snow Removal on: 

* 240 lane miles of roads
* 33 miles of sidewalks
* Main traffic loops of 4

schools

Use treated salt (no sand) 

• FY18-· 2,000 tons of salt

• FY19-2, 700 tons of salt

• FY20-1,542 tons- of salt

• FY 21-· 2 ,544 tons ofsalt

The snow plow drivers are called out when the police officers Who 
are working in town determine conditions are getting hazardous. 

WATERFORD SALT SHED 
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TRAINING 

Increasing the focus on training: 

Connecticut Public Works Departments are fortunate.to have the UCONN T2 Center when even 
d:uring the COVID 1Q pandemlc, virtL1l:lJtraining was being offered in many PublicWor�s disci­
plines. 

The AssJstance Center offers a Connecticut Road Master Program. From the T2 Center 
webpage "a properly maintained lo.cal road system is vital to the social, economic and environ­
mental well-being of'Connecticut's municipalities. In addition, the local road system represents 
a significant investment of public funds. Protecting and preserving this investment requires a 
force ofmunicipal personnel with sound training in the fundamentals of road maintenance man­
agement procedures and techniq1,1es. The Connecticut road Master Program provides an op­
portunity for municipal road maintenance perso.nnel to receive this specialized training. 

TheDepartrnentwiU be offering this training to our Highway personnel encouraging all to be­
come a Connecticut Road Master. 

The Center also offers other specific training in critical areas which the Department has taken 
advantage of Some examples are All AboutAsphalt, Flagger Certification, Chainsaw Safety & 
Defensive Driving for snow & Ice conditions, as well as· many others. 

T2 CENTER CAME TO THE 
PUBLIC WORKS OFFICE AND 
GAVE A FORKLIFT CLASS 
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FREQUENTLY ASKED QUESTIONS 

How do I get an additional cart? 

Each home is allowed up to 3 of each blue and green carts. Carts cost $50.00 

each and the Town will deliver them to your home once we receive payment 

Residents can mail a check in or stop at the office to make the arrangements. 

How do I report a streetlight issue? 

The Town now owns the streetlights in town. If you call the Public Works office at 

860-444-5864 we will get the company out for repair. We must have the pole

number or an address that the pole is closest to.

How do I report a pot hole? 

Calling the Public Works number at 860-444-5864 will get the pot hole repaired. 

How do I schedule a bulky waste, brush or leaf collection appointment? 

.Bulky,- Bulky appointments are scheduled between April - October. The 

appointment charge of $20.00 must be prepaid before an appointment is given. 

Brush- Brush may be scheduled as long as it is cut/bundled in 4 foot sec­

tions, manageable by one person. There is a $20. 00 charge for brush pickups. 

Leaf collection- Please call the office to leave your address so you get on 

the list for the crews to pick up the bio-degradable bags. The appointments hap­

pen between April - November. 

Call the Public Works office at 860-444-5864 for information 

How can a resident use the Transfer Station? 

The Transfer Station is open for Waterford residents. Residents will be asked to 

show ID with their address. No appointment is necessary. For those items with a 

charge, cash or checks are taken at the Transfer Station, and must be paid at the 

time of disposal. 
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Waterford Recreation & Parks CommlSSio� · 
2021 Annual Report 

Fll'TEEN ROPE FERRY ROAD 
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FY21 Annual Report 

OVERVIEW: 

Our mission to provide opportunities for activity, inclusion, and engagement is 
always at the forefront of our daily routine. It is our responsibility to inform and 
educate the public on the advantages of health, wellness, and program-specific 
options available . 

.. 
. 

. 

� 

·•· : In Fiscal year 2021, the COVID-19 Virus eliminated conventional 
programming, Community Center attendance, aquatics operations at WHS pool, 
summer concert series cancelled, playgrounds fenced off, basketball courts 
barricaded .... We obviously encountered a major obstacle with the continued 
navigation of the COVID-19 virus and the mandates and modifications surrounding 
how operations have routinely been run. 

• How did we adapt and pivot when faced with challenges?

The Community Center was closed to the public for all but two (2) months in FY'21. 
We were able to open with modifications in May 2021. This obstacle created time to 
review and enhance other operations. 

1. Recreation and Parks staff made the conversion to a new software program to
track and audit the department operations. This new change allowed our customer
service goals to be met in the way of:

a. Online registration: Participants can now use the online registration portal to
sign up for programs, submit requests, and download forms to their personal
account.

b. Credit card acceptance: A large gap was present in how we accept forms of
payment. The online registration allowed for the introduction of credit/ debit
card payments that translated to accepting them in person as well.

c. Electronically capturing schedules and field use for organizations and groups
that were able to continue with their programs in a modified capacity. The
scheduling component allows for better tracking of field use and collecting
additional data.

2. Expanding services to the park areas where operations continued.

Preparing paths and utilities to new bathrooms at Waterford Beach Park (which 
became available in July 2021) and accessible path to the waterfront attracted many 
residents to the park this year. Staffing was increased for user convenience in 
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FY21 Annual Report 

regards to information on any restrictions (masks, social distancing on the 
waterfront, etc.), parking assistance, etc. 

Trail enhancements throughout Stenger Farm Park, Barry Farm trail system, and 
the Civic Triangle were performed. Larger pathways, footbridges over difficult 
terrain, trail markers, etc. were completed to allow for increased traffic as residents 
and families gravitated towards outdoor activities that carried less 
modifications/ restrictions. 

3. Education and Development:
Staff completed educational requirements for Youth Sports Administrator, 
Supervisory Pesticide and Pesticide Applicator, Certified Park and 
Recreation Profession, etc. 
Maintainers were present at a Welding workshop performed/volunteered 
by Charles Sedell who assists in maintaining and holding events at the 
Historical Society Blacksmith Shop. 
Regional R&P Department discussions and zoom meetings 

4. During several storm events, the Community Center was made available to the
residents as a charging station, heating/ cooling refuge, etc.

• How did we connect to our audience? Retaining participants and trying to engage new
ones?

a. Zoom classes were offered to residents and notified through advertisements on
social media, town websites, etc. Yoga, story readings, etc. were offered to the
public.

b. Community outdoor events were increased to provide opportunities for those
comfortable in an outdoor setting. Scarecrow contests, sand castle building,
pop up parades, movie nights in collaboration with other town departments,
enhanced activities at the New Year's Eve fireworks show and bonfire, Civic
Triangle community holiday decorating, etc.

c. Supplied instrumental guidance to our youth sports groups in town for
applying to the state of CT for re-opening and Return To Play requirements as
made available through state health organizations and Department of
Education.

d. Continued to provide assistance to other Town departments as needed for
Food pick-up and delivery from Food Centers and donations 
Event set up for parades, park ceremonies for Veterans 
Holiday events 
Stuff The Bus 

I 
ll 

• Many sports were required to forfeit their seasons, thus reducing the need for field
maintenance and game prep/lining.
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1. Regardless of activity, field maintenance and care still follow a plan for long term
investments. All regular operations pertaining to mowing, integrated pest
management, and care were similar to previous year's hours. The reduced time in
field preparation and lining allowed for:

2 Rest period. The fields being" offline" allowed for the turf to be alleviated from 
typical wear and tear. The continued fertilization and IPM plan allowed the fields 
to rest and establish better hirf. 

3 A drain was installed at Leary Park baseball to prevent the outfield from 
historically being unplayable due to wet conditions. The work was done in-house 
and now allows for continued play with the re-direction of the water in that area. 

4 Availability to complete major town projects with in-house labor. Our maintenance 
staff was able to perform valuable hours at: 

WBP bathroom and accessible path project. 
- Civic Triangle/ Arnie Holmes Park project

5 Gardens and park enhancements. 
Major garden install along the wetlands at Jordan Park green and clearing 
throughout the Historical Society /Nevins Cottage. 

- O'Keefe Memorial at Waterford Beach Park
- Memorial trees and benches installed throughout town parks
- Quaker Hill Green clearing and plantings

Public Safety complex garden overhaul- EMS, PD, and WYFSB entrances
and walkways
Planted along the new accessible walkway to the Veterans park bathrooms

- The use of cardboard as an alternative for weed barriers have proven
successful to this point.
Our responsibility to the BOE grounds provided garden improvements to
each WHS, CLMS, QH, OSW, and GN landscape.
A watering tank/apparatus was constructed and installed to be able to tend
to all watering needs in a mobile fashion.

6 Coordination with the Town in recruiting and hiring a Maintainer I position as 
well as a promotion in house to a Maintainer III. 

7 Installed Pickle Ball lines at Waterford Beach Park and Leary Park. Two (2) courts 
can be designed within one (1) tennis court. We were able to identify and modify 
two tennis courts at Leary into four (4) Pickle Ball courts and 1 tennis court at 
Waterford Beach Park into two Pickle Ball courts. Pickle Ball is a rapidly increasing 
sport/ activity that is generating a lot of participation throughout town. 

a. The tennis courts at both Leary Park and Waterford Beach Park were also .
treated for crack repairs and new paint.

8 Complied with any OSHA regulations that required attention or updating of 
emergency plans, hazard communications, etc. 

9 Several large storm events required roadways and paths to be repaired from 
erosion, limbs and trees to be removed from parks, and relocation of equipment 
during these storm periods. 
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10 The alternative heating wood program was extended past senior citizens and 
income requirements during the virus hardship. Over 66 homes had wood

deliveries. 

• Looking Ahead:

The Recreation and Parks Commission has been diligent in financial expectations with 
a submission in FY'22 coming in- 4.7% under budgetary guidelines. The management 
of funding to accomplish department and town-wide initiatives while also focusing on 
virus and participant driven changes to programming and outdoor needs. 

In addition to properly merging finances with expectations, the following goals and 
concepts can be explored: 

1. Investigating operational savings through Eversource and D/E/F Electrical
services in updating fixtures and light systems through potential municipal grants.
Currently, the Waterford Beach Garage and Veterans softball field lighting are
submitted and being reviewed.

2. Seeking to cut costs in maintenance Fleet Management by converting to the
Ventrac system from Toro. This change should allow for several machines to
operate off of base systems and share accessories and attachments (mowing decks,
tillers, blowers, stump grinder, etc.) to improve routine efficiency and lower rental
costs. We are also expecting a drop in preventative maintenance and repairs as
current supplier is a proprietary company that requires specific parts and company
licensed representatives/ mechanics.

3. Targeting revenue opportunities at the Community Center during the week to
outside businesses looking for space with the growing remote work climate. This
will be in balance with identifying drop in use and program requirements.

4. Beginning a composting operation in hopes of reducing loam orders in the future
as well as repurposing collected leaves and appropriate debris.

5. Pursuing tennis/pickle ball and basketball court replacement with post-tension
concrete surfacing that provides a much safer environment and warranty. The post
tension concrete justification is similar to that of artificial turf fields in life
expectancy and wear and tear.

6. A focused effort on outdoor gatherings and cGmmunity event programming to
bolster awareness of offerings and opportunities as well as providing stronger
sense of community. Additional adult leagues, contests, and festivals will be
attempted.

7. Emphasis on the continuation of updating accessibility and performing any
necessary improvements at all areas. Current projects include PB entrance and the
Alice Sullivan Dog Park access.
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• Special Notes and Considerations

FY21 Annual Report 

• A monumental "Thank You" to the Utility Commission and their staff for the
instrumental assistance received in the accessible pathways and bathroom project
at Waterford Beach Park. We also have to mention the great assistance from the
Planning and Public Work departments as well for their involvement and
assistance. Alongside in-town service being provided to the project, the
department was also able to obtain grants and donations to help offset costs.
($10,000 grant received from the Christopher & Dana Reeves Foundation., $4,200
donations)

• The town has been hit with an infestation of damage from the Emerald Ash Borer.
Numerous trees have been marked and taken down with countless remaining. We
continue to work with Public Works in remedying the situation. The R&P
Commission has already begun planting trees throughout parks for replacements
and will continue these efforts to restore these damaged areas.

• A group has managed to get donations to help fund a new press box at Dedrick
field. Plans are underway and applications submitted.

• We continue to receive generous donations to the Children's playground and
bicycle helmet rodeo (held annually at Harvest Festival) project with the
Gardiner's Family Foundation.

"I wanted to thank you for all you did 
to help make the Save The River 
Kayak Regatta a terrific event." 
Save The River, Save The Hills 

"You and your excellent staff are always there to 
make sure everything runs smoothly." 
Way Hedding 
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"It is evident that they take 
tremendous pride in their 
work. They pay attention to 
detail, and have gone above 
and beyond this summer in 
extremely hot and humid 
conditions." 
Christopher Discordia, 
Principal, Quaker Hill School 
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Veterans Park bathroom walk Veterans Park plantings 

Barry Farm trail hazard Barry Farm Trail Repair 

Clearing trail heads in Civic Triangle Clearing around pond 
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New trail markers Summer Concert Series 

Stenger Farm main pathway 

Waterford Beach Park 
Mobi (Accessibility)Mat Install 
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• Statistical Reference

Revenue 

■ Beach ■ Educationmi Aquatics 

■ Fitness ■ Special Events ■ Sports

FY21 Annual Report 

11 Facility Reservations 

■ Tot Programs

A breakdown of the department revenue streams is presented. 
Due to programming restrictions put in place from COVID, there is a drastic 

difference between fiscal year revenue generated. The department was able to generate 
$89,104.87, which came in -%44 in comparison to FY'20 results of $200,250.60 

A snapshot of "typical" program operations for future comparisons: 

Programs Offered: 
Enrollments: 
Male 
Female 
Average Age 
Resident Participants 
Non-Resident Participants 
Community Center Drop-In: 
Fitness Room Participants: 
Program Efficiency 

100 
768 

261 (34%) 
507 (66%) 

29 
691 (90%) 
76 (10%) 

approx. 26,000 
2164 

100 Offered 
91 Administered 
91 % Success Rate 
90-95% Fee Based Recovery/
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• Collected Data Comparisons

Athletic field permits issued 
Number of program registrations 
Community Center Admissions (1) 
Program Fees 
Wood Orders (deliveries/ residences) 
Concerts ( #of concerts held) 
Beach Attendance 

Resident 
Non-Resident 

FY2021 

1,494* 
27** 
493 *** 
815 
87 /66**** 
0 
25,436 
17,021 
8,415 

FY21 Annual Report 

FY2020 

1,026 
3,229 
19,524 
63,933 
30/16 
9,043 (7) 
27,685 
21,594 
6,091 

*Waterford High School was not using Veterans Field duri,ng this time for softball
practices as they had their own field.
Youth Football was not using the field during this time period as they were only
allowed skill training during the season.
Lacrosse was restricted and not able to use the fields.

**Programs started up in June 2021 so this number until June 30 ,2021 there were two 
classes. Many of the summer classes started after July 1, 2021. There were no classes 
from July 2020 to June 2021. Which effects the number of registrations as well as 
program fees. 

*** The Community Center did not open to the public until May 2021. Visitors were 
allowed restricted access to the departments housed within the Community Center, 
however, all other rooms and equipment were unavailable until May 2021. This explains 
the low number from May to June 2021. 

**** The Alternative Heating Wood Program was opened up to all residents in need 
during the pandemic 

• Conclusion

The value and essential function of a Recreation and Parks department is to create and 
maintain spaces and activities that grow a greater sense of community and enhance the 
quality of life for its residents. These essential services - along with the high rate of return 
through fees - also represent a sound investment by the town. Physical inactivity is a 
serious, nationwide problem. Its scope poses a public health challenge for reducing the 
national burden of unnecessary illness and premature death. In order to fill this 
requirement, Waterford Recreation and Parks strives to ensure every 
Town park has equitable access and various points of interest for the 
public to enjoy. Accessible pathways, fishing piers, mobile beach chairs, 
trail footbridges, and more are essential to providing these services. 

Respectfully Submitted, 

Ken Hall, Chair of Recreation and Parks Commission 
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PHONE: 860-442-0553 
www.waterfordct.org 

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS ANNUAL REPORT FY 2021 

The Registrars of Voters are responsible for the administration of the election process, the annual 
canvass and the maintenance of the town's voter database. 

The annual canvass of electors was completed by the end of May 2021 as required by law. An inactive 
list of voters was generated naming those voters Who have not responded to the annual canvass. To 
continue to keep our records as accurate as possible, we do daily upkeep of adding and removing 
electors as directed by the Connecticut Voter Registration System. 

The Registrars attended virtuaily the annual conference Tn June. All necessary town meetings and most 
monthly county meetings tield in Montville were attended virtually. 

Holding a Presidential Primary and Election during the pandemic proved to be very challenging both in 
terms of finding poH workers as well as ensurints the polling places were clean and sanitized throughout 
the clay. The number of people voting by absentee ballot for the Primary increased dramaticallyto 
1,502, whereas the normal amount is only a few hundred. Jn the November Presidential Election people 
voting by absentee ballot was 4,728, and is normally around 1,200. The Primary was held August 11, 
2020 after being delayed two times, from April to June to August. The turnout percentage was 31.6%. 
The November 3, 2020 Presidential Election had a town wide. turnout percentage of 87.1%. 

The current number of voters in Waterford as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

DISTRICT 

001 

002 

003 

004 

TOWN OF WATERFORD- VOTER REGISTRATION SUMMARY 

STATE DISTRICTS - ALL 

CON : 002 - SEN: 020 - ASY: 038 - STATUS : A- ENROLLMENT : ALL 

PRECINCT DEMOCRATIC REPUBLICAN UNAFFILIATED OTHER 

00 1081 654 1549 51 

00 1107 609 1514 53 

00 1229 898 1800 51 

00 I 148 837 1454 58 

TOTAL: 4565 2998 6317 213 
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TOTAL 

3335 

3283 

3978 

3497 

14093 



This page left intentionally blank 

192 



JIJFTEBN ROPE FBRRY ROAD 
WATERFORD, CT 06385-2886 

PHONE: 860·442-0553 
www.watc.-fordcl.org 

ANNUAL REPORT OF THE WATERFORD RETIREMENT COMMISSION 

FISCAL YEAR 2020-2021 

Pursuant to Connecticut General Statutes and Waterford Code of Ordinances, the Waterford 
Retirement Commission oversees the Municipal Employees Retirement System (MERS)-a cost­
sharing, multiple-employer, public employee retirement system-as well as the Public Employees 
Retirement System (PERS), which is a defined benefit plan. 

MERS 

MERS is considered to be a part of the State of Connecticut's financial reporting entity and is included 
in the State's :financial report that may be obtained by contacting the Retirement Services Division of 
the Office of the State Comptroller by mail at 165 Capitol Ave., Hartford. CT 06106; by email to 
osc.rsd@ct.gov; or by phone at 860-702-3480. 

Under MERS, any local government authority in the State of Connecticut (e.g., towns, cities, boroughs, 
regional school districts, housing authorities, or other special districts) may elect to have one or more 
ofits departments, including elective officers, participate in the state-administered system. All eligible 
full-time employees of the Town and the Board of Education must enroll in the MERS plan. Teachers 
covered under the Connecticut State Teachers Retirement System are not eligible for the MERS. 

MERS provides for retirement benefits, as well as death and disability benefits. Plan provisions are set 
by Connecticut General Statutes. MERS membership is mandatory for all regular full-time employees 
of participating departments, except for Police and Fire hired after age 60. A member is vested after 
5 years of continuous active service during which the member is actively working and contributing to 
the MERS. Any employee who terminated prior to Oct. 1, 2001, must have 10 continuous years of 
service or 15 years total years of active service to be vested in the MERS. 

Members are entitled to an annual retirement benefit, payable monthly for life, when they reach normal 
retirement age (age 55 with 5 years of service or 15 years of non-continuous active service) OR at any 
age if they have a minimum of 25 years of total service. For members age 62 and covered by Social 
Security-or. if earlier, in receipt of an SSDA--the annual MERS retirement benefit is equal to 1.5% 
of their average final compensation not in excess of the year's breakpoint, plus 2% of their average 
final compensation in excess of the year's breakpoint, times their years of service. 

MERS retirees are eligible for annual cost-of-living adjustments payable on each July 1 following their 
retirement date. The adjustment is 60% of the annual increase in CPI-W up to 6%, plus 75% of the 
annual increase in CPI-W above 6%. The minimum annual COLA is 2.5% and the maximwn is 6%. 
Disability retirement benefits are adjusted each July 1 based upon the performance of the fund's asset, 
with a minimum COLA of 3% and a maximum of 5%. 
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Retirement trust funds can be invested in various investment pools maintained by the State of 
· Connecticut. Investments in the pooled :funds are valued at cost. No investments in any organization
represent 5% or more of net assets available for benefits.

PERS 

The Public Employees Retirement System (PERS) is a single-employer defined benefit pension plan 
(The Plan). The PERS was established and is administered by the Town and The Plan covers 
employees who retired or tel1Illnated in a vested status prior to their department's participation in the 
MERS. No contributions are required from PERS members; the Town is required to contribute the 
amounts necessary to finance the benefits for the participants in the PERS plan. The PERS is 
considered to be part of the Town of Waterford's financial reporting entity and is included in the 
Town's financial reports as the Pension Trust Fund. 

The PERS plan provides retirement, disability, and death benefits to plan members and their 
beneficiaries. The PERS plan was closed to new members at various times over the years and there 
are no longer any current employees in that plan. On June 30, 2021, PERS plan membership consisted 
of 7 retirees, disabled, and beneficiaries receiving benefits. 

Under PERS, members who retired at their normal retirement date (age 62 with 15 years of service) 
receive benefits equal to 1.5% of their final average earnings (i.e., the average of the highest 5 years of 
earnings within their last IO years) per year of service, limited to 30 years of service. Members who 
retired at their service retirement date (age 50 with 25 years of service) receive benefits equal to 2% of 
their final average earnings per year, limited to 30 years of service, until age 62. Members who retired 
at their early retirement date (age 57 with 15 years of service) could elect either to receive benefits 
accrued to that date, reduced by 0.4167% for each month prior to their normal retirement date, or to 
defer benefits until their normal retirement date with no reduction. PERS benefit provisions are 
established, and can be amended, by the RTM. 

The PERS plan has a net unfunded pension liability of$198,424 as of June 30, 2021, to be amortized 
over an 11-year period. Employer contributions of $82,000 were made for the fiscal year ended June 
30, 2021, as required by the actuarial analysis. lfit is detennined that there are any excess assets in the 
PERS plan, they may be used to fund past service costs for employees who transferred to the MERS 
pension plan. 

The Town of Waterford :financial statements for PERS are prepared using the accrual basis of 
accounting. Employer contributions are recognized as revenues in the period the contributions are due. 
Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the plan. 

OPEB 

In addition to retirement, death, and disability benefits, the Town-is required to fund other post­
employment benefits (OPEB) for eligible retirees. The Town recognizes the cost of post-employment 
healthcare in the year the employee services are received, reports the accumulated liability from prior 
years, and provides information useful in assessing demands on the Town's future cash flow. 
Recognition of the liability accumulated from prior years, commencing with the 2006 liability, is being 
phased in over 30 years. 

The July 1, 2016, Actuarial Valuation prepared in compliance with Governmental Accounting 
Standards Board (GASB) Statement 45 requirements disclosed the net cost (unfunded accrued liability) 
of OPEB healthcare as $22,530,000. As of June 30, 2020 (the most recent biennial valuation), the net 
cost of OPEB healthcare was $19,277,319. 



Although the Town funds its OPEB costs annually on a pay-as-you-go basis, GASB Statement 45 now 
requires that municipalities recognize it as an actuarial accrued liability inclusive of implicit rate 
subsidies. The GASB does not require that the Town fund the liability, only thatit disclose the liability 
on the Town's financial statements. However, beginning with fiscal year 2016, GASB Statements 74 
and 75 require that the Town report the OPEB liability on the face ofits financi::i} statements rather 
than in a note to the financial statements. If the Town did not fund the liability then each year the 
liability would increase and possibly have an adverse effect in areas such as the Town's bond rating. 

On December I, 2014, the RTM approved the establishment and funding of a trust for the purpose of 
reducing the Town's unfunded liability. The trust was established ofFeb. I, 2017; the Retirement 
Commission appointed FIA (which, following a merger, became Fiducient Advisors in 2021) as the 
trust's investment advisors and Wells Fargo as the trustee/custodian of the funds. Contributions of 
$1,160,000 were made in FY18 and again in FY19. The Retirement Commission requested $2,058,613 
for OPEB trust fund contributions for FY20, as recommended by plan advisors due to actual and 
anticipated cost increases; the amount was reduced to $758,613 during the budget hearing process. The 
Commission's FY21 request of$1,400,000 for OPEB trust fund contributions was reduced by 
$300,000 during a round ofCovid-19 pandemic-related cuts during the budget process. For FY22, 
based on the Finance Director's discovery of duplicated reporting, the Commission's proposed (and 
ultimately approved) OPEB trust fund budget request was $750,000. Data from plan advisors needed to 
establish the Commission's proposed FY23 budget for OPEB trust fund contributions to cover current­
year outlays and reduce the unfunded liability were unavailable at the time of this report. 

RECENT LEGISLATION 

Public Act 19-124, which was effective July 1, 2019, increased employee contributions to the 
MERS plan during FY20 and in each of the five subsequent fiscal years. Related reductions in the 
employer contribution rates were offset by the OSC's Retirement Services Division's decision to 
reduce the assumed investment rate of return from 8% to 7% and resulted in increased employer 
contribution rate projections for FY20 through FY25. 

Respectfully submitted, 

�4\J�4 
Susan Driscoll, Chair 
Waterford Retirement Commission November 2021 
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FIFTEEN ROPE FERRY ROAD 
WATERFORD, CT 06385-2886 

1/VATER.Fbp.b �ENIOR;SptViCESANNUAL REPORT 2011 

PHONE: 860·442·0553 
www.waterfoxdct.org 

Du ring the past fiscal year, Wefterford sawthe pc}Ssi 11g. of 2 28 sen_ior res.id ents; . Loss is diffjcy It, Loss is 
an unspoken butever j:treientpart o four Work, We:spldier blJ 1:>utfrie1td:s·are.notforgQttert This · · 
report is dedicated'fothose whoarifnolb-hgetherebutwho made ah ·1ncl'elil:>lemarkqn uswhilethey 
were here. This especially ihdudes'our former First Sejectman, Pan steward' Thj,s teport wlll afao be a 
testamentto the resiliency of out Waterford seniors who found new ways to cop nett and rema,·jn a Vital 
part of thiscommuhlty. 

Waterford senior Services is dedicated to providing h¢lp1 guidance; opportunities for socializing; travel, 
games; luncheons, exercise of both the l::)ody and mind� tra11sportati9ni Medicare coul')seling and any 
other se:rvite that makes it ea_sier to be a senior inWat�rforc!., CT, 

The last fiscal ye;;ir (July 1, 2020 to June �01 io21) was once again.operated in the midst of a pandemic, 
This el)tlre year was cond.ucted over the phone and video apps. Our in°person classes did not return to 
the community center untilJuly of 2021. Our fitnes_s;anct social interc1ction programs moved to the 
ZOOM platform. It was i:\maziAg to ·see howquiddy our sehiors were able to adapt and operate in a 
virtuaJworlcl, connecting with other$ but remainirJg safe in theirhomeS:. They truly disproved the 
common misconception thi;it all seniors are tethnophobes, Credit goes to staff who very _patiently 
guided people info this new cornmunitation platforrn1 taughtthem howto tum their carn:eras on and 
howto mute when the dog decided to have ;3, hQwling session. OuditnessJnstructprs alsq learned how 
to provide their dassesthrough ZOOM. From JUiy of 2Q�Oto Pebrt1ary of:to2t,our virtu-al fltr:ress.classes 
were provided to seniors at no charge. Atthetimevirtual cl�sseswere irnplemented,we had no idea 
how they would be received. By offering the class:esat no t:hatge, itgave everyone a ch<'tnc·e totry it out 
and see If itwould work for them. lriMarchof2021 fees returned. We he.Id a ma.iHn registration and 
were pleased te register 6·6 paying customers for fµII ZOOM classes; During our latest class registration, 
60 seniorn-opted for in-person classes and 55 senio,rs have decided to contihue on ZOOM. Hybrid 
classes may be here to stay. 
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Services and Programming: 

ZOOM Fun 1,176 

Social media also became a lifeline for remaining connected to our seniors. Waterford Senior Services 

produces a podcast called The Senior Buzz. It's listenership has grown from 7 listens to over 500. In an 

effort to keep connected and entertained at home, Senior Services offered a large array of activities. 

We conducted virtual scavenger hunts, trivia contests, a virtual hot chocolate party, and a tea party. 

There was a chance to show off your furry friends during Pet Palooza and a chance to learn about the 

care of those pets during "Pet Sawy" presented by the Connecticut Humane Society. To encourage 

mask wearing, a ZOOM craft class was presented to create a mask keeper that keeps your mask at hand 

but out of your way. We held the first Waterford Seniors Turkey Trot. This was a walk-a-thon with 

participants recording daily steps, wlth prizes for the longest distances covered. We had two activities 

that met weekly. Chatty Kathy was an opportunity for seniors to have a chance to see each other and 

discuss anything on their minds. How to battle the feelings of isolation was a popular topic. There is a

group of seniors who participate in Brain Flex. This is an hour of puzzle solving, trivia tests and general 

fun. During this past year, staff prepared weekly puzzle packets that were mailed out to the group. We 

would then meet over ZOOM to go over the puzzles and Just check in with each other. Kathy live 

streamed three sessions of "Food for Thought." One episode featured First Selectman Rob Brule 

preparing stuffed mushrooms. Donna Payne and Barbara Pitkin each provided a how-to on their 

favorite snacks. One of our Senior Citizens Commission members, Jim _Johnson, led a class on guided 

imagery. This provided great tools to lessen anxiety. We also developed an intergenerational pen pal 

program in conjunction with the Waterford Youth and Family Service Bureau. 

Senior Services Newsletter "The Loop" 6,600 distributed 

The Loop was published every two months and distributed by mail and through the four senior housing 

complexes in Waterford. The focus was on any news that was available regarding executive orders in 

town and entertainment in the form of puzzles and contests. Also, the latest tips on staying safe. 

·orive-Through Flu Shot Clinic 57 (one day) 

Waterford Senior Services hosted a drive through flu shot clinic operated by the Visiting Nurse 

Associatfon of Southeastern CT. All slots were filled. 

Meals 11,198 

Our Senior Cafe was shuttered all year. All Meals on Wheels dinners and Cafe meals were delivered. 

Over the year 10,915 meals were distributed to Waterford seniors. This is the one program that had no 

disruption during the past year. 283 other meals were delivered through a St. Patrick's Day Drive Up 
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meal, a drive up holiday luncheon, a grinder lunch delivery service and a drive-in, socially distanced, 

strawberry social with musical entertainment. 

AARP Tax Preparation 140 Returns Completed 

It was very challenging to provide this service this past year. All tax preparation had to be performed 
virtually. We worked with volunteers from AARP and the seniors to get all questions answered, all 

paperwork copied, appointments made and returns delivered. 

Covid-19 Vaccinations Scheduled 275 

This activity was very difficult. Even our tech-savvy seniors were stymied in the scheduling of 

vaccination shots. Staff were very glad to jump in and help with this process. Waterford Senior Services 
hosted a vaccine clinic for those needing a second shot. It was gratifying to know we were helping 
seniors to feel a bit more safe and protected from the more dire consequences of Covid. 

Fitness Programs 9,375 

The number of participants is not and is not meant to be representative of an unduplicated count. The 

total of 9,375 is one person participating in one Senior Services fitness class, all on ZOOM. The seniors 
made a commitment to show up for alt classes, including from March of 2021 on when we began 
charging a participation fee. Many Waterford seniors made a real commitment to health, maintaining 

balance and connection with others. The breakdown is as follows: 

Movement and Dance 

Yoga 

Strength Training 

Zumba Gold 

Tai Chi 

Transportation 

1,300 
1,200 

5,300 
325 

1,250 

2,132 

Bus transportation was our first public service to come back on line. For the first quarter of the year, 
residents were completely relying on the Medical Transportation Program from the Eastern Connecticut 

Transportation Consortium. Waterford is part of a multi-town grant to provide medical only cab rides. 
The program was changed from a limited number of rides to an unlimited number of rides during the 

pandemic. When the Waterford buses began rolling again, we could only transport 2 people max at a 
time. We were able to accommodate all requests as most seniors were leaving the house for medical 

appointments only. By the end of the fiscal year, our capacity was up to 4 people at a time and our 
ridership steadily increased,· however the free cab rides continued through June 30, 2021. 

Transportation was provided to 97 different seniors. Our top rider had 102 trips with us. 
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CHOICES/Medicare Counseling 306 

The director and assistant director of Waterford Senior Services are certified CHOICES counselors. This 

gives us the skills and knowledge to help people to wade through the oceans of information that 

suddenly comes your way when you turn 65. We also assist people during the annual enrollment period 

when changes can be made to your current coverage. All counseling sessions were held over the phone 

or on ZOOM. We met with 189 people for the annual enrollment session and assisted another 117 

people to sign up for the State of CT Dept. of Social Services' Medicare Savings Plan. This provides lower 

income seniors with help in affording full Medicare coverage. 

Information and Referral/ Application Assistance 1,480 

There are two programs that Senior Services completes the applications for. These are the TVCCA 

Energy Program and Renter's Rebate. In the last year, we completed 268 Energy applications, This 

made it possible for seniors to apply from their homes and ensured that they would have adequate heat 

throughout the winter. The other program, Renter's Rebate, is a program of the CT Office of Policy and 
Management. This program provides a cash payment to low income seniors and disabled people 18 

years or older. We processed 198 applications, all remotely. The applicants would drop the paperwork 

in the drop box at town hall and we were able to complete the application and submit without a 

signature. A very successful, no contact system. 

In addition to all that happens in the course of the day at Senior Services, we also tall< with many people 

over the phone who are looking for information and sometimes referrals to local agencies. The 

following is a breakdown of calls answered in the past year: 

Energy Issues 268 

Housing_ Questions 56 

SNAP/Food Requests 127 

Abuse/Neglect 30 

Taxes 227 

Transportation 561 

Miscellaneous 211 

Summary 

All in all, it was an extremely challenging year. Staff rose to the challenge and created a way to engage 

with a public that could not come to the community center. Calls were made, meals were delivered and 

hearts were cheered. The entire Town of Waterford came together to make sure that seniors knew that 

although isolated, they were not alone. The simple act of hopping on our bus and driving through town 

to wave at folks and see faces was incredibly uplifting. It was a reminder that they are still a part of 

Senior Services and that better days are on the horizon. This was meant to cheer up the seniors but I 

think staff got just as big a boost. Hopefully with our work to help seniors gel vaccinated we will begin 

to see a return to a more typical day at the Community Center. In-person classes have resumed and 
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some activities are now happening. While we wait for the world to return to a fully open state, we are 

grateful for the experience of learning a new way to deliver services despite not being able to engage in­

person. We do not want to helve to do this year over but are confident that if required we can make it 

work. 
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Town of Waterford Shellfish Commission 

2021 Annual Report 

Town of Waterford Shellfish Commission 
Annual Report for the 2021 Recreational Shell Fishing Season 

This season the Waterford Shellfish Commission maintained Areas A and G in Jordan Cover and 

Area C on the East side of Waterford Island also known as Bay Point. Recreational shell fishing 
permits were sold at the Town Hall and Riverside Grocery throughout the recreational shell 

fishing season. Permits were sold on a daily, monthly and seasonal rate to adapt to the needs of 
the public. Permit fees are structured to accommodate senior citizens, residents and non­
residents of the Town of Waterford. Permits are available for purchase April 1 st through 
December 31st of each season without restrictions and are good valid for the season and duration 

of time in which they are purchased. The Waterford Shellfish Commission opted to keep the 
prices of recreational shell fishing permits the same as last year for this season. Over this past 
year the Commission was able to maintain leased areas of Waterford bottomland and is currently 
working on an additional area for commercial use to continue generating incqme for the­
Commission. The Commission continues to maintain and oversee three commercial shell fishing 
leases in the Waterford waters. 

This season the Commission was able to secure forty bags of two hundred count two to three 

inch mixed oysters for restock into the recreational shell fishing areas in the month of September. 
The Commission spent a total of thirty two hundred dollars on product for restock into the 
recreational shell fishing areas for those who purchased permits to harvest during the 2021 
season. 

The Commission continues to patrol Jordan Cove utilizing the Wardens of WELSCO 

(Waterford/East Lyme Shellfish Commission) as well as the services of the members of the 
Waterford Shellfish Commission. State regulations dictate that after one and one half inches of 

rainfall the recreational shell fishing areas are to be closed until water samples are taken on the 
fifth day following the rainfall and lab results are received on the eighth day. After two inches of 

rain the recreational shell fishing areas must close for five days after which time the meat and 
water samples must be delivered to the lab for testing; this process takes eight to ten days on 
average. 

During the 2021 season there were a total of forty nine permits recreational shell fishing permits 
sold, this is a significant decrease over the one hundred and eleven permits sold during the 2020 

season. The forty nine permits sold generated $954.40 (nine hundred and fifty four dollars and 
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forty cents) in revenue for the Waterford Shellfish Commission. Additional revenue was also 
collected in the amount of one thousand four hundred fifteen dollars and ninety seven cents for a 
commercial lease of bottom land. The revenue from permit sales and lease fees helps to offset 
operating costs of the Waterford Shellfish Commission. Permit sales were significantly down 
this season and the Commission will be looking into selling a separate oysters only permits for 
the upcoming season to generate additional income for re-stock and operating expenses. It is the 
hope of the Waterford Shellfish Commission that in the future they will generate enough income 
from permit sales and leased areas that the Commission will not require funding from the Town 
of Waterford for operating costs. 

Future Goals 

The Waterford Shellfish Commission will continue to restock certified little neck and top neck 
clams as well as oysters as they are available and will continue to meet once a month to discuss 
matters pertaining to shell fishing business in the Town of Waterford and will continue to 
monitor the opening and closing of the recreational shell fishing areas in the upcoming year. The 
Commission will continue to lease bottom land to commercial harvesters and will remain active 
in participating in meetings with local and State shell fishing Commissions to maintain and 
enhance the effectiveness of the shell fishing programs throughout the State of Connecticut. 

R
µ

tfully Submitted by:

v� -��
Douglas awson, 
Chairman of the Waterford Shellfish Commission. 
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WATERFORD UTILITY COMMISSION 

;zlnnua[ �port 2021

The Waterford Utility Commission (WUC) is pleased to submit our FY21 Annual Report. We hope 

that our new report format, first implemented last year, provides the reader a more visual presenta­

tion of this past year's activities and accomplishments. 

FY2021 continued to be a challenging year. Although some conditions have improved, the effect of 

the COVID-19 still affecting our activities to some degree. Thankfully, all our staff is healthy. We 

still faced some challenges related to work coordination, staff interaction, receiving goods and ser­

vices, and other circumstances that initially hindered us from operating as normal. The many un­

knowns associated with COVID-19 on wastewater environment, made our field staff's job more chal­

lenging, however, our staff rose and continue rising to the occasion. 

This past year we directed our efforts to work on those projects that we were not able to initiate, 

work on, or complete last year. 

As our infrastructure ages, we assure our residents that our staff, commission, and town leaders are 

committed to make sure that such infrastructure is and will be well taken care. On behalf of our staff 

our appreciation goes to the Utility Commissioners, the office of the First Selectman and Board of 

Selectmen, the Board of Finance, the Representative Town Meeting, other Town of Waterford staff, 

and to our Rate and Tax payers for their support. Our staff is always available to address any con­

cerns or questions you may have regarding our operations, service and your account. Tali 

~ 

Phone: 860.444-5886 Ad<lress: 1000 Hartford Turnpike, Waterford, CT 06385,,: �" ' 

208 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 

CONNECTICUT GENERAL STATUES & WATERFORD CHARTER & CODE OF ORDINANCES 

The Waterford Utility Commission (WUC) is established under Town Charter 4.1 with power and 
duties prescribed by Special Act No. 172 of 1963 and by Chapter 103 of the Connecticut Generals 
Statues. The duties, composition, management, and other obligations and responsibilities of the 
Commission are further established under Chapter 2. 84 of the town of Waterford Code of Ordinanc­
es. The Representative Town Meeting (RTM) appoints the Utility Commission's members to four 
(4) year staggered terms. The Commission consists of five (5) dedicated volunteer residents of the
Town with appropriate vast technical, managerial, financial, and scientific backgrounds in the public
and private sector. The WUC is.the water pollution authority (WPCA) for the Town ,in accordance
with provisions of Section 7-246 of the Connecticut General Statues Annotated, as amended, and the
Connecticut General Statues pertaining to municipal utilities.

CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF ENERGY & ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION (CTDEEP) 

The Connecticut Department of Energy and Environmental Protection (CT 
DEEP) is the State agency that oversees and regulates the wastewater operations 
side. The WUC is responsible for the development of policy, the implementa­
tion of immediate, short, and long-term plans to, among other goals, protect the 
environment from pollution and wisely utilize the water resources for the enjoy­
ment of present and future generations. It implements these plans and develops 
the goals by designing, constructing, establishing policy, and maintaining sew­
ers, residential grinder pumps, and major collection pumping stations. 
Wastewater generated in Waterford, as well as East Lyme, is treated at the New 
London Piacenti Wastewater Treatment Facility according to the terms and conditions of a Tri-town 
Agreement. The bulk of the WUC activities are on the wastewater [collection] side, and it operates 
as an Enterprise Fund. The annual operations and maintenance activities are funded by the users of 
the wastewater system, not based on taxes. The WUC has a cost-based business model. Our rates 
are set based on actual operations and maintenance cost. There is no profit. 

CONNECTICUT DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC HEALTH SERVICES (CTDPHS) 

On the water side, by Inter-local Agreement, our residents are direct water 
customers of the City of New London. The WUC also has a long-term com­
mitment to the provision of a safe and reliable water supply and distribution 
infrastructure. This involvement includes, but is not limited to, the acquisi­
tion of water bearing property, the development of such water sources, the 
acquisition or securing of alternative sources, designing, constructing, main­
tain, and rehabilitating water mains, water booster pump stations, elevated 
water storage tanks, hydrants and other infrastructure necessary and indis- Connecticut Department 
pensable to maintain a safe, protected, and reliable drinking water supply. It of Public Health 

also includes the necessity to provide redundancy to our supply system. The 
CTDPHS - Drinking Water Section is the State agency that oversees the water operations side. 

This year we will continue the implementation of the comprehensive rehabilitation and retrofitting 
program for our water and wastewater infrastructure, following the 15-year capital improvements 
plan that was developed over eleven years ago with continuous revisions, and intended to insure that 
this infrastructure continues serving the Town in a safe, reliable, and efficient manner. The Utility 
Commission, its staff, together with our engineering consultants, and the Office of the First Select­
man, on a continuous basis revises the plan according to long and short term needs. 
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The Utility Commission employs a staff of 15 (full time) dedicated clerical and technical profession­
als that specialize in the various activities and skills necessary to implement and conduct the Com­
mission's [mission critical] duties and responsibilities. This staff is responsible for administration, fi­
nancial procedures and related requirements, compliance with regulatory issues, survey and data ac­
quisition, construction inspections and wastewater infrastructure operations and maintenance activi­
ties. Our field staff also assists other departments with mutual help, as conditions merit and allow. 

The administrative [and clerical] functions include the billing and collection; all water and sewers 
assessments, sewer connection fees, sewer use charges and liens; comply with regulatory mandates, 
statues, and ordinances; personnel and staffing related issues; and maintaining a database and rec­
ords of our water/wastewater infrastructure. The clerical staff is the "customer quality service" front 
of our department. 

The survey division tasks and activities include, developing and conducting some of the work and 
data gathering procedures necessary for land and easement acquisition, and some of the field work 
necessary to develop and produce topographic and planimetric maps required for the planning, de­
sign, and implementation of projects, and the maintenance of records and map files, including our 
geographical information system (GIS). Together with our field staff, the division maintain records 
of I/I evaluated areas. The survey division also provides support to other Town departments requir­
ing these services. This past year we continued the updating of all land records maps. At this time, 
besides regular surveying, Call Before You Dig (CBYD) and other field related duties, the surveying 
division employee is assisting with the data collection and Quality Control (QC) for billing purposes. 
This staff person is also assisting with the procedures associated with secondary meters. 

The construction inspector is responsible for the field inspection and cost control of all Town spon­
sored (or privately constructed with the intention of becoming public once completed) water and 
sewer facilities under construction to ensure compliance with technical standards, drawings and spec­
ifications, and contract documents. Depending on the workload, the construction inspector provides 
inspection and quality control services for DPW projects, as needed. The inspector also helps our 
wastewater tech staff on the monitoring of preventive and remedial activities at pumping stations. 

The wastewater infrastructure maintenance staff is the group responsible for the safe, reliable and ef­
ficient operation of approximately 145 miles of sewers and force mains, twenty-eight (28) wastewater 
pump stations, over 3500 manholes, and about 100 residential grinder pumps. This highly technical, 
knowledgeable, and dedicated group is available 24/7 to address any problem or any customer relat­
ed issues that may occur. Besides their normal responsibilities, this group has been instrumental in 
providing data and assisting our consultant in identifying the needs and weaknesses of our 
wastewater infrastructure during the development and updating of a comprehensive rehab and retro­
fitting capital needs plan. 

The Utility Commission is represented at the Information Technology Committee, the Emergency 
Management Committee, Safety Committee, the Connecticut Department of Public Health-Water 
Utilities Coordinating Committee, the Southeastern Connecticut Regional Wastewater Management 
Plan Development Group, and the Municipal Complex Phase II Improvements Building Committee. 
We are also working with both New London and East Lyme on providing accommodations for 
wastewater discharges originating from some of the beach communities in the Town of Old Lyme to 
discharge into the New London Wastewater Treatment Facility. 

All employees are part of an integrated Utility Commission team working on a daily operational ba­
sis under the direction of the Assistant Director, and under the general direction of the Chief Engi­
neer as the department head. This staff is continuously trained as new technologies come into place. 
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UTILITY COMMISSION 

APPOINTED COMMISSIONERS 

• Kenneth Kirkman - Chainnan

• Peter M. Green

• Raymond L. Valentini

• Rodney A. Pinkham

• Stephen J. Negri

• Robert J. Tuneski-BOF liaison

UTILITY COMMISSION 

ADMINISTRATIVE AND OFFICE STAFF 

• Neftali Soto - ChiefEngineer(Director)

• James Bartelli - Assistant Director

• Amy Windle - Office Coordinator

• Fred Lathrop - Survey Party Chief

• Diane Driscoll - Accounts Receivable Clerk

• Celeste Bushway - Secretary/Clerk

UTILITY COMMISSION WASTER WATER 

INFRASTRUCTURE MAINTENANCE STAFF 

• Edward Machinski -Assistant Construction Inspector • Patrick Dulin - Sewer Tech II

• Peter Clark - Foreman

• Eric Williams - Lead Maintenance Operator

• David Burke - Sewer Maintenance Operator

• Dean Rowe - Sewer Maintenance Operator

• Logan Gerovitz - Sewer Tech II

• Dimitri Sferrazza - Sewer Tech I

• Keith Recine - Sewer Tech I
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2021 Planning Activities 

• Continuing Implementation of the Capital Improvements Plan - this entails the continuous revi­
sion and updating of the water and wastewater capital improvements program to reflect the needs
necessary and critical to extend the useful life of the infrastructure/buildings, and to pursue the
goals and responsibilities, and continue the mission of the Utility Commission. Furthermore,
equipment needs necessary to achieve such goals are also evaluated. The retrofit of control panels
at our Gorman-Rupp pumping stations is a very crucial step to optimize our SCADA capabilities
and system reliability. Water infrastructure upgrades and improvements are also considered.

• Continuing with the cleaning of the sewer lines and the CCTV investigation of inflow and infil­
tration (I/I) water sources, the planning of necessary improvements and funding strategies for the
remaining pump stations. The utilization of the our closed circuit television (CCTV) for the in­
spections and evaluation of our sewers is providing valuable information on the condition of our
sewers and the areas that need to be prioritized for I/I control and maintenance.

213 

-INFLOW
SOURCES 

- IN
·
J=ll:

·
. :rRATION 

SOURCES 



ANNUAL REPORT 2021 

• Installing in-line grinders to shred solids discharged into the collection system; replacing air­
release valves at various force main locations; the rehab of the Old Norwich Road (ONR) pump­
ing station as the last cast-in-place station that remains to be rehabbed.

• We are also in the process of bringing the HVAC climate control system at the Evergreen Pump
Station to meet the National Fire Protection Associations Standards (NFPAS). Needed improve­
ments to the Harvey Ave. PS HVAC are also in process.

• Solicitation for the construction for the installation of a 4th pump at the Evergreen Pumping Sta­
tion took place. The Evergreen PS is our biggest station, handling flows from all Waterford, parts
of New London, East Lyme, and (in the future) parts of Old Lyme.

Typical Individual 
Grinder Pump 

Installation 

• Continued planning and implementation retrofitting of control panels for the Gorman-Rupp PS to
eliminated our dependence on proprietary equipment and algorithm, and have this component in
a more open architecture.

• Planning for the extension of the high pressure zone or the construction of a water pressure boost­
er station to improve water pressure at the Gallows La. /Bloomingdale Rd. area. The CT Dept. of
Health has requested Waterford to mitigate this deficiency. Low pressure also affects ISO rates.
Funding for this project will be included in the FY23 CIP.

• Replacement of water main pipes at the Pleasure Beach area. This program was initiated about
eleven years ago. Due to what appears to be poor quality of the pipe used at the area, a significant
number of pipe failures occurred through the years. In order correct this, a program intended for
the replacement of pipes was developed over ten years ago; however, because of other projects
having a higher priority, this program has not been fully pursued. The design phase is completed;
however, due to limited funding and lower priority of this project, funding has not been aggres­
sively pursued. The replacement of [failing] plastic services through town has a higher priority.

• The Fargo Lane tank was inspected by Lenard Engineering and its rehab (minor structural work,
and the full re-coating of the tank) is in the planning/ design stages. It was initially estimated to
cost about $950,000 to rehab this tank. Because of current events and conditions this cost may
increase. Note: full funding through ARP A was approved.
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2021 Design Activities - Water 

• The Utility Commission staff, together with Lenard Engineering, continuously reviews the
Town's current water system improvements plan. Requirements, based on potential future needs
are considered in an effort to develop a comprehensive improvements program and cost esti­
mates. The scope of this effort consists of the review and inspection of all Town water system as­
sets including water storage tanks, pressure booster pumping stations, and piping. These activities
are also intended to meet CTDPHS regulations regarding the operation and conditions of the wa­
ter infrastructure. We also coordinate with New London regarding major capital expenditures, or
repairs, triggered by CTDPHS regulations, or our Inter-local Agreement with New London.

• We continue with the implementation of a leak detection program to minimize unaccounted wa­
ter. In coordination with DPW, areas intended to be paved or rehabilitated are being given priori­
ty regarding the leak detection program. Based on their road rehab and paving schedule, we iden­
tify roads for leak detection prior to, during and after the roads are rehab or paved. This will mini­
mize the possibility of re-opening the roads if a water leak occurs. The replacement of plastic ser­
vices on roads to be scheduled to be paved is being strongly considered and recommended in or­
der to minimize the reopening of newly paved roads. These plastic services, most about forty
years old, have reached their useful life. Replacement with copper piping is strongly recommend­
ed. No major water construction activities took place during FY21.

2021 Design Activities - Wastewater Sewer System Rehabilitation 

• The Utility Commission developed [and updates as necessary] an ambitious and aggressive plan
to retrofit and rehabilitate our wastewater infrastructure. The major areas to be addressed are: ret­
rofitting and rehabilitation of the pumping stations, grounds, and the wastewater conveyance sys­
tem.

• To date, we have conducted significant I/I evaluations throughout the town. We have inspected
over 45,000 linear feet of sewer main via closed circuit video. With our CCTV equipment, this
program is being performed and implemented as discoveries are made. The construction of a grit
disposal station at Miner Lane was an integral component on the success of this program. Grit
material from the [prior to CCTV] cleaning of the pipes is stored at the grit station for later dispos­
al. Continuous trips to New Haven for the disposal of grit material was eliminated.

• During these past years, we conducted preliminary studies at the sewer area contributing flow to
the Harvey A venue Pump Station. It is the purpose of these studies to locate I/I points, to esti­
mate their contribution to the total flows sent to the New London Treatment Plant, and to elimi­
nate these points. This will reflect as a reduction on treatment costs and energy used at our pump­
ing stations, This coming year, we will proceed with more detailed evaluations. We are now,
with the help of our on-call contractors, and taking advantage of economies of scale, continue
with the rehab and those areas identified to exhibit significant I/I.

2021 Construction Activities - Wastewater Sewer System Rehabilitation 

• Among the many tasks done during this past year the following, mostly non-routine, activities are
herein listed: the replacement of the Richards Grove PS generator, roof replacement at Bolles Ct.
PS, clearing of cross-country easements, replacement of control panels at various Gorman-Rupp
stations, I/I mitigation (sealing of pipes), installation of new [OSHA compliant] wet well hatches,
repairing pipes as needed, and help other departments, as time allows.
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Water Infrastructure -The City of New London supplies water to over 7,300 Town ofWaterford
customers. The Waterford Water infrastructure is comprised of 146 miles of water mains, 3 water 
pressure booster stations, and six water storage towers. There are three water storage tanks owned by
New London that are located in Waterford. These are: Manatuck (5 million gallons), Tremont (3.25
million gallons), and Gallows Lane (3.5 million gallons). See page 13 of this report for information
and photos of water storage towers owned by Waterford.

Wastewater Infrastructure - Within the Town of Waterford, there are 145 miles of sewer pipes, 28
pumping stations, 3,500 manholes, and about 100 (town owned) individual grinder pumps.

The Utility Commission uses SCAD A (Supervisory Control and Data Acquisition) to monitor pump-
ing stations. The SCAD A map below shows the distribution of the stations throughout the Town.

Check out the following Y ouTube for a 10-minute video showing the locations of wastewater pump
stations, water booster stations, water storage tanks, and water and wastewater treatment plants. 

https:/ /www.youtube.com/watch?v=nwx Yf3ZSDY8 

Follow the Waterford Utility Commission on 
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Height Adjustment Manholes Frame and Cover (Contracted) 
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Magonk Point Road-Force Main Repair (in-house) 
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Richards Grove PS-New Generator Installation (in-house) 
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Roofing - Bolles Court PS (Contracted). Siding to be done n-house. 
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Gardiners Woods PS Paving & Hatch & Shore Road PS-Driveway Paving (Contracted) 
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Miscellaneous-Pumping Station Control Panel Rehab, Variable Frequency Drive 
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The administration, clerical, and the operation and maintenance of the sewerage system are 100% 
funded through sewer use fees (Enterprise Fund). No revenue is received from the general fund. The 
wastewater (enterprise) operating budget for FY21 was $3,659,552. 

ASSESSMENT, RENTALS, ENTERPRISE, CONNECTION FEES & OTHER REVENUES (FY21) 

In FY21 the Utility Commission collected: 

• $1,015 in water assessments, and

• $6,760 in sewer assessments

These collected assessments are forwarded to the General Fund. 

The Utility Commission also generated: 

• $3,778,677 in sewer user charges revenues (Enterprise Fund) - $3,860,008 collected.

• $123,337 from connection fees which when went into the Sewer Development and
Maintenance Fund.

• $73, 384 in rental fees which went into the WUC Water Fund.

EXPENDITURES (FY21) 

• General Fund Expenditures were $0

• Expenditures from the Enterprise Fund were $3,685,172.

• Expenditures from the Sewer Development & Maintenance Fund were $68,105.

• Expenditures from the Water Fund were $63,485.

• Expenditures from the Capital & Non-Recurring Fund were $3,570.

• Expenditures from the Capital Improvements Fund were $0*

* Note: For the Capital Improvements Fund appropriations being used for FY22 on-going capital projects.
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FINAE WASTEWATER ENTERPRISE FUND PER.E®RMAi-CE & BUDGET Fi¥2021 

7/31/20 $19;414 $72,336 
8/31/20 $29;282 $224,471 
9/30/20 �5,505 $1,067,669 
10131no $1,047,611 $1,265;660 
11/30/20 $1,061,469 $1,461,451 
12/31/20 $1,070,039 $1,574,768 
1/31/21 $2,021;715 $1,713;}13 
2/28/21 $2;079,904 $2;249,337 
3/31/21 $2,068',272 $3,:l:S8,114 
4/30/21 $2,942,492 $3,319;527 
5/31/2.1 S21952,8i3 $3,519;752 
6/30/21 $3,178,677 $3,685;172 

,,_ - l 

$658,113 
$810,222 
$916;875 

$1,665,442 
$1,891,978 
$1,945,328' 
$2,552,576 
$2,839,543 
$2,941,616 
$3,645,810 
$3;804,019 
$3;860,008 

$695,689 
$834,268 
$874,785; 

$1,636,562 
$1,777,971 
$1;819,750 
$'2,530,327 
$2,760,028 
$2,820,744 
$3,528,312 
$3,628,128 
$3,676,533 

Final Performance of Wastewater Enterprise Fund - FY 2021 
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PLANNED ACTIVITIES (FY22) 

The most important and critical priority for FY22 is the negotiation and execution of a long-term 
agreement between the Town of Waterford, Town of East Lyme and the City of New London for 
the treatment of wastewater at the Piacenti Regional Water Pollution Control Facility in New Lon­
don. The agreement was signed on October 15, 2021. 

Parallel to the above tri-town agreement, a second agreement is being negotiated between the Town 
of Waterford and the Town of East Lyme for the East Lyme use of the Waterford wastewater system 
to transport East Lyme wastewater to the Piacenti Facility in New London. 

During this (FY22) year, besides our operational and maintenance responsibilities, we are planning 
to continue the activities that in part were hindered by the current pandemic, as well as new initia­
tives directed to our commitment for a safe, efficient, and reliable infrastructure and our fiduciary 
commitment to our customers to pursue the maximum return on investment. 

• The evaluation and recommendations for the replacement of the Weimes Road and Mar­
ilyn Road pneumatic wastewater ejectors.

• Evaluation and recommendations for the replacement of domestic water plastic services.

• Continue and complete the optimization of our SCADA (telemetry) system, and migrate
pumping stations electronic programmable components into open architecture. Mostly
ARP A funded.

• The evaluation of the impact that wastewater from Old Lyme beaches would have on
our conveyance system.

• The rehab of the Old Norwich Road pumping station. ARP A funded.

• Continue our I/I mitigation program and conduct repairs, as needed.

• Identify water distribution system deficiencies related to pressure and water quality.

• Recoating of the Fargo tank. ARP A funded.

• Continue the evaluation of billing software alternatives that will satisfy our operational
and financial requirements and needs.

• At our pumping stations sites, continue our current roofs, siding, and driveways replace­
ment program.
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Waterford-East Lyme Shellfish Commission 

Annual Report -2021 

The Waterford-East Lyme Shellfish Commission (WELSCO) oversees shell fishing in the 

Niantic River. As with all other boards and commissions, 2021 continued to be challenging year 

due to the Covid 19 pandemic. The pandemic has caused issues with how WELSCO holds its 

meetings, sells permits, and :financial challenges due to the financial impacts the pandemic has 

caused both towns. Despite these challenges, WELSCO was very successful managing these 

pandemic related issues holding all of its meetings and accomplishing all of its primary 

responsibilities while also advancing other projects. 

The reclassification of the recreational shellfishing areas in 2020 actually turned out to be a 

positive as areas that were previously under-shellfished were used more. There are now 3 areas 

in the Niantic River available for recreational shell fishing; Area A which is open year-round and 

is located in the central part of the river, and Area B north and Area B south which are open 

conditionally during the colder months and is located in the southern third of the river and a 

section located south of Sandy and Horse Point. The open and closed status of each of these 

areas is overseen by DA/BA and the Ledge Light Health District. 

Recreational permits are sold by both the East Lyme and Waterford Town Halls as well 

as J & B Bait and Tackle and Mackey' s Bait and Tackle. Permits are sold under a variety of 

conditions based on duration, residency, and senior citizen status. WELSCO recently voted to 

increase the permit fees in a few categories as well as set limits to oyster harvests. These fees 

had not increased in many years. As of Oct 29, 2021, there were a total of 429 permits sold 

generating $12745 .ofrevenue for WELSCO. This is similar to the previous year. The revenue 

from permit sales helps to offset operating costs ofWELSCO. WELSCO is not authorized to 

issue commercial shell fishing permits based on state statute. WELSCO uses a private 

accounting firm to manage our financials which adds significant expense. The complexities of 

managing WELSCO's finances separate from town's accounting requires an independent 

accountant. This year, WELSCO had a financial review for both 2019 and 2020 performed by 

the private CPA firm Seward and Monde. A financial review was permitted by the town as a 

financial audit would require more in-person interactions which were limited due to the 

pandemic. 

Although clam stock in the Niantic River appears to be sustainable, WELSCO's attempt to 

purchase clam seed or adult clams to ensure our stock is maintained have been unsuccessful. 

While clam seed stock is scarce, WELSCO spent $4000 to purchase 20,000 oysters, which will 

add a second species of interest to the shell fishing public, and to attempt to increase the 

population of this environmentally beneficial shellfish species to the Niantic River. As done last 

year, the oysters were sourced from the Niantic Bay Shellfish Farm. As in 2020, WELSCO has 

made a decision this year to not purchase scallop stock as our previous efforts have not been 
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successful and the factors related to stocking success of this shellfish species are poorly 

understood and expensive. WELSCO also decided not to hold a scallop season this year as the 

native population appears to be quite low. 

WELSCO owns the Shellfish Warden boat which is used to collect water and meat samples, as 

required by the DA/BA, to allow for recreational shell fishing activities. WELSCO wardens 

collect samples not only for WELSCO out also for the Waterford Shellfish and East Lyme 

Harbor Management/Shellfish commissions. The Warden boat is one of the few municipal boats 

in the water year-round and has been used in the past by other departments in emergencies. 

Although WELSCO bills for warden's hours from the other shellfish c01mnissions, WELSCO 

pays for all other expenses for the warden boat including fuel, insurance, maintenance and 

repairs. The State regulations dictate that after 1.5 inches ofrainfall, the recreational shell 

fishing areas in the Niantic River will be closed until waler samples are tested to confirm 

bacterial levels are at acceptable levels. 

A point of concern for WELSCO in 2021 has been the condition of the Waterford town dock. 

Although the main dock is sound, the finger pier where the warden boat is docked is in disrepair 

and a potential safety hazard. Discussions regarding repairs are ongoing with town officials. 

Future Goals 

WELSCO will continue to carefully manage our clam stock through a combination of restocking 

efforts, management of native stock, and helping to mitigate man-made influences that 

negatively impact shellfish sustainability. Improving water quality is an important component of 

this and WELSCO also believes enhancing oyster populations in the Niantic River will improve 

water quality. WELSCO has always operated with a high degree of fiscal responsibility and this 

will be even more important going forward as the grants received by each town is not likely to 

increase due to the financial pressures that both towns face. WELSCO would also like to enter 

into a long-term agreement with both towns to ensure funding of the pump-out boat is shared by 

each town and WELSCO equally. 

Respectfully Submitted by: 

Peter Harris, 

Chairman of the Waterford-East Lyme Shellfish Commission. 
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FIFfEEN ROPE FERRY ROAD WATERFORD, CT 06385-2886 

December 17, 2021 

To the Honorable First Selectman, Representative Town Meeting and the Citizens 
of the Town of Waterford: 

State law requires that every general-purpose local government publish within six 
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of audited financial 
statements. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year 
ended June 30, 2021. 

Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of the 
information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of 
internal control that it has established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal 
control should not exceed anticipated benefits, the objective is to provide 
reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial statements are free 
of any material misstatements. 

CliftonLarsonAllen LLP (CLA), Certified Public Accountants, have issued an 
unqualified opinion on the Town of Waterford financial statements for the year 
ended June 30, 2021. The independent auditors' report is located at the front of 
the financial section of this report. 

Management Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent 
auditor's report and provides a narrative introduction, overview and analysis of the 
basic financial statements. The MD&A complements this letter of transmittal and 
should be read in conjunction with it. 

Profile of the Government 

The Town of Waterford separated from the City of New London, the neighboring 
urban seaport, a century and a half after European settlers arrived. Waterford was 
incorporated in 1801. Covering an area of 33.2 square miles, the Town is located 
in the southeastern region of the state. Waterford is bordered by the Towns of East 
Lyme to the west, New London, Groton and Ledyard to the east, and Montville to 
the north. It borders Long Island Sound to the south. 

The Town has a Selectmen/Board of Finance/Representative Town Meeting form of 
government. The Representative Town Meeting exercises the legislative authority 
of the Town. The Board of Selectmen is composed of three members who are 
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elected at large for four-year terms. The Representative Town Meeting is elected 
for two-year terms. The First Selectman is the head of the administrative branch of 
the Town Government and is responsible to the Representative Town Meeting for 
the administration of all affairs relating to the Town. 

The Town of Waterford provides a full range of services, including police and fire 
protection; the construction and maintenance of highways, streets and other 
infrastructure; municipal solid waste and recycling collection; recreational and 
cultural activities. Municipal water and sewer services, the Town's one business­
type activity, are provided through the Town's Utility Commission. 

By Charter, the Representative Town Meeting must hold its Town Budget Meeting 
no later than the first Monday in May each year. If, within fifteen days of the budget 
adoption no referendum is called, the budget is considered approved. The annual 
budget serves as the foundation for Town of Waterford financial planning and 
control. The budget is prepared by Department/Agency at an object level. With the 
exception of the Police, Recreation and Parks, Senior Services, Utility and Planning 
and Zoning Commissions, Board of Finance, Board of Education, Board of 
Assessment Appeals, Zoning Board of Appeals, Building Board of Appeals, 
Economic Development Commission, Flood & Erosion Control Board, Conservation 
Commission, Retirement Commission, Harbor Management Commission and Ethics 
Commission, all other Town Boards, Commissions or agencies report to the Board 
of Selectmen. The Board of Selectmen, however, reviews and recommends to the 
Board of Finance the level of appropriation for all municipal budgets with the 
exception of the Board of Education. All agencies have the authority to transfer 
within series any of the budgeted appropriations under their control. Transfers out 
of series, however, require special approval from the Board of Finance. 

Local Economy 

Waterford is unique in that its major taxpayer is a nuclear power facility. However, 
numerous, large retail sales outlets, a production/software development company, 
several assisted care facilities and numerous financial institutions provide a_good 
mix to tax base diversification. The Waterford Tax Base has a diversified tax base 
with immediate access to Routes 1, 95, 395 and 85 all of which are major 
Connecticut arteries. 

Dominion Power Facility (Millstone) 
0 Impact Analysis Completed 

0 Increase Economic development 
0 Viable Tax payer for at least ten years - Declining tax 

revenue 
0 10-Year Deal

0 $50M in updates since agreement signed in January 
2019 
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Jordan Village District 
0 Zone changes approved to support the area surrounding an 

established historic district 
0 District will focus on small businesses, small multi-family and 

mixed use projects 

Waterford Station 
0 Permitted retail development adjacent to Waterford Commons. 

Successful OSTA review. 

Economic Development Commission Master Plan 
0 Emphasis on pushing economic development 
0 Restructure of economic development department 
° Changes in zoning and permitting to streamline reviews, and 

encourage flexibility for small businesses 

New Developments 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

New Industry 

98 apartments on Willetts Avenue approved. 

171 Rope Ferry Rd - 52 Units - 40% Affordable Housing still under 

construction 

Redevelopment of a gas filling station and convenience store at 446 
Boston Post Road approved. 

Special Permit for Agri-Tourism location at 116 Old Colchester Road 
approved 
Ongoing planning for 40 affordable apartments on Rte 85 

Solar Facility on Oil Mill Road permitted 

Construction underway for new office space at Mago Point 

Permitting and start of construction for medical office facility (Hartford 
Healthcare) on Dayton Road 

° Cross Rd Surgery - 2000 sq. ft. expansion project completed Tractor 
Supply - open 

0 Hartford Healthcare medical offices have opened on the site of the 
old Toys R Us location 

Electric Boat 
0 $5.1 B Navy Contract - estimated 2,000 to 5,000 jobs 
0 Building of Columbia Class Submarines to begin in 2023 
° Current impact - Increased housing activity 
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Long Term Financial Planning 

In 1998 the Representative Town Meeting formed its Long Range Fiscal Planning 
Committee. In FY01 the Board of Finance appointed an Ad Hoc Long-Range Budget 
Planning Committee to analyze the impact of the annual tax revenue loss due to the 
Dominion deregulation and to provide guidance in developing budgets that would sustain 
a consistent level of service with a declining revenue base over the ten-year period. 
This proactive approach to long-range operational budget planning, combined with multi­
year capital planning, has become an effective budgetary management tool. Despite the 
fact that the Town has successfully absorbed the impact to its tax base due to 
deregulation, the Long-Range Budget Planning Committee remains active and is in the 
process of developing an updated long-term financial plan based of GFOA guidelines. 

The Town implemented a Fleet Management Program that served as the basis for 

sizing the fleet and provided a 5 year approach to managing a fleet valued in 
excess of $4.4 million. This program allows the Town to undertake a needs 

assessment of its rolling stock, and based upon established life-cycle parameters, 

provided a forty-year replacement plan that uses a combination of residual values, 
investment income, vehicle rental revenues and an equalized level of budget over a 

sustained period of time to fund all rolling stock replacements. 

Major Initiatives 

In compliance with GASB 54 and to strengthen Waterford's commitment to sound 
financial management and fiscal accountability, the Town still maintains the adopted 
fund balance policy from 2015. In that regard, the Town's 2021 Audited Financial 
Waterford has an Unassigned Fund Balance of $22,981,081 

In May of 2019, the Town began the first phase of the construction on a new 
Municipal Complex project for the Public Works Department. The project consists 

of a full demolition of the existing structure and construction of a new 60,100 sq. ft. 
facility. The cost of the project was bonded in July 2020 and the project is expected 

to be complete in early Fall 2021. 

Increase school enrollment 
0 Attract students from neighboring districts to Waterford High School 

on a tuition basis 
0 5 students enrolled in 2021 

viii 



Eco Friendly Town 
0 Achieved Bronze Certificate as a Sustainable CT Community 
0 Land Preservation 

0 Easements, Purchase and Donations 
0 Plan of Conservation and Development 

0 DEEP analysis 

° Fall 2019-2021 
0 Energy audit of buildings 
0 LED Streetlight conversion project completed 

Affordable Housing Plan 
0 Assessing housing needs for the future 

0 In process of collecting data to fit into regional area needs 

Town Center Improvements ("Main Street") 
° Committee Formed in June 2020 
0 Support Infrastructure for Farmer's Market 
0 Improved Recreational Amenities 

0 Accessible walking paths, sidewalks and boardwalks 
0 Improved Fiber Connectivity 
0 Board of Selectman adoption of the Community Waterford Park 

Master Plan 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Board of Finance 
Town of Waterford, Connecticut 

Report on the Financial Statements 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

CLAconnect.com 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business­
type activities, each major fund and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Waterford, 
Connecticut, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2021, and the related notes to the financial 
statements, which collectively comprise the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's basic financial 
statements as listed in the table of contents. 

Management's Responsibility for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes 
the design, implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error. 

Auditors' Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We 
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and 
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free from 
material misstatement. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in 
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment, including the 
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or 
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's 
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are 
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness 
of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes 
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant 
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of the 
financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for 
our audit opinions. 

@ Amemberof 

Nexia 
International 

CLA is an independent member of Nexia International, a leading, global network of independent 

accounting and consulting firms. See nexia.com/member-firm-disclaimer for details. 
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Opinions 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund 
and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut, as of June 30, 
2021 and the respective changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the 
year then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of 
America. 

Emphasis of a Matter 

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, the Town of Waterford, Connecticut adopted GASB Statement 
No. 84, Fiduciary Activities. As a result of the implementation of this standard, the Town of Waterford, 
Connecticut reported a restatement for the change in accounting principle (see Note 15). Our auditors' 
opinion was not modified with respect to the restatement. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the 
management's discussion and analysis, the budgetary comparison information and the pension and 
OPEB schedules, as listed in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial 
statements. Such information, although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by the 
Governmental Accounting Standards Board, which considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic or historical 
context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which 
consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing 
the information for consistency with management's responses to our inquiries, the basic financial 
statements and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do 
not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do 
not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other Information 

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that 
collectively comprise the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's basic financial statements. The introductory 
section, combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules, and statistical 
section are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic 
financial statements. 

The combining and individual nonmajor fund financial statements and schedules are the responsibility 
of management and were derived from and relate directly to the underlying accounting and other 
records used to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the 
auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements and schedules are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 

The introductory and statistical sections have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in 
the audit of the basic financial statements, and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide 
any assurance on them. 
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Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated 
December 17, 2021 on our consideration of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's internal control over 
financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the 
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut's 
internal control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit 
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Waterford, 
Connecticut's internal control over financial reporting and compliance. 

CliftonlarsonAllen LLP 

West Hartford, Connecticut 
December 17, 2021 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

This discussion and analysis of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut (the Town) financial performance is prepared 
by management to provide an overview of the Town's financial activities for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021. 
Please read this MD&A in conjunction with the transmittal letter and the Town's financial statements, Exhibits I to 
IX. 

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS 

• The Town's net position decreased as a result of this year's operations. While net position of our
business-type activities decreased by $1.6 million, or 3.1 %, net position of our governmental activities
decreased by $688 thousand after restatement or 0.4 %.

• During the year, the Town had expenses that were $2.3 million more than the $121.6 million generated in
tax and other revenues for governmental programs.

• In the Town's business-type activities, revenues and transfers in increased by $39 thousand or 1.0%, while
expenses increased by $81.0 thousand or 1.5 %.

• The total cost of all of the Town's programs was $123.9 million, with no new programs added this year.
• The General Fund reported a fund balance this year of $23.8 million.
• The resources available for appropriation were $1. 7 million more than anticipated for the General Fund.

There were additional appropriations of $41.1 thousand to transfer funding to the Capital Improvement
Fund. However, unused appropriations of $2.2 million were returned to fund balance at yearend. Overall,
the operating results increased the General Fund balance by $3.9 million

OVERVIEW OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The statement of net position and the statement of 
activities (Exhibits I and II, respectively) provide information about the activities of the Town as a whole and 
present a longer-term view of the Town's finances. Fund financial statements are presented in Exhibits III to IX. 
For governmental activities, these statements tell how these services were financed in the short term as well as what 
remains for future spending. Fund financial statements also report the Town's operations in more detail than the 
government-wide statements by providing information about the Town's most significant funds. The remaining 
statements provide financial information about activities for which the Town acts solely as a trustee or agent for the 
benefit of those outside of the government. 

Government-Wide Financial Statements 

Our analysis of the Town as a whole begins on Exhibits I and IL These statements include all assets and liabilities 
using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the accounting used by most private-sector companies. 
All of the current year's revenues and expenses are taken into account regardless of when cash is received or paid. 

These two statements report the Town's net position and changes in it. Over time, increases or decreases in the 
Town's net position are one indicator of whether its financial health is improving or deteriorating. The reader 
needs to consider other non-financial factors, however, such as changes in the Town's property tax base and the 
condition of the Town's capital assets, to assess the overall health of the Town. 
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In the statement of net position and the statement of activities, we divide the Town into two types of activities: 

• Governmental Activities - Most of the Town's basic services are reported here, including education, public
safety, public works, recreation, library, social services and general administration. Property taxes, charges
for services, and state and federal grants finance most of these activities.

• Business-Type Activities - The Town charges a fee to customers to help it cover all or most of the cost of
certain services it provides. The Town's Utility Commission Enterprise Fund is reported here.

Fund Financial Statements 

The fund financial statements begin with Exhibit III and provide detailed information about the most significant 
funds - not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by Charter. However, the Board of 
Finance establishes many other funds to help control and manage money for particular purposes or to show that it is 
meeting legal responsibilities for using grants and other money (i.e. grants received for education from the State 
and Federal Government). The Town's funds are divided into three categories: governmental, proprietary and 
fiduciary. 

• Governmental Funds (Exhibits III and IV) - Most of the Town's basic services are reported in
governmental funds, which focus on how money flows into and out of those funds and the balances left at
year-end that are available for spending. These funds are reported using an accounting method called
modified accrual accounting, which measures cash and all other financial assets that can readily be
converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide a detailed short-term view of the Town's
general government operations and the basic services it provides. Governmental fund information helps to
determine whether there are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to finance
the Town's programs. The relationship (or differences) between governmental activities (reported in the
statement of net position and the statement of activities) and governmental funds is described in a
reconciliation included with the fund financial statements.

• Proprietary Funds (Exhibits V to VII) - When the Town charges customers for the services it provides,
whether to outside customers or to other units of the Town, these services are generally reported in
proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the
statement of net position and the statement of activities. In fact, the Town's enterprise fund (a component
of proprietary funds) is the same as the business-type activities reported in the government-wide
statements, but provide more detail and additional information, such as cash flows, for proprietary funds.
Internal service funds (the other component of proprietary funds) are used to report activities that provide
supplies and services for the Town's other programs and activities - such as the Town's Insurance
Administration Fund.

• Fiduciary Funds (Exhibits VIII and IX) - The Town is the trustee, or fiduciary, for its employees' pension
plans. It is also responsible for other assets that, because of a trust arrangement, can be used only for the
trust beneficiaries. All of the Town's fiduciary activities are reported in separate statements of fiduciary
net position and changes in fiduciary net position. These activities are excluded from the Town's other
financial statements because the Town cannot use these assets to finance its operations. The Town is
responsible for ensuring that the assets rep011ed in these funds are used for their intended purposes.
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GOVERNMENT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

The Town's combined net position decreased from $210.7 to $208.4 million or 1.1 %. The analysis below focuses 
on the net position (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the Town's governmental and business-type 
activities. 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Current assets $ 54,085 $ 46,328 $ 5,413 $ 5,331 $ 59,498 $ 51,659 
Capital assets, net of 
accumulated depreciation 241,132 243,891 45,671 47,418 286,803 291,309 

Total assets 295,217 290,219 51,084 52,749 346,301 342,968 

Deferred outflows of resources 18,301 17,947 18,301 17,947 

Long-term debt outstanding 135,326 134,964 316 345 135,642 135,309 
Other liabilities 11,226 8,251 330 378 11,556 8,629 

Total liabilities 146,552 143,215 646 723 147,198 143,938 

Deferred inflows of resources 8,998 6,296 8,998 6,296 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 165,530 177,425 45,670 47,417 211,200 224,842 
Restricted 1,440 127 1,440 127 
Un restricted (9,002) (18,897) 4,768 4,609 (4,234) (14,288) 

Total Net Position $ 157,968 $ 158,655 $ 50,438 $ 52,026 $ 208,406 $ 210,681 

Net position of the Town's governmental activities decreased by 0.4 % ($158.0 million in 2021 compared to 158.7 
million in 2020). Unrestricted net position - the part of net position that can be used to finance day-to-day 
operations without constraints established by debt covenants, enabling legislation or other legal requirements -
decreased by $9.9 million ($18.9 million) in 2020 compared to ($9.0 million) at the end of this year. 

By far the largest portion of the Town's net position is its investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, 
machinery and equipment). Since the Town's investment in its capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation, 
must also be reported net ofrelated debt, it should be noted that the Town's outstanding debt is related to bonds 
payable as of June 30, 2021. 

The net position of our business-type activities decreased by 3.1 % ($50.4 million in 2021 compared to $52.0 
million in 2020). 
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The Town's total revenues (excluding special items) were $121.6 million. The total cost of all programs and 
services was $123.9 million. Our analysis below separately considers the operations of governmental and business­
type activities. 

Revenues: 
Program revenues: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 

Capital grants and contributions 
General revenues: 

Property taxes 

Grants and contributions not 
restricted to specific purposes 
Unrestricted investment earnings 

Miscellaneous revenue 
Total revenues 

Program expenses: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Library 
Social services 
Education 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Utility Commission 
Total program expenses 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenses 
before transfers 

Transfers 

Change in Net Position 

Beginning Net Position, as restated 

Restatement 

Governmental 

Activities 

2021 

$ 3,346 $ 

19,990 

578 

93,198 

356 
133 
175 

117,776 

15,705 
13,999 

8,780 
1,763 
1,156 

1,285 
74,351 

1,393 

118,432 

(656) 

(31) 

(687) 

158,655 

2020 

3,091 $ 
13,901 

658 

92,136 

351 
1,082 

197 
111,416 

15,856 
13,150 

8,086 
1,941 
1,159 

1,427 
68,539 

2,057 

112,215 

(799) 

(95) 

(894) 

159,312 

237 

Business-Type 

Activities Total 

2021 

3,841 $ 

16 

3 

3,860 

5,479 
5,479 

(1,619) 

31 

(1,588) 

52,026 

2020 2021 

3,710 $ 7,187 $ 

19,990 

594 

93,198 

356 
47 136 

175 

3,757 121,636 

5,399 
5,399 

(1,642) 

95 

(1,547) 

53,573 

15,705 
13,999 

8,780 
1,763 
1,156 

1,285 
74,351 

1,393 

5,479 
123,911 

(2,275) 

(2,275) 

210,681 

2020 

6,801 
13,901 

658 

92,136 

351 
1,129 

197 
115,173 

15,856 
13,150 

8,086 
1,941 
1,159 

1,427 
68,539 

2,057 

5,399 
117,614 

(2,441) 

(2,441) 

212,885 

237 

Ending Net Position $ 157,968 $ 158,655 $ 50,438 $ 52,026 $ 208,406 $ 210,681 

Governmental Activities 

Approximately 79 .1 % of these revenues were derived from property taxes, followed by 17 .9% from operating and 
capital grants and contributions, 2.8% from charges for services and 0.2% from investment and other general 
revenues. 

Major factors affecting operations include: 
• Operating grants and contributions were up by $6.0 million due primarily to the following:

• 

There was an increase in the State's on-behalf contribution for the Teachers' Retirement System of $3.2
million.
There was an increase in the State's on-behalf contribution for the Teachers' Retirement System OPEB of
$ 1.8 million.
There was an increase in Special Assistance grants of $796.4 thousand.
There was an increase in assistance to the School Cafeteria fund of $280.0 thousand.

Property tax revenues were up by $1.1 million .
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• Investment earnings were down by $949.3 thousand from FY20 due to significantly lower interest rates.
• Charges for services up by $255.0 thousand due to the addition of the Student Activity fund for $158.3

thousand and many services starting up again.
• Capital grants and contributions decreased by $80 thousand, due to the mainly following:

General Government capital grants were down by $13.6 due to a one-time Electrical rebate in FY20 for
the same amount.

Public Works Capital grants were down by $56.6 thousand due to the following: 
Electrical rebate for the Street Light project Town HVAC was down by $120.8 thousand. 
LOCIP grant for Pepperbox Lane was down by $185.6 thousand. 
There was an increase of $249.8 for the Thames River grant. 

Recreation capital grants were down by $9.2 thousand due to the following: 
Playground donations were down by $10 thousand from FY20. 
There was an increase for donations to the Civic Triangle Memorial of $.8 thousand. 

• Miscellaneous Revenue was down by $22.2 thousand

Table 3 presents the cost of each of the Town's five largest programs - education, general government, public 
safety, public works and recreation - as well as each program's net cost (total cost less revenues generated by the 
activities). The net cost shows the financial burden to the Town's taxpayers by each of these functions. 

Total Cost of Services Net Cost of Services 

2021 2020 2021 2020 

Education $ 74,351 $ 68,539 $ 54,693 $ 54,670 

General government 15,705 15,856 13,826 14,679 

Public safety 13,999 13,150 13,337 12,308 

Public works 8,780 8,086 7,341 6,850 

Recreation 1,763 1,941 1,647 1,738 

All others 3,835 4,643 3,675 4,320 

Totals $ 118,433 $ 112,215 $ 94,519 $ 94,565 

Business-Type Activities 

Net position of the Town's business-type activities (see Table 2) decreased by 3.1 % ($50.4 million in 2021 
compared to $52.0 million in 2020). Revenues and transfers in for the Town's business-type activities (see Table 
2) increased by $39 thousand ($3.9 million in 2021 compared to $3.9 million in 2020). The factors driving these
results include:

• An increase in Sewer use fee revenue of $115 thousand.
• A decrease in transfers in of $64 thousand
• A decrease of investment earnings of $44 thousand.
• An increase of operating grants of $17 thousand
• An increase of capital grants and contributions of $16 thousand
• An increase in expenses of $81.0 thousand.
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TOWN FUNDS FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Governmental Funds 

As the Town completed the year, its governmental funds (as presented in the balance sheet - Exhibit III) reported a 
combined fund balance of $35.6 million, which is increase of $4.1 million from last year's total of $31.5 million as 
restated. Included in this year's total change in fund balance is an increase of$3.7 million in the General Fund, a 
decrease of$265.6 thousand in the Capital and NonRecurring Fund and an increase of$730.8 thousand for 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds. 

Capital Projects Funds: 

o The Capital and Nonrecurring Fund balance decreased by $265.6 thousand due to expenditures of$6.8
million and revenues of$36.5 thousand and other financing sources or $6.5 million. Included in other
financing sources were transfers in of $1.4 million, bond proceeds of $3.7 million along with a premium on
the bond of 1.4 million.

Non-Major Capital Projects Funds: 

• The Fleet Management Fund increased by $451.3 thousand due to expenditures of $596.3 thousand being offset
by revenues and transfers in of $1.1 million.

• The Capital Improvement Fund increased by $253.6 thousand due to expenditures of$986.2 thousand and net
transfers in and out $1.2 million.

• The Sewer Development and Maintenance Fund increased by $55.7 thousand due to expenditures of$68.l
thousand being offset by revenues of$123.8 thousand.

Special Revenue Funds: 

• The Nuclear Safety Emergency Preparedness Fund decreased by $84.8 thousand due to expenditures of
$133.3 Thousand and grant reimbursements received of$48.5 thousand.

• The Small Cities Grant Fund increased by $78.4 thousand due to loan repayments of the same amount.

Proprietary Funds 

The Town's Proprietary Funds provide the same type of information found in the government-wide financial 
statements, but in more detail. 

Overall, proprietary funds net assets total $56.7 million at the end of the year, which includes a $6.2 million fund 
balance in the Internal Service Fund. 

Net position of the Utility Commission Fund at the end of the year amounted to $50.4 million. Factors affecting the 
balance of this fund are included in the discussion of the Town's business-type activities. 

In fiscal year 2021, net position of the Internal Service fund increased by $426.5 thousand from fiscal year 2020. 
This is due to $11.9 million in contributions and other revenues ( an increase of $433 .5 thousand over fiscal year 
2020), reduced by expenses for claims and program administration of $11.5 million ( an increase of $1.2 million 
over fiscal year 2020). 
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General Fund Budgetary Highlights 

Revenues were higher than budgetary estimates by $1.7 million and expenditures were less than original budgetary 
estimates by $2.2 million. Overall revenues over expenditures on a budgetary basis were $3.9 million. In the 
current year, revenues increased by $955.7 thousand or 1.0 % over the prior year and expenditures decreased by 
$665.4 thousand or 0.7%. 

The major factors affecting this year's annual operating results are as follows: 

• Property tax revenue was over budgetary estimates by $651.1 thousand and over prior year revenue by $1.3
million.

• State and Federal grant funding was over budgetary estimates by $223.8 thousand and over prior year revenue
by $205.3 thousand.

• Assessment revenue is over budgetary estimates by $7.8 thousand and under the prior year by $6.5 thousand.
• License and permit revenue is over budgetary estimates by $777.0 thousand and over the prior year by $619.0

thousand. Town clerk fees increased by $70.9 thousand over fiscal year 2020. The building department is up
from FY20 by $384.4 thousand, conveyance tax revenue is up from FY20 by $202.6 thousand. Planning &
zoning, had an increase of $35.5 thousand over the prior year. Miscellaneous fees and permits were up from
FY20 by $16.5 thousand. Recreation and parks revenue is down from FY20 by $91.0 thousand

• Fines, Penalties and Charges for Services are over budgetary estimates by $4.7 thousand and over the prior
year revenue by $179 .2 thousand. The biggest change was an increase for miscellaneous revenue of $66.2
thousand, followed by an increase for tuition fees of $50.3 thousand. There was an increase of $61.4
thousand in tipping fee revenue. Recycling revenue increased by $13.5 thousand. Senior Services program
revenue was down by 21.5 thousand and the library was down by $10.3 thousand.

• Other sources of revenue were over budgetary estimates by $49 .1 thousand and under the prior year revenue
by $325.9 thousand.

• Investment income is under budgetary estimates by $213.7 thousand and under prior year revenue by $786.3
thousand.

• Other Financing Sources, which consists of the cancelation of prior year encumbrances and transfers in from
the capital improvement fund, was over estimated revenue by $195.0 thousand and under the prior year by
$203 .2 thousand.

Overall Expenditures came in $2.2 million under budgetary estimates. The largest amounts of unused 
appropriations returned in the current fiscal year are as follows: 

• The Board of Education returned $1.1 million.
• The Recreation and Parks Department returned $187.4 thousand.
• The Public Works Department returned $116.2 thousand.
• The Senior Services Department returned $115.6 thousand.
• The Police Department returned $114.8 thousand.

The Town's General Fund balance of $23.8 million reported on Exhibit III differs from the General Fund's 
budgetary balance of$23.l million reported in the budgetary comparison in the required supplementary 
information. This is principally because budgetary fund balance does not include $641.8 thousand of outstanding 
encumbrances at year-end, which are reported as expenditures for budgetary purposes. The balances for special 
revenue funds financed primarily from operating transfers from the General Fund are also rolled into that fund for 
reporting purposes. For fiscal year 2021, those balances amounted to $53.7 thousand. 



CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At June 30, 2021, the Town had $286.8 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, including land, 
buildings, park facilities, vehicles and equipment, roads, bridges, and water and sewer lines. This amount 
represents a net decrease (including additions and deductions) of $4.5 million, or 1.6%, from last year. 

Governmental Business-Type 
Activities Activities Total 

2021 2020 2021 2020 2021 2020 

Land $ 8,982 $ 8,957 $ 128 $ 128 $ 9,110 $ 9,085 

Land improvements 1,995 1,543 1,995 1,543 
Building and improvements 168,063 160,281 944 978 169,007 161,259 
Machinery and equipment 2,519 2,970 591 668 3,110 3,638 
Vehicles 5,519 5,823 263 227 5,782 6,050 
Infrastructure 53,573 54,912 43,738 45,409 97,311 100,321 
Permanent easements 5 5 5 5 

Software 89 94 6 8 95 102 
Construction in progress 388 9,306 388 9,306 

Total $ 241,133 $ 243,891 $ 45,670 $ 47,418 $ 286,803 $ 291,309 

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year are noted below: 

Governmental Activities: 

• Construction-in-progress decreased by $8.9 million due mainly to the completion of the public works complex
renovation project.

• Buildings and improvements increased by $7.8 million. The Municipal complex was completed adding in
$13.4 million. Depreciation expense reduced the net balance by $5.6 million.

• Land Improvements increased by $452 thousand. The Municipal complex accounted for $534.9 thousand and
the Waterford Beach project added $37.3 thousand. Depreciation expense reduced the net balance by $120.1
thousand.

• Infrastructure decreased by $1.3 million due mainly due to depreciation expense of$1.8 million. Additions
included the completion of various road projects for $408.2 thousand.

• Machinery and equipment decreased by $451 thousand due to mainly to depreciation expense of $607 .6
thousand, which was offset by additions of $156.9 thousand.

• Vehicles decreased by $304.8 thousand due to additions of$702.3 thousand, in accordance with the fleet
management plan, this was offset by net retirements of$22.5 thousand and depreciation expense of$984.7
thousand.

• Software decreased by $5 thousand due to the addition of RecDesk software $8.3 thousand reduced by
amortization expense of$13.5 thousand.

• Land Increased by $25 thousand due to the addition of 13 Parkway Drive.
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Business-Type Activities 

• There was an increase in vehicles of $35.9 thousand due to additions of $61.1 thousand and depreciation
expense of$25.2 thousand.

• The decreases to all other asset categories were due entirely to depreciation and amortization expense.

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note 5 of this report. 

Long-Term Debt 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had $72.8 million of outstanding general obligation bonds. Bonds 
issued in July 2020 carried an AA rating from Standard & Poor. 

State statutes limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 7 times its total prior 
years' tax collections. The current debt limitation for the Town is $646.3 million. 

Additional information on the Town's long-term debt can be found in Note 7. 

Economic Factors 

• The unemployment rate for the Town in 2021 was 6.5%, which is a decrease from a rate of 10.8% a year ago.
Waterford's unemployment rate is lower than the State's average unemployment rate of 6.8%, and higher
than the national average of 6.1 % as of June 2021.

During the current fiscal year, unassigned fund balance in the General Fund increased by $4.0 million. The main 
reason for the increase is due to the positive operating results of $3. 7 million. A decrease in the assigned fund 
balance of$155.3 thousand and a decrease in nonspendable balance of$193.7 thousand added to the overall 
increase of the unassigned total. 

CONTACTING THE TOWN'S FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors and creditors with a general 
overview of the Town's finances and to show the Town's accountability for the money it receives. If you have 
questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the Director of Finance, Town of 
Waterford, 15 Rope Ferry Road, Waterford, Connecticut 06385. 
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EXHIBIT I 
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Primary Government 
Governmental Business-Type 

Activities Activities Total 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents $ 44,608,883 $ 4,027,700 $ 48,636,583 
Investments 6,408,057 6,408,057 
Receivables, net 2,821,083 1,599,906 4,420,989 
Internal balances 214,386 (214,386) 
Supplies 9,101 9,101 
Prepaid items 22,933 22,933 
Capital assets: 

Intangible assets not being amortized 5,000 5,000 
Intangible assets being amortized, net 88,666 6,280 94,946 
Assets not being depreciated 9,369,726 127,970 9,497,696 
Assets being depreciated, net 231,669,008 45,535,815 277,204,823 

Total assets 295,216,843 51,083,285 346,300,128 

l Deferred Outflows of Resources:
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 15,696,341 15,696,341 
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 761,150 761,150 
Deferred charge on refunding 1,843,954 1,843,954 

Total deferred outflows of resources 18,301,445 18,301,445 

Liabilities: 
Accounts and other payables 2,147,050 159,245 2,306,295 
Accrued liabilities 5,204,578 147,857 5,352,435 
Unearned revenue 3,875,406 22,992 3,898,398 
Noncurrent liabilities: 

Due within one year 7,372,193 17,785 7,389,978 
Due in more than one year 127,953,322 297,866 128,251,188 

Total liabilities 146,552,549 645,745 147,198,294 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 5,256,431 5,256,431 
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 3,741,727 3,741,727 

Total deferred inflows of resources 8,998,158 8,998,158 

Net Position: 
Net investment in capital assets 165,530,466 45,670,065 211,200,531 
Restricted for: 

Trust purposes: 
Nonexpendable 144,021 144,021 

Grants 781,146 781,146 
Contracts 514,384 514,384 

Unrestricted {9,002,436} 4,767,475 {4,234,961} 

l Total Net Position $ 157,967,581 $ 50,437,540 $ 208,405,121 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT II 
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Net Revenue {Expense} And Changes In Net Position 

Program Revenues Prima!}'. Government 
Operating Capital 

Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type 
Functions/Programs Exeenses Services Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total 

Governmental activities: 
General government $ 15,705,390 $ 1,761,562 $ 117,772 $ $ (13,826,056) $ $ (13,826,056) 
Public safety 13,998,680 292,907 368,470 (13,337,303) (13,337,303) 
Public works 8,780,426 872,355 567,396 (7,340,675) (7,340,675) 
Recreation 1,763,252 89,305 16,210 10,840 (1,646,897) (1,646,897) 
Library 1,155,859 (1,155,859) (1,155,859) 
Social services 1,285,434 11,456 148,618 ( 1, 125,360) ( 1, 125,360) 
Education 74,350,944 318,789 19,338,694 (54,693,461) (54,693,461) 
Interest on long-term debt 1,393,026 (1,393,026} {1,393,026} 

Total governmental activities 118,433,011 3,346,374 19,989,764 578,236 {94,518,637} {94,518,637} 

Business-type activities: 
Utility commission 5,479,944 3,841,279 16,000 {1,622,665} (1,622,665} 

Total primary governmental activities $ 123,912,955 $ 7,187,653 $ 19,989,764 $ 594,236 (94,518,637) (1,622,665) (96,141,302) 

General revenues: 
Property taxes 93,198,160 93,198,160 
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 356,246 356,246 
Unrestricted investment earnings 133,137 2,581 135,718 
Miscellaneous 174,541 174,541 

Transfers {31,130} 31,130 
Total general revenues and transfers 93,830,954 33,711 93,864,665 

Change in Net Position (687,683) (1,588,954) (2,276,637) 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as restated 158,655,264 52,026,494 210,681,758 

Net Position at End of Year $ 157,967,581 $ 50,437,540 $ 208,405,121 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

BALANCE SHEET-GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Capital and Waterford 

Nonrecurring High School 

General Expenditures Building 

Fund Fund Project 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 24,243,242 $ 8,375,198 $ 1,180 $ 
Investments 6,216,589 
Receivables, net 1,865,139 250,119 
lnterfund receivables 4,370,943 
Supplies 
Prepaid items 21,624 

Total Assets $ 36,717,537 $ 8,625,317 $ 1,180 $ 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts and other payables $ 
Accrued liabilities 
lnterfund payables 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue: 
Property taxes 
Special assessments 
Grants receivable 
Other receivables 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Assigned 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances $ 

1,901,522 $ 
3,700,623 
5,475,070 

364,064 
11,441,279 

1,353,008 
25,838 

115,388 
1,494,234 

21,624 

779,319 
22,981,081 
23,782,024 

36,717,537 $ 

27,025 $ $ 

550,846 2,942,807 

577,871 2,942,807 

250,119 

250,119 

7,797,327 

(2,941,627) 
7,797,327 (2,941,627) 

8,625,317 $ 1,180 $ 

(Continued on next page) 

15 

EXHIBIT Ill 

American 

Rescue Nonmajor Total 

Funds Governmental Governmental 

Grant Funds Funds 

$ 6,043,709 $ 38,663,329 
191,468 6,408,057 
678,908 2,794,166 

2,773,945 1,766,211 8,911,099 
9,101 9,101 
1,309 22,933 

2,773,945 $ 8,690,706 $ 56,808,685 

$ 218,503 $ 2,147,050 
78,349 3,778,972 

662,904 9,631,627 
2,773,945 664,520 3,802,529 
2,773,945 1,624,276 19,360,178 

1,353,008 
25,838 

84,798 334,917 
115,388 

84,798 1,829,151 

154,431 176,055 
960,613 960,613 

5,957,695 13,755,022 
779,319 

(91,107) 19,948,347 
6,981,632 35,619,356 

2,773,945 $ 8,690,706 $ 56,808,685 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

BALANCE SHEET - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet - Governmental Funds 
to the Statement of Net Position: 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position (Exhibit I) are 
different because of the following: 

Fund balances - total governmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial 
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 
Net capital assets 

Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current-period 
expenditures and, therefore, are not recorded in the funds: 

Property tax receivables greater than 60 days 
Interest receivable on property taxes 
Delinquent special assessments 
Unavailable revenue - grants receivable 
Unavailable revenue - other receivables 
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
Deferred outflows of resources related to OPES 
Deferred charge on refunding 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the costs of 
risk management to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of 
the internal service funds are reported with governmental activities 
in the statement of net position. 

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable 
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds: 

Net pension liability 
Pension prior service cost 
Bonds and notes payable 
Bond and note premiums 
Interest payable on bonds and notes 
Compensated absences 
Landfill post-closure monitoring liability 
Net OPES liability 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
Deferred inflows of resources related to OPES 

Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit I) 

$ 403,220, 171 
(162,087,771) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT Ill 

$ 35,619,356 

241,132,400 

814,721 
538,287 

25,838 
334,917 
115,388 

15,696,341 
761,150 

1,843,954 

6,229,162 

(33,780,610) 
(417,901) 

(72,815,000) 
(4,630,888) 

(820,260) 
(6,740,355) 

(247,000) 
(16,693,761) 

(5,256,431) 
(3,741,727) 

$ 157,967,581 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 
GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues: 
Property taxes $ 

Intergovernmental 
Assessments and connections 
Licenses and permits 
Fines, penalties and charges for services 
Investment earnings 
Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 
Current: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Library 
Social services 
Education 

Capital outlay 
Debt service: 

Principal retirements 
Interest and fiscal charges 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 
over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 
Transfers in 
Transfers out 
Issuance of debt 
Premium on debt issuance 
Issuance of refunding bonds 
Payments to escrow agents 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, as Restated 

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 

General 
Fund 

93,334,211 $ 

8,732,352 
7,785 

1,988,115 
759,850 

86,327 
8,201 

104,916,841 

14,598,061 
10,782,765 

4,632,630 
1,309,389 
1,076,263 

840,028 
56,903,477 

5,060,000 
2,714,937 

97,917,550 

6,999,291 

129,941 
(3,670,910) 

28,890,000 
(28,679,460) 

(3,330,429) 

3,668,862 

20,113,162 

23,782,024 $ 

Capital and 
Nonrecurring 
Expenditures 

Fund 

11,473 
25,000 
36,473 

6,800,244 

6,800,244 

(6,763,771) 

1,401,280 

3,655,000 
1,441,884 

6,498,164 

(265,607) 

8,062,934 

7,797,327 

$ 

$ 

Waterford 
High School 

Building 
Projects 

$ 

(2,941,628) 

(2,941,627) $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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EXHIBIT IV 

American 
Rescue Nonmajor Total 
Funds Governmental Governmental 
Grant Funds Funds 

$ $ 93,334,211 
3,003,917 11,736,269 

123,337 131,122 
1,988,115 

391,038 1,150,888 
30,267 128,068 

257,711 290,912 
3,806,270 108,759,585 

21,539 14,619,600 
405,663 11,188,428 
131,589 4,764,219 

13,827 1,323,216 
1,076,263 

192,638 1,032,666 
2,867,492 59,770,969 
1,582,434 8,382,678 

5,060,000 
2,714,937 

5,215,182 109,932,976 

(1,408,912) (1,173,391) 

2,269,630 3,800,851 
(129,941) (3,800,851) 

3,655,000 
1,441,884 

28,890,000 
(28,679,460) 

2,139,689 5,307,424 

730,777 4,134,033 

6,250,855 31,485,323 

' $ 6,981,632 $ 35,619,356 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN 

FUND BALANCES - GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund 
Balances of Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities: 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities (Exhibit II) are different because: 

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds (Exhibit IV) 

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures. In the statement of activities, the cost of 
those assets is allocated over their estimated useful lives and reported as depreciation expense: 

Capital outlay 
Depreciation expense 

The statement of activities reports losses arising from the disposal of existing capital assets. 
Conversely, governmental funds do not report any gain or loss on disposal of capital assets. This 
amount represents the disposal of capital assets. 

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial resources are not reported 
as revenues in the funds, and revenues recognized in the funds are not reported in the statement of activities: 

Property tax receivable - accrual basis change 
Property tax interest and lien revenue - accrual basis change 
Delinquent special assessment receivable - accrual basis change 
Miscellaneous grants and accounts receivable - accrual basis change 
Change in deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 
Change in deferred outflows of resources related to OPEB 

The issuance of long-term debt (e.g., bonds, leases) provides current financial resources 
to governmental funds, while the repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial 
resources of governmental funds. Neither transaction has any effect on net position. Also, governmental 
funds report the effect of issuance costs, premiums, discounts and similar items when debt is 
first issued, whereas these amounts are amortized and deferred in the statement of activities. The details of 
these differences in the treatment of long-term debt and related items are as follows: 

Issuance of bonds and notes 
Premium on bonds and notes 
Bond principal payments 
Issuance of refunding bonds 
Payment to escrow agent on refunded bond issuance 
Amortization of deferred charge on refunding 
Amortization of premiums 
Landfill post-closure monitoring 

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require the use of current financial resources 
and, therefore, are not reported as expenditures in the governmental funds: 

Compensated absences 
Accrued interest 
Change in net pension liability 
Change in net OPEB liability 
Change in prior service cost 
Change in deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
Change in deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB 

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs to individual funds. The net 
revenue of certain activities of internal services funds is reported with governmental activities. 

Change in Net Position of Governmental Activities (Exhibit II) 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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$ 

EXHIBIT IV 

4,134,033 

6,470,851 
(9,053,694) 

(175,357) 

(168,218) 
32,167 
(8,054) 

246,152 
(958,361) 
661,353 

(3,655,000) 
(1,441,884) 
5,060,000 

(28,890,000) 
28,679,460 

(328,277) 
1,533,095 

24,000 

499,147 
117,093 

(2,206,049) 
597,814 
417,364 

(2,081,308) 
(620,523) 

426,513 

$ ==(=68=7=,6=83
:!::)



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Assets: 

Current assets: 
Cash and cash equ�a�n� 
Receivables, net 
lnterfund receivables 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Capital assets, net 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Current liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 
Accrued liabilities 

lnterfund payables 
Advance collections 
Deposits 
Compensated absences 

Total current liabilities 

Noncurrent liabilities: 
Compensated absences 

Total liabilities 

Net Position: 

Net investment in capital assets 
Unrestricted 

Total Net Position 

$ 

$ 

Business-Type 

Activities 

Utility 

Commission 

4,027,700 

1,599,906 

5,627,606 

45,670,065 

51,297,671 

42,243 

147,857 
214,386 

22,992 

117,002 
17,785 

562,265 

297,866 

860,131 

45,670,065 

4,767,475 

50,437,540 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBITV 

Governmental 

Activities 

Internal 

Service Fund 

5,945,554 

26,917 

934,914 

6,907,385 

6,907,385 

605,346 

72,877 

678,223 

678,223 

6,229,162 

6,229,162 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT VI 

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

IN NET POSITION - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business-Type Governmental 

Activities Activities 

Utility Internal 

Commission Service Fund 

Operating Revenues: 
User charges for services, interest and lien fees $ 3,841,279 $ 

Premium charges to other funds 11,869,840 
Total operating revenues 3,841,279 11,869,840 

Operating Expenses: 
Amortization expense 1,266 
Depreciation expense 1,807,505 
Salaries, wages and employee benefits 1,288,837 
Treatment plant costs 1,525,233 
Utilities 312,246 
Repairs and maintenance 297,477 
Other operating expenses 95,902 
Materials and supplies 136,859 
Professional services 14,619 
Claims 9,228,871 
Program and administrative expenses 2,219,525 

Total operating expenses 5,479,944 11,448,396 

Operating Income (Loss) (1,638,665) 421,444 

Nonoperating Revenue: 
Income on investments 2,581 5,069 

Gain (Loss) Before Capital Contributions and Transfers (1,636,084) 426,513 

Capital Contributions 61,130 
Transfers Out (14,000) 

Change in Net Position (1,588,954) 426,513 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 52,026,494 5,802,649 

Net Position at End of Year $ 50,437,540 $ 6,229,162 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT VII 
TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS - PROPRIETARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Business-Type Governmental 

Activities Activities 

Utility Internal 

Commission Service Fund 

Cash Flows from Operating Activities: 
Charges for services and premiums $ 3,903,223 $ 11,855,236 
Payments to suppliers (3,390,467) 
Claims and other expenses paid (11,948,529) 
Payments to employees {1,309,987) 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities (797,231) (93,293) 

Cash Flows from Noncapital Financing Activities: 
Transfers out (14,000) 

Net cash provided by (used in) noncapital financing activities (14,000) 

Cash Flows from Investing Activities: 
Income on investments 2,581 5,069 

Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 2,581 5,069 

Net Increase (Decrease) in Cash and Cash Equivalents (808,650) (88,224) 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year 4,836,350 6,033,778 

Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year $ 4,027,700 $ 5,945,554 

Reconciliation of Operating Income (Loss) to Net Cash Provided by 
(Used in) Operating Activities: 

Operating income (loss) $ (1,638,665) $ 421,444 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 
provided by (used in) operating activities: 

Depreciation and amortization expense 1,808,771 
Change in assets and liabilities: 

(Increase) decrease in accounts receivable 64,933 (14,604) 
(Increase) decrease in interfunds receivable (468,516) 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (40,577) (3,480) 
Increase (decrease) in accrued liabilities (2,742) (34,053) 
Increase (decrease) in interfunds payable (956,218) 
Increase (decrease) in advance collections and deposits (2,989) 5,916 
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences (29,744) 

Total adjustments 841,434 (514,737) 

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities $ (797,231) $ (93,293) 

Noncash Capital and Related Financing Activity: 
Capital contributions from other funds $ 61,130 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION -FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Pension and 

Other 

Employee 

Benefit 

Trust Funds 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 32,954 $ 

Investments: 

Certificates of deposit 

Mutual funds 9,684,009 

Total assets 9,716,963 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 15,896 

Net Position: 

Restricted for OPEB Benefits 9,062,017 

Restricted for Pension Benefits 639,050 

Restricted for Scholarships 

Total Net Position $ 9,701,067 $ 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT VIII 

Custodial 

Fund 

Student 

Scholarship 

24,793 

256,023 

280,816 

280,816 

280,816 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN NET POSITION - FIDUCIARY FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Pension and 

Other 

Employee 

Benefit 

Trust Funds 

Additions: 

Contributions: 

Employer $ 1,527,778 

Other 

Total contributions 1,527,778 

Investment income: 

Net change in fair value of investments 1,977,974 

Total additions 3,505,752 

Deductions: 

Benefit payments 440,917 

Administration 13,546 

Payments to individuals 

Total deductions 454,463 

Change in Net Position 3,051,289 

Net Position at Beginning of Year, as Restated 6,649,778 

Net Position at End of Year $ 9,701,067 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of the financial statements 
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EXHIBIT IX 

Custodial 

Fund 

Student 

Scholarship 

$ 

63,087 

63,087 

745 

63,832 

77,100 

77,100 

(13,268) 

294,084 

$ 280,816 



This page is intentionally left blank. 

 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

1. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entity

The Town was settled in 1646 and incorporated in 1801. The Town operates under a charter and a 
Board of Selectmen, Board of Finance and Representative Town Meeting (RTM) form of government. 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United State of America require that the reporting 
entity include the primary government, organizations for which the primary government is financially 
accountable, and other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the 
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity's financial statements to 
be misleading or incomplete. A government is financially accountable for a legally separate 
organization if it appoints a voting majority of the organization's governing body and there is a potential 
for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or impose specific financial burdens on, 
the government. These criteria have been considered and have resulted in the inclusion of the 
fiduciary component units as detailed below. 

Fiduciary Component Units 

The Town has established a single-employer Public Retirement Systems (PERS) and a postretirement 
retiree health plan (OPES) to provide retirement benefits and post-retirement health care benefits to 
employees and their beneficiaries. The Town appoints a majority of the Pension Board and is required 
to make contributions to the pension and OPEB plans and can impose its will. 

The financial statements of the fiduciary component units are reported as Pension and OPEB Trust 
funds in the fiduciary fund financial statements. Separate financial statements have not been 
prepared for the fiduciary component units. 

8. Basis of Presentation

The accompanying financial statements have been prepared in conformity with accounting principles 
generally accepted in the United States of America (GAAP) as applied to government units. The 
Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard-setting body for 
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The more significant of the 
Town's accounting policies are described below. 

Government-Wide and Fund Financial Statements 

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net position and the statement of 
activities) report information on all of the nonfiduciary activities of the Town. For the most part, the 
effect of interfund activity has been removed from these statements. However, interfund services 
provided and used are not eliminated in the process of consolidation. Governmental activities, which 
are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support. 

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given function 
or segment are offset by program revenues. Direct expenses' are those expenses that are clearly 
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to customers or 
applicants who purchase, use or directly benefit from goods, services or privileges provided by a given 
function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to meeting the operational or 
capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and other items not properly included 
among program revenues are reported instead as general revenues. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprietary funds and fiduciary 
funds, including fiduciary component units, even though the latter are excluded from the government­
wide financial statements. Major individual governmental funds are reported as separate columns in 
the fund financial statements. 

Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation 

The government-wide financial statements are reported using the economic resources measurement 
focus and the accrual basis of accounting, as are the proprietary fund and fiduciary fund financial 
statements. 

Revenues are recorded when earned, and expenses are recorded when a liability is incurred, 
regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized as revenues in the year 
for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as revenue as soon as all eligibility 
requirements imposed by the provider have been met. 

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources 
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as soon 
as they are both measurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. 
For this purpose, the Town considers revenues to be available if they are collected within 60 days after 
the end of the current fiscal period. 

Property taxes, licenses and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all considered to be 
susceptible to accrual and have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal period. In 
determining when to recognize intergovernmental revenues (grants and entitlements), the legal and 
contractual requirements of the individual programs are used as guidance. Revenues are recognized 
when the eligibility requirements have been met. All other revenue items are considered to be 
measurable and available only when cash is received by the Town. 

Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability is incurred, as under accrual accounting. 
However, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures related to capital leases, compensated 
absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when payment is due. 

The Town reports the following major governmental funds: 

The General Fund is the Town's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial resources of the 
Town, except those activities required to be accounted for in another fund. 

The Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund accounts for revenues and expenditures to be 
used for various short-term construction projects funded by the General Fund. 

The Waterford High School Building Project accounts for revenues and expenditures and other 
financing sources for the construction of the High School. 

The American Rescue Funds Grant accounts for revenues and expenditures associated with the 
related funding to support recovery from Covid-19. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Additionally, the Town reports the following major proprietary fund: 

The Utility Commission Fund accounts for the operation and maintenance of the sewer collection 
system, which is owned by the Town and is primarily supported through charges to customers. 

Additionally, the Town reports the following fund types: 

The Internal Service Fund is used to account for the Town's insurance program for health insurance 
coverage of the Town and Board of Education employees. 

The Pension and Other Employee Benefit Trust Funds account for the assets that have been set 
aside in a trust for the employee retirement plan for certain Town employees and assets that have 
been set aside in a trust for other post-employment benefits for certain employees. 

The Custodial Funds account for monies held on behalf of students for scholarships. 

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide 
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the enterprise funds and 
various other function of the government. Elimination of these charges would distort the direct costs 
and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned. 

Amounts reported as program revenues include 1) charges to customers or applicants for goods, 
services or privileges provided, 2) operating grants and contributions, and 3) capital grants and 
contributions, including special assessments. Internally dedicated resources are reported as general 
revenues rather than as program revenues. Likewise, general revenue includes all taxes. 

Proprietary funds distinguish operating revenues and expenses from nonoperating items. Operating 
revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and delivering goods in connection 
with a proprietary fund's principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues of the 
proprietary funds are charges to users for services. Operating expenses for internal service funds 
include the cost of sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All 
revenues and expenses not meeting this definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and 
expenses. 

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the government's policy to 
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed. Unrestricted resources 
are used in the following order: committed, assigned then unassigned. 

C. Cash and Cash Equivalents

The Town classifies money market funds, STIF investments, treasury bills and certificates of deposit 
having original maturities of three months or less when purchased as cash equivalents. The 
Connecticut State Treasurer's Short-Term Investment Fund is an investment pool managed by the 
State of Connecticut Office of the State Treasurer. STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short­
term money market instruments with an average maturity of less than 60 days. Investments must be 
made in instruments authorized by Connecticut General Statutes 3-27c through 3-27e. Investment 
guidelines are adopted by the State Treasurer. The pool is reported at amortized cost. There were no 
limitations or restrictions on any withdrawals due to redemption notice periods, liquidity fees, or 
redemption gates. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

D. Investments

Investments are stated at fair value. 

E. Supplies and Prepaid Items

Supplies consist of United States Department of Agriculture donated commodities are stated at fair 
market value. Supplies are recorded as expenditures when consumed rather than when purchased. 
Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods and are recorded as 
prepaid items in both government-wide and fund financial statements. 

F. Receivables and Payables

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the 
end of the fiscal year is referred to as either "due to/from other funds" (i.e., the current portion of 
interfund loans) or "advances to/from other funds" (i.e., the noncurrent portion of interfund loans). All 
other outstanding balances between funds are reported as "due to/from other funds." 

Advances between funds, as reported in the fund financial statements, are offset by a fund balance 
reserve account in applicable governmental funds to indicate that they are not available for 
appropriation and are not expendable available financial resources. 

Any residual balances outstanding between the governmental activities and the business-type 
activities are reported in the government-wide financial statements as "internal balances." 

In the government-wide financial statements, all trade and property tax receivables are shown net of 
an allowance for uncollectibles. 

G. Capital Assets

Capital assets, which include property, plant, equipment and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, 
bridges, sidewalks and similar items), are reported in the applicable governmental or business-type 
activities columns in the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial 
statements. Capital assets are defined by the Town as assets with an initial individual cost of more 
than $5,000 and an estimated useful life of more than one year. Such assets are recorded at historical 
cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed. Donated capital assets are recorded at 
acquisition value at the date of donation. The costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not 
add to the value of the asset or materially extend lives are not capitalized. 

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as projects are constructed. 

Capital assets of the Town are depreciated using the straight-line method over the following estimated 
useful lives: 

Assets 

Infrastructure: 
Public domain infrastructure 
System infrastructure 

Land and Buildings: 
Land 
Land improvements 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

Buildings 
Building improvements 

Equipment: 
Vehicles 
Office equipment 
Computer equipment 
Machinery and equipment 
Software 

H. Deferred Outflows/Inflows of Resources

25-40
25-40

8 
5-20

5
5-30
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In addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred outflows of 
resources, represents a consumption of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period or 
periods and so will not be recognized as an outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. 
The Town reports a deferred charge on refunding and deferred outflows related to pension and OPEB 
in the government-wide statement of net position. A deferred charge on refunding results from the 
difference in the carrying value of refunded debt and its reacquisition price. This amount is deferred 
and amortized over the shorter of the life of the refunded or refunding debt. A deferred outflow of 
resources related to pension and OPEB results from differences between expected and actual 
experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts are deferred and included in 
pension and OPEB expense in a systematic and rational manner over a period equal to the average of 
the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided with benefits through the 
pension and OPEB plan (active employees and inactive employees). 

In addition to liabilities, the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for 
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element, deferred inflows of 
resources, represents an acquisition of net position or fund balance that applies to a future period or 
periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) until that time. The Town 
reports deferred inflows related to pensions and OPEB in the government-wide statement of net 
position. A deferred inflow of resources related to pension and OPEB results from differences 
between expected and actual experience, changes in assumptions or other inputs. These amounts 
are deferred and included in pension and OPEB expense in a systematic and rational manner over a 
period equal to the average of the expected remaining service lives of all employees that are provided 
with benefits through the pension and OPEB plan (active employees and inactive employees). Also, 
for governmental funds, the Town reports unavailable revenue, which arises only under the modified 
accrual basis of accounting. The governmental funds report unavailable revenues from four sources: 
grants receivable, special assessments, property taxes and interest on property taxes. These 
amounts are deferred and recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue) in the period during which 
the amounts become available. 

I. Net Pension Liability and Net OPEB Liability

The net pension liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits 
that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total pension liability), net of the pension plan's 
fiduciary net position. The pension plan's fiduciary net position is determined using the same valuation 
methods that are used by the pension plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net 
position. The net pension liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the 
end of the employer's prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period. 

The net OPEB liability is measured as the portion of the actuarial present value of projected benefits 
that is attributed to past periods of employee service (total OPEB liability), net of the OPEB plan's 
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

, JUNE 30, 2021 

fiduciary net position. The OPEB plan's fiduciary net position is determined using the same valuation 
methods that are used by the OPEB plan for purposes of preparing its statement of fiduciary net 
position. The net OPEB liability is measured as of a date (measurement date) no earlier than the end 
of the employer's prior fiscal year, consistently applied from period to period. 

J. Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund types in the fund financial 
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the applicable 
governmental activities, business-type activities or proprietary fund type statement of net position. 
Bond premiums and discounts are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective 
interest method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. 
Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt 
service expenses in the period incurred. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and discounts, as 
well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is reported as 
other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other financing 
sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance costs, 
whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt service 
expenditures. 

K. Compensated Absences

Town and Board of Education employees accumulate vacation and sick leave hours for subsequent 
use or for payment upon termination or retirement. Vacation and sick leave expenses to be paid in 
future period are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary financial statements. 
A liability for these amounts is reported in governmental funds only for amounts that have become 
due. The general fund is typically used to liquidate the liability. 

L. Equity

Equity in the government-wide financial statements is defined as "net position" and is classified in the 
following categories: 

Net Investment in Capital Assets 
This component of net position consists of capital assets, net of accumulated depreciation and 
reduced by the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes or other borrowings that are attributable to 
the acquisition, construction or improvement of those assets. 

Restricted Net Position 
Restricted net position contains assets subject to restrictions that are externally imposed by creditors 
(such as through debt covenants), grantors, contributors or laws or regulations of other governments 
or imposed by law through constitutional provisions or enabling legislation. 

Unrestricted Net Position 
This component consists of net position that does not meet the definition of "restricted" or "net 
investment in capital assets." 

The equity of the fund financial statements is defined as "fund balance" and is classified in the 
following categories: 
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Nonspendable Fund Balance' 
This component represents amounts that cannot be spent due to form (e.g., inventories and prepaid 
amounts). 

Restricted Fund Balance 
This component represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by external parties, such as 
granters, creditors, contributors, or laws and regulations of their governments. 

Committed Fund Balance 
This component represents amounts constrained for a specific purpose by a government using its 
highest level of decision-making authority (Town of Waterford Representative Town Meeting) in the 
form of an ordinance. Once adopted, the limitation imposed by the ordinance remains in place until 
a similar action is taken to remove or revise the limitation. 

Assigned Fund Balance 
This balance represents amounts constrained for the intent to be used for a specific purpose by a 
governing body or board or official that has been delegated authority to assign amounts by the Town 
Charter. The Finance Director has been delegated authority to assign amounts. 

Unassigned Fund Balance 
This component represents fund balance in the General Fund in excess of nonspendable, restricted, 
committed and assigned fund balance. If another governmental fund has a fund balance deficit, it is 
reported as a negative amount in unassigned fund balance. 

M. Property Taxes

The Town's property tax is levied each June on the assessed value listed on the prior October 1 
Grand List for all taxable property located in the Town and are computed at 70% of market value. 
Although taxes are levied in June, the legal right to attach property does not exist until July 1. Taxes 
are due and payable in two installments on the following July 1 and January 1. Interest of 1 ½ percent 
per month is charged on delinquent taxes. The Town files liens against property if taxes that are due 
July 1 remain unpaid on the following June 30. Liens are effective on the attachment date and are 
continued by filing prior to the following levy date. 

Additional supplemental property taxes are assessed for motor vehicles registered subsequent to the 
Grand List date through July 31 and are payable in one installment due January 1. 

Property tax revenues are recognized when they become available. Available means due or past due 
and receivable within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough thereafter to be used 
to pay liabilities of the current period. The Town defines the current period to mean within 60 days 
after year end. Property taxes receivable not expected to be collected during the available period are 
reflected in unavailable revenue in the fund financial statements. The entire receivable is recorded as 
revenue in the government-wide financial statements. Property taxes collected prior to June 30 that 
are applicable to the subsequent years' assessment are reflected as advance tax collections in both 
the fund financial statements and the government-wide financial statements. 

N. Accounting Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the 
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date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the 
reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

0. Subsequent Events Evaluation by Management

Management has evaluated subsequent events for disclosure and/or recognition in the financial 
statements through December 17, 2021, the date that the financial statements were available to be 
issued. 

2. STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budgetary Information

Formal legally adopted annual budgets are employed as a management control device in the General 
Fund. Project-length budgets are employed in the Capital Projects Funds. All unencumbered 
appropriations lapse at year end. 

The Town uses the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data included in the financial 
statements. Those boards seeking appropriations, with the exception of the Board of Education, make 
their budgetary requests to the Board of Selectmen by a date designated by the Board. During the 
months of January and February, the Board of Selectmen conducts budget hearings with the 
requesting agencies. The Board of Selectmen will take action on these requests no later than the 
second week in February and forward the budgets and its recommendation for funding to the Board of 
Finance. During the month of March, the Board of Finance conducts budget hearings with the 
requesting departments, Boards, Commissions and Agencies including the Board of Education. The 
Board of Finance then conducts a public hearing to determine the budget it will recommend to the 
RTM. This recommendation cannot exceed the recommended level of appropriation by the Board of 
Selectmen unless a departmental appeal is made to them based upon the action of the Board of 
Selectmen in a timeframe approved by Ordinance. The RTM holds its annual budget meeting the first 
Monday in May and acts upon the recommended budget as submitted by the Board of Finance 
inclusive of the Board of Education. The RTM cannot increase the level of appropriation 
recommended by the Board of Finance unless a departmental appeal is made to them from the action 
of the Board of Finance in a timeframe approved by Ordinance. The annual budget meeting legally 
appropriates this budget to departmental line items for expenditures and transfers. The Board of 
Finance then sets a tax mill rate for the ensuing fiscal year based upon this level of budget. 

Town management may transfer amounts within the series level within a department with Commission 
or Board approval, but only the Board of Finance is authorized to transfer the legally budgeted 
amounts between series within or between departmental accounts. In this function, series within the 
various departments serve as the level of management control. 

The Superintendent of Schools is authorized to make limited line item transfers under emergency 
circumstances where the urgent need for the transfer prevents the Board of Education from meeting in 
a timely fashion to consider the transfer. Any such transfer shall be announced at the next regularly 
scheduled meeting of the Board. 

The Town's budgeting system requires accounting for certain transactions to be on a basis other than 
GAAP. The major difference between the budgetary and GAAP basis is that encumbrances are 
recognized as a charge against a budget appropriation in the year in which the purchase order is 
issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year end are recorded in budgetary reports as 
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expenditures of the current year, whereas, on a GAAP basis, encumbrances are recorded as assigned 
fund balance. 

Summarizations of the amended budget approved by the RTM for the "budgetary" General Fund is 
presented. During the year, supplemental budgetary appropriations of $41,100 were made. 

As explained above, the Town's budgetary fund structure accounts for certain transactions differently 
from that utilized in reporting in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles. 

The differences between the budgetary and GAAP basis of accounting are as follows: 

• Encumbrances are recognized as valid and proper charges against budget appropriations in the year
in which the purchase order is issued and, accordingly, encumbrances outstanding at year end are
reflected in budgetary reports as expenditures in the current year but are shown as an assigned fund
balance on a GAAP basis.

• State of Connecticut Teachers' Retirement System pension and OPEB contributions made on-behalf
of the Town of Waterford for teachers' pension and OPEB benefits are reported for GAAP purposes
only.

• Excess Cost - Student based grant is credited against the Board of Education's operating budget.

• Bond Refundings - Proceeds from principal and premium received through bond refundings, as well
as the cost of bond issuance costs and payments made to bond escrow agents during the bond
refunding are recorded for GAAP purposes only.

• GASB 54 Funds - Certain funds are consolidated with the general fund following the guidance of
GASB 54, Fund Balance Reporting and Government Fund Type Definitions. These funds do not
have legally adopted budgets but are recorded with the general fund for GAAP purposes.

Encumbrance accounting is employed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g., purchase orders, 
contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as assigned fund balances and do not constitute 
expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be honored during the subsequent year. 

B. Deficit Fund Equity

The following funds had deficit fund balances at year end: 

Fund 

Waterford High School Building Project 

Historic Preservation Enhancement Grant 

Nuclear Safety Emergency Preparedness 

Amount 

$ 2,941,627 

5,000 

84,798 

These deficits will be eliminated in future years by grants and when permanent financing is obtained. 

3. CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

The deposit of public funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-402). 
Deposits may be made in a "qualified public depository" as defined by Statute, or, in amounts not 
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exceeding the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation insurance limit, in an "out of state bank" as 
defined by the Statutes, which is not a "qualified public depository." 

The Town and the Pension and OPEB Trust Funds have a policy for investments which is governed by 
State Statutes. The Connecticut General Statutes (Section 7-400) permit municipalities to invest in: 
1) obligations of the United States and its agencies, 2) highly rated obligations of any state of the
United States or of any political subdivision, authority or agency thereof, and 3) shares or other
interests in custodial arrangements or pools maintaining constant net asset values and in highly rated
no-load open end money market and mutual funds (with constant or fluctuating net asset values)
whose portfolios are limited to obligations of the United States and its agencies, and repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such obligations. Other provisions of the Statutes cover specific
municipal funds with particular investment authority. The provisions of the Statutes regarding the
investment of municipal pension funds do not specify permitted investments. Therefore, investment of
such funds is generally controlled by the laws applicable to fiduciaries and the provisions of the
applicable plan.

The Statutes (Sections 3-24f and 3-27f) also provide for investment in shares of the State Short-Term 
Investment Fund (STIF). STIF is an investment pool of high-quality, short-term money market 
instruments with an average maturity of less than 60 days which is under the control of the State 
Treasurer, with oversight provided by the Treasurer's Cash Management Advisory Board, and are 
regulated under the State Statutes and subject to annual audit by the Auditors of Public Accounts. 
Investment yields are accounted for on an amortized-cost basis with an investment portfolio that is 
designed to attain a market-average rate of return throughout budgetary and economic cycles. 
Investors accrue interest daily based on actual earnings, less expenses and transfers to the 
designated surplus reserve, and the fair value of the position in the pool is the same as the value of 
the pool shares. There were no limitations or restrictions on any withdrawals due to redemption notice 
periods, liquidity fees, or redemption gates. 

Deposits 

Deposit Custodial Credit Risk 
Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of a bank failure, the Town's deposits will not be 
returned. The Town does not have a deposit policy for custodial credit risk. The deposit of public 
funds is controlled by the Connecticut General Statutes. Deposits may be placed with any qualified 
public depository that has its main place of business in the State of Connecticut. Connecticut General 
Statutes require that each depository maintain segregated collateral (not required to be based on a 
security agreement between the depository and the municipality and, therefore, not perfected in 
accordance with federal law) in an amount equal to a defined percentage of its public deposits based 
upon the depository's risk-based capital ratio. 

Based on the criteria described in GASB Statement No. 40, Deposits and Investment Risk 
Disclosures, $23,178,450 of the Town's bank balance of $28,781,931 was exposed to custodial credit 
risk as follows: 

Uninsured and uncollateralized 
Uninsured and collateral held by the pledging bank's 

trust department, not in the Town's name 

Total Amount Subject to Custodial Credit Risk 
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Cash Equivalents 

At June 30, 2021, the Town's cash equivalents amounted to $36,075,057. The following table 
provides a summary of the Town's cash equivalents (excluding U.S. government guaranteed 
obligations) as rated by nationally recognized statistical rating organizations. 

State Short-Term Investment Fund (STIF) 
Money Market Funds 

Investments 

Standard 
& Poor's 

AAAm 
Not Rated 

Fitch 
Ratings 

As of June 30, 2021, the Town had the following investments: 

Interest-bearing investments: 
Certificates of deposit* $ 
U.S. Government securities 

Other investments: 
Mutual funds 

Total Investments $ 

Fair Value 

4,918,942 $ 
1,322,515 

10,106,632 

16,348,089 

Investment Maturities (Years) 
Less Than 1 1 - 10 More Than 1 O 

4,918,942 $ $ 
1,322,515 

* Subject to coverage by Federal Depository Insurance and Collateralization.

Presented below is the rating of investments for each debt investment type: 

U.S. 

Average Government Certificates 

Rating Securities of Deposit 

Aaa $ 1,322,515 $ 
Not Rated 4,918,942 

$ 1,322,515 $ 4,918,942 

The Town categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by 
generally accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy gives the highest priority to unadjusted 
quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (Level 1 measurements); followed by 
quoted prices in inactive markets or for similar assets or with observable inputs (Level 2 
measurements); and the lowest priority to unobservable inputs (Level 3 measurements). The Town 
has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2021: 
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Investments by fair value level: 
Mutual funds 
U.S. Government securities 

Fair Value 

$ 10,106,632 $ 
1,322,515 

Level 1 

10,106,632 $ 
1,322,515 

Level2 Level3 

$ 

Mutual funds and U.S. Government Securities are classified in Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy and 
are valued using prices quoted in active markets for those securities. 

Interest Rate Risk 

The Town, Pension and OPEB plans have a policy that limits investing in short-term securities, money 
market funds or similar investment pools, and limiting the average maturity in the portfolio in 
accordance with this policy will minimize interest rate risk. 

Credit Risk - Investments 

The Town does not have an investment policy that would limit its investment choices due to credit risk, 
other than State Statutes governing investments in obligations of any State or political subdivision or in 
obligations of the State of Connecticut or political subdivision. 

Concentration of Credit Risk 

The Town and pension plan do have a policy that limits that amounts invested in any one issuer to no 
more than 15% from a specific issuer or business sector ( except U.S. Treasuries or Connecticut Short 
Term Investment Funds), which is to maintain a diversified portfolio to minimize the risk of loss 
resulting from over-concentration of assets in a specific issuer. 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk for an investment is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty (the 
institution that pledges collateral or repurchase agreement securities to the Town or that sells 
investments to or buys them for the Town), the Town will not be able to recover the value of its 
investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Town does not 
have a policy for custodial credit risk. At June 30, 2021, the Town did not have any uninsured and 
unregistered securities held by the counterparty, or by its trust department or agent, that were not in 
the Town's name. 
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4. RECEIVABLES

Receivables as of year-end for the Town's individual major funds and nonmajor, internal service and 
fiduciary funds in the aggregate, including the applicable allowances for uncollectible accounts, are as 
follows: 

Capital and 

Nonrecurring Nonmajor 

General Expenditures Utility and Other 

Fund Fund Commission Funds Total 

Receivables: 
Property taxes $ 1,063,782 $ $ $ $ 1,063,782 
Interest 538,287 538,287 
Accounts 216,711 380 1,599,906 50,281 1,867,278 
Intergovernmental 134,070 249,739 658,737 1,042,546 
Assessment charges 25,838 25,838 

Gross receivables 1,978,688 250,119 1,599,906 709,018 4,537,731 

Less allowance for 
uncollectibles (113,549) (3,193) (116,742) 

Net Total Receivables $ 1,865,139 $ 250,119 $ 1,599,906 $ 705,825 $ 4,420,989 
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5. CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

Beginning 

Balance 

Governmental activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 8,957,250 
Permanent easements 5,000 
Construction in progress 9,305,951 

Total capital assets not being depreciated 18,268,201 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Land improvements 3,512,754 
Buildings and improvements 239,761,606 
Vehicles 16,695,357 
Machinery and equipment 15,367,105 
Infrastructure 104,265,607 
Software 554,969 

Total capital assets being depreciated 380,157,398 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Land improvements (1,969,899) 
Buildings and improvements (79,480,972) 
Vehicles (10,871,753) 
Machinery and equipment (12,397,513) 
Infrastructure (49,353,794) 
Software (461,068) 

Total accumulated depreciation (154,534,999) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 225,622,399 

Governmental Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 243,890,600 

Business-type activities: 
Capital assets not being depreciated: 

Land $ 127,970 

Capital assets being depreciated: 
Buildings and improvements 1,383,627 
Vehicles 814,175 
Machinery and equipment 1,105,920 
Infrastructure 96,017,268 
Software 19,000 

Total capital assets being depreciated 99,339,990 

Less accumulated depreciation for: 
Buildings and improvements (405,000) 
Vehicles (587,295) 
Machinery and equipment (437,977) 
Infrastructure (50,608,528) 
Software (11,454) 

Total accumulated depreciation (52,050,254) 

Total capital assets being depreciated, net 47,289,736 

Business-Type Activities Capital Assets, Net $ 47,417,706 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

37 

Increases 

24,695 $ 

110,809 
135,504 

572,246 
4,371,072 

702,333 
156,890 
524,506 

8,300 
6,335,347 

(120,157) 
(5,580,743) 

(984,671) 
(607,630) 

(1,746,958) 
(13,535) 

(9,053,694) 

(2,718,347) 

(2,582,843) $ 

$ 

61,130 

61,130 

(34,590) 
(25,169) 
(76,504) 

(1,671,242) 
(1,266) 

(1,808,771) 

(1,747,641) 

(1,747,641) $ 

Decreases 

$ 

(36,500) 
(36,500) 

(242,278) 

(1,024,453) 
(52,320) 

(320,728) 

(1,639,779) 

242,278 

1,001,954 
52,320 

204,370 

1,500,922 

(138,857) 

(175,357) $ 

$ 

(35,664) 

(35,664) 

35,664 

35,664 

- $ 

Ending 

Transfers Balance 

$ 8,981,945 
5,000 

(8,992,479) 387,781 
(8,992,479) 9,374,726 

3,842,722 
8,992,479 253,125,157 

16,373,237 
15,471,675 

104,469,385 
563,269 

8,992,479 393,845,445 

(1,847,778) 
(85,061,715) 
(10,854,470) 
(12,952,823) 
(50,896,382) 

(474,603) 
(162,087,771) 

8,992,479 231,757,674 

- $ 241, 132,400 

$ 127,970 

1,383,627 
839,641 

1,105,920 
96,017,268 

19,000 
99,365,456 

(439,590) 
(576,800) 
(514,481) 

(52,279,770) 
(12,720) 

(53,823,361) 

45,542,095 

- $ 45,670,065 
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Depreciation expense was charged to functions/programs of the primary government as follows: 

Governmental activities: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Library 
Social services 
Education 

Total Depreciation Expense - Governmental Activities 

Business-type activities: 
Utility Commission 

Construction Commitments 

$ 237,459 
804,429 

2,310,173 
345,197 

21,650 
115,719 

5,219,067 

$ 9,053,694 

$ 1,808,771 

The Town has active construction projects as of June 30, 2021. At year end, the Town's commitments 
are as follows: 

Remaining 

Project Spent-to-Date Commitment 

Recreation projects $ 208,228 $ 160,603 
Department of Public Works projects 16,660,319 842,150 

Total $ 16,868,547 $ 1,002,753 

The commitments are being financed with General Fund and Capital Projects Fund appropriations and 
state and federal grants and bonding. 

6. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS

The composition of interfund balances as of June 30, 2021 is as follows: 

Receivable Entity Payable Entity Amount 

General Fund Capital and Nonrecurring Expenditures Fund $ 550,846 
General Fund Waterford High School Building Project 2,942,807 
General Fund Nonmajor Governmental Funds 662,904 
General Fund Utility Commission 214,386 
American Rescue Fund General Fund 2,773,945 
Nonmajor Governmental Funds General Fund 1,766,211 
Internal Service Fund General Fund 934,914 

$ 9,846,013 
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lnterfund receivables and payables generally represent temporary balances arising from 
reimbursement-type transactions. 

lnterfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Transfers In 

Capital and 

Nonrecurring Nonmajor Total 

General Expenditures Governmental Transfers 

Fund Fund Funds Out 

Transfers: 

General Fund $ $ 1,401,280 $ 2,269,630 $ 3,670,910 

Nonmajor Governmental Funds 129,941 129,941 

Total Transfers In $ 129,941 $ 1,401,280 $ 2,269,630 $ 3,800,851 

lnterfund transfers arose from appropriating General Fund amounts to the Nonrecurring Capital 
Projects Fund and various nonmajor governmental funds. Also, the Utility Commission transferred 
$14,000 of capital assets to the General Fund. There were also transfer out of the Capital 
Improvement Fund of $129,941 into the General Fund for unused appropriations. 
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7. LONG-TERM DEBT

Changes in Long-Term Liabilities 

Long-term liability activity for the year ended June 30, 2021 was as follows: 

Beginning 

Balance Additions Reductions 

Bonds payable: 
General obligation bonds $ 63,030,000 $ 42,545,000 $ 32,760,000 
Premium on bonds 4,628,599 1,441,884 1,439,595 

Total bonds payable 67,658,599 43,986,884 34,199,595 

Bond anticipation notes* 
Bond anticipation note principal 10,000,000 10,000,000 
Premium on bond anticipation notes 93,500 93,500 

Total bond anticipation notes 10,093,500 10,093,500 

Other liabilities: 
Net OPES liability 17,291,575 597,814 

Landfill post-closure monitoring 271,000 24,000 
Compensated absences 7,239,502 499,147 

Net pension liability 31,574,561 2,206,049 

Prior service cost (MERS) 835,265 417,364 

Total Governmental Activities 
Long-Term Liabilities $ 134,964,002 $ 46,192,933 $ 45,831,420 

Business-type activities: 
Compensated absences $ 345,395 $ - $ 29,744 

Ending Due Within 
Balance One Year 

$ 72,815,000 $ 5,840,000 
4,630,888 

77,445,888 5,840,000 

16,693,761 
247,000 21,000 

6,740,355 1,093,829 

33,780,610 
417,901 417,364 

$ 135,325,515 $ 7,372,193 

$ 315,651 $ 17,785 

* Bond anticipation notes above consists of notes for which long-term debt was issued to replace the notes during the year ended June 30, 2021

Compensated absences, net pension liability and net OPES liability are generally liquidated by the 
General Fund. 

General Obligation Bonds 

The Town issues general obligation bonds to provide funds for the acquisition and construction of 
major capital facilities. 

General obligation bonds are direct obligations of the Town for which full faith and credit are pledged 
and are payable from taxes levied on all taxable properties located within the Town. The Town is 
liable for all outstanding bonds. General obligation bonds currently outstanding are as follows: 

Maturity Original Date of Date of Interest Balance 
Descrietion Ranges Amount Issue Maturi� Rate June 30, 2021 

Governmental activities: 
Schools: 

Clark Lane School $800,000 -$850,000 $ 9,440,000 12129/2014 8/15/2026 3.0%-5.0% $ 5,010,000 
Great Neck Elementary $655,000 - $960,000 9,085,000 12/18/2019 8/1/2030 4.0%-5.0% 8,430,000 
Waterford High School $1,355,000 -$2,000,000 33,750,000 3/15/2013 8/15/2032 2.0%-4.0% 1,755,000 
School Issue of2014 $640,000 -$940,000 15,930,000 3/17/2014 3/15/2034 3.0%-4.0% 1,660,000 
School Issue of 2017 $185,000 -$2,830,000 14,585,000 6/21/2017 6/30/2031 2.0%-5.0% 13,415,000 
Municipal Complex $680,000 -$685,000 13,655,000 7/23/2020 9/15/2040 2.0%-5.0% 13,655,000 
School Refunding $905,000 -$3,195,000 28,890,000 12/30/2020 8/15/2033 0.3%-2.0% 28,890,000 

$ 72,815,000 
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General Obligation Bonds - Advance Refundings 

On December 30, 2020, the Town issued $28,890,000 in general obligation bonds, with an average 
interest rate of 1.47% to refund outstanding bonds with an average rate of 3.21 %. The bonds refunded 
were $17,585,000 of outstanding 2013 general obligation bonds and $10,115,000 of outstanding 2014 
general obligation bonds. The net proceeds of $28,679,460 (after payment of issuance costs of 
$206,670) were deposited with an escrow agent in an irrevocable trust fund. The proceeds were used 
to buy a portfolio of direct obligations of, or obligations guaranteed by, the United States of America to 
provide all future debt service payments on the refunded bonds. The refunded bonds are considered 
defeased and the liability for those bonds has been removed from the statement of net position. The 
transaction generated a cash flow savings of $2,604,150 and a present value savings of $2,413,272. 

In addition to the above, in prior years the Town defeased various bond issues by creating separate 
irrevocable trust funds. New debt has been issued and the proceeds have been used to purchase 
government obligations that were placed in the trust funds. The investments and fixed earnings from 
the investments are sufficient to fully service the defeased debt until the debt is called or matures. The 
balance in escrow was $32,346,719 as of June 30, 2021. The balance of the defeased bonds was 
$31,700,000 at June 30, 2021. 

Annual debt service requirements to maturity for general obligation bonds are as follows: 

Fiscal Year Ending June 30, 

2022 
2023 
2024 
2025 
2026 
2027-2031 
2032-2036 
2037-2041 

Total 

Landfill Post-Closure Care Costs 

Governmental Activities 
Principal Interest 

$ 5,840,000 $ 2,094,633 
5,310,000 1,887,459 
6,450,000 1,698,250 
6,595,000 1,514,746 
6,645,000 1,319,500 

28,425,000 3,372,469 
10,150,000 690,804 
3,400,000 180,200 

72,815,000 
$ =========== 

$ 12,758,061 

Effective January 1, 2002, the Town's Miner Lane landfill was closed. The cost of the ongoing 
maintenance of the cap and the Department of Energy and Environmental Protection requirement for 
water quality testing over a 30-year period is estimated to be approximately $21,000 a year. 
Accordingly, the Town has recorded a liability in the government-wide financial statements of 
$247,000. 

Authorized But Unissued 

The total of authorized but unissued bonds at June 30, 2021 is approximately $8,592,000. In most 
cases, interim financing is obtained through bond anticipation notes or other short-term borrowings 
until the issuance of long-term debt. 
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Debt Limitation 

The Town's indebtedness does not exceed the legal debt limitations as required by the Connecticut 
General Statutes as reflected in the following schedule (in thousands): 

Debt 
Category Limit Indebtedness Balance 

General purpose $ 208,546 $ 15,000 $ 193,546 
Schools 417,092 66,407 350,685 
Sewers 347,576 347,576 
Urban renewal 301,233 301,233 
Pension deficit 278,061 278,061 

The total overall statutory debt limit for the Town is equal to seven times annual receipts from taxation, 
or $648,806,802. 
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8. FUND BALANCE

The components of fund balance for the governmental funds as of June 30, 2021 are as follows: 

Capital and Waterford 

Nonrecurring High School American Nonmajor 

General Expenditures Building Rescue Governmental 

Fund Fund Project Fund Funds Total 

Fund balances: 
Nonspendable: 

Inventory $ $ $ $ $ 9,101 $ 9,101 
Prepaid expenditures 21,624 1,309 22,933 
Non-spendable trust 144,021 144,021 

Restricted for: 
General government 54,939 54,939 
Public safety 32,186 32,186 
Public works 514,384 514,384 
Recreation 57,103 57,103 
Social services 238,244 238,244 
Education 63,757 63,757 

Committed to: 
Public works 632,093 632,093 
Other capital projects 7,797,327 5,059,707 12,857,034 
Education 265,895 265,895 

Assigned to: 
General government 87,912 87,912 
Public safety 44,038 44,038 
Public works 2,213 2,213 
Recreation 24,733 24,733 
Education 620,423 620,423 

Unassigned 22,981,081 (2,941,627} (91,107} 19,948,347 

Total Fund Balances $ 23,782,024 $ 7,797,327 $ (2,941,627) $ - $ 6,981,632 $ 35,619,356 

As discussed in Note 2.A., budgetary information, under budgetary basis of accounting encumbrance 
accounting, is utilized to the extent necessary to assure effective budgetary control and accountability 
and to facilitate effective cash planning and control. As of June 30, 2021, the amount of General Fund 
encumbrances expected to be honored upon performance by the vendor in the next year totaled 
$641,833. 
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9. TAX ABATEMENTS

As of June 30, 2021, the Town provides tax abatements through multiple programs: 

• AHEPA 250-11 Inc.
• Twin Haven, Inc.

The AHEPA 250-11 Inc. (AHEPA) tax abatement agreement provides a real property tax abatement on 
certain property within the Town for the purpose of providing housing to the low or moderate-income 
elderly and handicapped, as allowed under Chapter 133 of the Connecticut General Statutes Section 
8-215 and 8-216. Eligibility for the abatement is predicated on AHEPA limiting occupancy in the
premises to those meeting the criteria for low or moderate-income elderly and handicapped individuals
in addition to maintaining a contracted standard of housing for the property. The agreement allows for
an abatement over a five-year period to end on June 27, 2019, if not extended, and is determined by
the percentage of the annual Town levy that is expended for education. For the year ended June 30,
2021, taxes abated through this agreement totaled $28,265. There are no provisions to recapture
abated taxes under this program. No other commitments have been made by the Town to the
abatement recipient under this agreement.

The Twin Haven, Inc. (Twin Haven) tax abatement agreement provides a real property tax abatement 
on certain property within the Town for the purpose of providing housing to the low or moderate­
income elderly, as allowed under Chapter 133 of the Connecticut General Statutes Section 8-215. 
Eligibility for the abatement is predicated on Twin Haven limiting occupancy in the premises to those 
meeting the criteria for low or moderate-income elderly individuals in addition to maintaining a 
contracted standard of housing for the property. The abatement term is over a five-year period to end 
on June 30, 2021, if not extended, and is determined by the percentage of the annual Town levy that 
is expended for education. For the year ended June 30, 2021, taxes abated through this agreement 
totaled $25,526. There are no provisions to recapture abated taxes under this program. No other 
commitments have been made by the Town to the abatement recipient under this agreement. 

10. EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT SYSTEMS AND PENSION PLANS

A. Pension Trust Fund

Plan Description 

The Town maintains a single-employer defined benefit pension plan (the Plan). The Plan was 
established and is administered by the Town. The Plan covers employees who retired or terminated in 
a vested status prior to State of Connecticut Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS) 
participation. There are no contributions required from the members. The Town is required to 
contribute the amounts necessary to finance the benefits for the participants in this Plan. The Plan is 
considered to be part of the Town's financial reporting entity and is included in the Town's financial 
reports as a Pension Trust Fund. The Plan does not issue a separate stand-alone financial report. 

The Plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits to plan members and their beneficiaries. 
The Plan is closed to new members. All eligible full-time employees have the option of enrolling in the 
MERS plan. 
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Benefit Provisions 

Members who retired at normal retirement date (age 62 and 15 years of service) receive benefits 
equal to 1.5% of final average earnings (the average of the highest 5 years within the last 10 years) 
per year of service, limited to 30 years. Members who retired at service retirement date (age 50 and 
25 years of service) receive benefits equal to 2% of final average earnings per year of service, limited 
to 30 years, until/age 62. Members who retired at early retirement date (age 57 and 15 years of 
service) could elect to receive benefits accrued to that date, reduced by .4167% for each month prior 
to normal retirement date, or to defer benefits until normal retirement date with no reduction. Benefit 
provisions are established and can be amended by the Representative Town Meeting. 

Plan Administration 

The general administration and management of the pension plan and the responsibility for carrying out 
the provision of the plan shall be placed with the Retirement Commission. The Retirement 
Commission is made up as follows: 

• A member of the Board of Police Commissioners to be appointed by the Board of Police
Commissioners, annually;

• A member of the Board of Selectmen to be appointed by the Board of Selectmen, annually;

• A member of the Board of Education to be appointed by the Board of Education, annually;

• A member of the Board of Finance to be appointed by the Board of Finance, biennially, for a two­
year term, subsequent to December 1st but no later than December 31st of each odd-numbered year;

• Two members of the Representative Town Meeting to be appointed by the Representative Town
Meeting biennially, for a two-year term at the regularly scheduled December meeting of each odd­
numbered year, and;

• A member of the fire service to be appointed by the Director of Fire Services, annually.

Plan membership consisted of the following at July 1, 2019, the date of the latest actuarial valuation: 

Retirees, disabled employees and beneficiaries currently receiving benefits 
Terminated plan members entitled to benefits but not yet receiving them 
Active members 

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 

Basis of Accounting 

10 

10 

The Plan's financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis of accounting. Plan member and 
employer contributions are recognized as revenues when due in accordance with the terms of the 
Plan. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due and payable in accordance with the terms of the 
Plan. Administrative costs are paid from pension fund resources. 
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Method Used to Value Investments 
Investments are reported at fair value. Securities traded on a national exchange are valued at the last 
reported sales price. Investment income is recognized as earned. 

Funding Policy 
There are no active employees of the Plan. Contributions required for the year ended June 30, 2021 
were $59,870, with contributions of $82,000 made by the Town. Excess assets in the Plan may be 
used to fund past service costs for employees who transferred to MERS. 

Investments 

Investment Policy 
The Plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be amended. 

The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a building­
block method in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, 
net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. Best 
estimates of the real rates of return for each major asset class are included in the pension plan's target 
asset allocation as of June 30, 2021, and are summarized in the following table. 

The following was the Retirement Commission's adopted asset allocation policy and the long-term 
expected real rate of return as of June 30, 2021: 

Long-Term 

Target Expected Real 

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return 

Large cap domestic equity 17.5% 5.00% 
Small cap domestic equity 7.5% 5.55% 
Developed international equity 20.0% 5.35% 
Emerging international equity 5.0% 6.30% 
Fixed income 50.0% 1.60% 

Total 100.0% 

Rate of Return 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on pension plan 
investments, net of pension plan investment expense, was 20.68%. The money-weighted rate of 
return expresses investment performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing 
amounts actually invested. 

Net Pension Liability of the Town 

The components of the net pension liability of the Town at June 30, 2021 were as follows: 

Total pension liability 

Plan fiduciary net position 
$ 931,582 

639,050 

Net Pension Liability $ 292,532 
===::i::::::::= 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 68.60% 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2019 using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

2.60% Cost-of-living adjustments 

Actuarial cost method 
Investment rate of return 

Entry age normal 

6.25%, compounded annually 

Plan mortality rates were based on the Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount-Weighted Mortality 
Tables (with separate tables for General Employees, Public Safety and Teachers), projected to the 
valuation date with Scale MP-2019. 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.25%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference 
between actuarially determined contribution rates and the member rate. Based on those assumptions, 
the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future 
benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on 
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the 
total pension liability. 

Changes in the Net Pension Liability 

Balances as of July 1, 2020 

Changes for the year: 

Interest on total pension liability 

Employer contributions 

Net investment income 

Benefit payments, including refund to employee contributions 

Administrative expenses 

Net changes 

Balances as of June 30, 2021 
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$ 

$ 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total Pension 

Liability 
(a) 

969,081 $ 

57,640 

(95,139) 

(37,499) 

931,582 $ 

Plan Fiduciary 
Net Position 

(b) 

Net Pension 
Liability 
(a)-(b) 

540,447 $ 428,634 
-----'---

82,000 

117,497 

(95,139) 

(5,755) 

98,603 

57,640 

(82,000) 

(117,497) 

5,755 

(136,102) 

639,050 $ 292,532 
===== 
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the net pension liability of the Town, calculated using the current discount rate, 
as well as what the Town's net pension liability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that
is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current rate: 

Net Pension Liability 

1% Decrease 
(5.25%) 

$ 362,462 

Current 

Discount Rate 
(6.25%) 

$ 292,532 

1% Increase 
(7.25%) 

$ 231,213 

Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources 
Related to Pensions 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense of $12,190. At June 30, 
2021, the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
pension from the following sources: 

Net difference between projected and 
actual earning on pension plan investments $ 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

64,243 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pension will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Year Ending June 30 

2022
2023
2024 
2025 

Total 
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Governmental 
Activities 

$ (14,486)
(16,082)
(16,815) 
(16,860) 

$ (64,243) 
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Schedule of Plan Net Position - June 30, 2021 

Assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments: 

Mutual funds 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 
Accounts and other payables 

Net Position: 

Restricted for Pension Benefits 

Pension 

Trust Fund 

$ 28,320 

612,131 

640,451 

1,401 

$ 639,050 

Schedule of Changes in Plan Net Position for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employer 

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 
Administration 

Total deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 

Net Position at End of Year 
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$ 

Pension 

Trust Fund 

82,000 

117,497 

199,497 

95,139 
5,755 

100,894 

98,603 

540,447 

$ 639,050 
===== 
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B. Municipal Employees' Retirement System

Plan Description 

Certain employees of the Town of Waterford, Connecticut and Waterford Public Schools participate in 
the Municipal Employees' Retirement System (MERS). MERS is a cost-sharing multiple-employer 
public employee retirement system established by the State of Connecticut and administered by the 
State Retirement Commission to provide pension benefits to employees of participating municipalities. 
Chapters 7-425 to 7-451 of the State of Connecticut General Statutes, which can be amended by 
legislative action, establishes MERS benefits, member contribution rates and other plan provisions. 
MERS is considered to be part of the Sate of Connecticut's financial reporting entity and is included in 
the State's financial reports as a pension trust fund. Those reports can be obtained at www.ct.gov. 

Benefit Provisions 

The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits and annual cost-of-living adjustments to 
plan members and their beneficiaries. Employees are eligible to retire at age 55 with 5 years of 
continuous active service, or 15 year of active noncontinuous aggregate service. In addition, 
compulsory retirement is at age 65 for police and fire members. Employees under the age of 55 are 
eligible to retire with 25 years of service. 

Normal Retirement 
For members not covered by social security, retirement benefits are calculated as 2% of the average 
of the three highest paid years of service times the years of service. For members covered by social 
security, retirement benefits are calculated as 1 1/2% of the average of the three highest paid years of 
service not in excess of the year's breakpoint plus 2% of average of the three highest paid years of 
service in excess of the year's breakpoint, times years of service. The year's breakpoint is defined as 
$10,700 increased by 6.0% each year after 1982, rounded to the nearest multiple of $100. Maximum 
benefit is 100% of average final compensation and the minimum benefit is $1,000 annually. 

If any member covered by social security retires before age 62, the member's benefit until the member 
reaches age 62, or a social security disability award is received, is computed as if the member is not 
under social security. 

Early Retirement 
Members must have 5 years of continuous or 15 years of active aggregate service. Benefits are 
calculated as a service retirement allowance on the basis of the average of the three highest paid 
years of service to the date of termination. Deferred to normal retirement age, or an actuarially 
reduced allowance may begin at the time of separation. 

Disability Retirement - Service Connected 
This applies to employees who are totally and permanently disabled and such disability has arisen out 
of and in the course of employment with the municipality. Disability due to heart and hypertension in 
the case of fire and police, who began employment prior to July 1, 1996, is presumed to have been 
suffered in the line of duty. Benefits are calculated as a service retirement allowance based on 
compensation and service to the date of the disability with a minimum benefit (including worker's 
compensation benefits) of 50% of compensation at the time of disability. 

Disability Retirement - Nonservice Connected 
Employees who have 10 years of service and are totally and permanently disabled. Benefits are 
calculated as a service retirement allowance based on compensation and service to the date of the 
disability. 
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Pre-Retirement Death Benefit 
The plan offers a lump-sum return of contributions with interest or if vested and married, the surviving 
spouse will receive a lifetime benefit. 

Contributions 

Member - Contributions for members not covered by social security are 5% of compensation; for 
members covered by social security, 3¼% of compensation up to the social security taxable wage 
base plus 6%, if any, in excess of such base. 

Employer - Participating employers make annual contributions consisting of a normal cost contribution, 
a contribution for the amortization of the net unfunded accrued liability and a prior service amortization 
payment, which covers the liabilities of MERS not met by member contributions. In addition, there is 
also an annual administrative fee per active and retired member. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows 
of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reports a total liability of $33,488,078 for its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability. The net pension liability was measured at June 30, 2020, and the total pension 
liability used to calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of 
June 30, 2020. The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on results 
of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2012 through June 30, 2017. The Town's 
proportion of the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Town's long-term share of 
contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all participants, actuarially 
determined. At June 30, 2021, the Town's proportion was 3.01 %. The decrease in proportion from the 
prior year is 0.01 %. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense of $9,020,067. At 
June 30, 2021, the Town reported deferred inflow of resources and deferred outflows of resources and 
deferred inflows of resources related to pension from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earning on pension plan investments 
Change in employer proportional share 
Contributions after the measurement date 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Governmental Activities 

Deferred Deferred 

Outflows of Inflows of 

Resources Resources 

1,511,859 $ 4,282,437 
5,483,428 

3,565,955 
1,444,875 909,751 
3,690,224 

15,696,341 $ 5,192,188 
====== 

Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources related to Town contributions after the 
measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent year. 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows and inflows of resources related to pension, excluding Town 
contributions after the measurement date, will be recognized in pension expense as follows: 

Governmental 

Activities 

Year Ending June 30 

2022 
2023 

2024 

2025 

Total 

Payable to MERS 

$ 2,987,945 
3,500,724 

33,146 
292,114 

$ ==6
=
,8

=
1

=
3 '

::::::
92

=
9

= 

The Town has recorded $417,901 as a long-term liability to MERS at June 30, 2021. This amount 
represents prior services cost calculated when the Town entered the Plan. This amount will be paid in 
annual installments. The current year amount paid was $417,364. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement period: 

Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 

Mortality rates were based on: 

2.50% 
3.50-10.00%, including inflation 
7.00%, net of pension plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

RP-2014 Combined Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected to 2015 with Scale MP-2017 and 
projected to 2022 with Scale BB for General Employees. 

RP-2014 Blue Collar Mortality Table adjusted to 2006 and projected to 2015 with Scale MP-2017 and 
projected to 2022 with Scale BB for Police and Fire. 

For disabled retirees, the RP-2014 Disabled Mortality Table projected with Scale BB to 2020 was 
used. 

Future cost-of-living adjustments for members who retire on or after January 1, 2002 are 60% of the 
annual increase in the CPI up to 6%. The minimum annual COLA is 2.5%; the maximum is 6%. 
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The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a statistical 
analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of 
pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These 
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the expected 
future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected inflation. 
Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major class are summarized in the following 
table: 

Discount Rate 

Asset Class 

Domestic equity 
Developed market international 
Emerging market international 
Core fixed income 
Inflation linked bond fund 
Emerging market debt 
High yield bonds 
Real estate 
Private equity 
Alternative investments 
Liquidity fund 

Total 

Long-Term 

Target Expected Real 

Allocation Rate of Return 

20.00% 5.30% 
11.00% 5.10% 

9.00% 7.40% 
16.00% 1.60% 

5.00% 1.30% 
5.00% 2.90% 
6.00% 3.40% 

10.00% 4.70% 
10.00% 7.30% 

7.00% 3.20% 
1.00% 0.90% 

100.00% 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.00%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that employer contributions will be made at the actuarially determined 
contribution rates in the future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The following presents the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability, calculated using the 
current discount rate, as well as what the Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability would 
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 1 percentage point 
higher than the current rate: 

Town's proportionate share of 
the net pension liability $ 

1% Decrease 

(6.00%) 

47,723,929 
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Current 

Discount Rate 

(7.00%) 

$ 33,488,078 $ 

1% Increase 

(8.00%) 

21,561,000 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2021 

C. Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System - Pension

Plan Description 

Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public schools are provided 
with pensions through the Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System, a cost sharing multiple­
employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the Teachers Retirement Board. Chapter 167a 
of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the Teachers 
Retirement Board. The Teachers Retirement Board issues a publicly available financial report that 
can be obtained at www.ct.gov. 

Benefit Provisions 

The plan provides retirement, disability and death benefits. Employees are eligible to retire at age 60 
with 20 years of credited service in Connecticut, or 35 years of credited service including at least 25 
years of service in Connecticut. 

Normal Retirement 
Retirement benefits for employees are calculated as 2% of the average annual salary times the years 
of credited service (maximum benefit is 75% of average annual salary during the 3 years of highest 
salary). 

Early Retirement 
Employees are eligible after 25 years of credited service including 20 years of Connecticut service, or 
age 55 with 20 years of credited service including 15 years of Connecticut service with reduced benefit 
amounts. 

Disability Retirement 
Employees are eligible for service-related disability benefits regardless of length of service. Five years 
of credited service is required for nonservice-related disability eligibility. Disability benefits are 
calculated as 2% of average annual salary times credited service to date of disability, but not less than 
15% of average annual salary, nor more than 50% of average annual salary. 

Contributions 

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-1832 (which reflects Public Act 79-436 as amended), 
contribution requirements of active employees and the State of Connecticut are approved, amended 
and certified by the State Teachers Retirement Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. 

Employer (School Districts) 

School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan. 

The statutes require the State of Connecticut to contribute 100% of each school districts' required 
contributions, which are actuarially determined as an amount that, when combined with employee 
contributions, is expected to finance the costs of the benefits earned by employees during the year, 
with any additional amount to finance any unfunded accrued liability. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the amount of "on-behalf' contributions made by the State was 
$6,767,538 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental revenues and education 
expenditures. 
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Employees 

Effective July 1, 1992, each teacher is required to contribute 6% of salary for the pension benefit. 

Effective January 1, 2018, the required contribution increased to 7% of pensionable salary. 

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred 
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net pension liability, 
and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory requirement that the State pay 100% of 
the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net 
pension liability, the related state support, and the total portion of the net pension liability that was 
associated with the Town were as follows: 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability associated with the Town 105,509,269 

Total $ 105,509,269 

The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total pension liability used to 
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. At 
June 30, 2021, the Town has no proportionate share of the net pension liability. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized pension expense and revenue of 
$15,113,702 in Exhibit II. 

Actuarial Assumptions 

The total pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Salary increase 
Investment rate of return 

2.50% 
3.00-6.50%, including inflation 
6.90%, net of pension plan investment 
expense, including inflation 

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males and 
103% for females at ages 82 an above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after 
service retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019. 

Cost-of-Living Allowance 
For teachers who retired prior to September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made in 
accordance with increases in the Consumer Price Index, with a minimum of 3% and a maximum of 5% 
per annum. 
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For teachers who were members of the Teachers' Retirement System before July 1, 2007 and retire 
on or after September 1, 1992, pension benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those 
provided for Social Security benefits on January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 6% per 
annum. If the return on assets in the previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 
1.5%. 

For teachers who were members of the Teachers' Retirement System after July 1, 2007, pension 
benefit adjustments are made that are consistent with those provided for Social Security benefits on 
January 1 of the year granted, with a maximum of 5% per annum. If the return on assets in the 
previous year was less than 11.5%, the maximum increase is 3%, and if the return on the assets in the 
previous year was less than 8.5%, the maximum increase is 1.0%. 

Long-Term Rate of Return 
The long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was determined using a log-normal 
distribution analysis in which best-estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected 
returns, net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset 
class. These ranges are combined to proooce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting the 
expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and by adding expected 
inflation. The current capital market assumptions and the target asset allocation as provided by the 
State of Connecticut Treasurer's Office are summarized in the following table: 

Expected Target 

Asset Class Return Allocation 

Domestic Equity Fund 5.60 % 20.00 

Developed Market Intl. Stock Fund 6.00 11.00 

Emerging Market Intl. Stock Fund 7.90 9.00 

Core Fixed Income Fund 2.10 16.00 

Inflation Linked Bond Fund 1.10 5.00 

. Emerging Market Debt Fund 2.70 5.00 

High Yield Bond Fund 4.00 6.00 

Real Estate Fund 4.50 10.00 

Private Equity 7.30 10.00 

Alternative Investments 2.90 7.00 

Liquidity Fund 0.40 1.00 

Total 100.00 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 6.90%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the 
current contribution rate and that State contributions will be made at the actuarially determined 
contribution rates in the future years. Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net 
position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on pension plan investments was applied 
to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total pension liability. 
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Sensitivity of the Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 

The Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability is $-0- and, therefore, the change in the 
discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the State of Connecticut. 

Other Information 

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of the financial 
statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has no obligation to contribute 
to the plan. 

D. Aggregated Pension Information

The Town recognized the following amounts related to pension plans as of and for the year ended 
June 30, 2021: 

Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions $ 
Net pension liability 
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 
Pension expense 

11. OTHER POST EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Town Post-Retirement Healthcare Plan

Plan Description 

Town 

Pension 

292,532 
64,243 
12,190 

MERS 

$ 15,696,341 $ 
33,488,078 

5,192,188 
9,020,067 

State 

Teachers 

15,113,702 

Total 

$ 15,696,341 
33,780,610 

5,256,431 
24,145,959 

The Town administers one single-employer, post-retirement healthcare plan (OPEB Plan) for the 
Town, Police, Fire and Board of Education employee. The OPEB plan is considered to be part of the 
Town's financial reporting entity and is included in the Town's financial report as the OPEB Trust fund. 
The Town does not issue a separate stand-alone financial statement for this program. 

The Town plan provides for medical, dental and life insurance benefits for all eligible Town, Police, 
Fire and Board of Education retirees and their spouses. Benefits and contributions are established by 
contract and may be amended by union negotiations. Administration costs are financed from 
investment earnings. 

Funding Policy 

The contribution requirements of plan members and the Town are established and may be amended 
by the Town. The Town currently funds on the "pay-as-you-go" basis. The Town's contributions are 
actuarially determined on an annual basis using the projected unit cost method. The Town's total plan 
contribution was $1,445,778. There are no employee contributions. 
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At July 1, 2020, plan membership consisted of the following: 

Investments 

Investment Policy 

Active employees 
Retired employees 

Total 

404 
88 

492 

The OPEB Plan's policy in regard to the allocation of invested assets is established and may be 
amended by the Board. Plan assets are managed on a total return basis with a long-term objective of 
achieving and maintaining a fully funded status for the benefits provided through the OPEB Plan. 

Rate of Return 
For the year ended June 30, 2021, the annual money-weighted rate of return on investments, net of 
investment expense, was 26.18%. The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment 
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the changing amounts actually invested. 

Net OPEB Liability of the Town 

The components of the net OPEB liability of the Town at June 30, 2021 were as follows: 

Total OPEB liability $ 
Plan fiduciary net position 

25,755,778 
9,062,017 

Net OPEB Liability $ ==1=6=
,6 =9 =3'=

7 =61=

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage 
of the total OPEB liability 35.18% 

Actuarial Assumptions 
The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2020, rolled forward to 
June 30, 2021 using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the 
measurement, unless otherwise specified: 

Inflation 
Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

2.40% 
2.40%, average, including inflation 
6.50%, net of OPEB plan investment expense, 
including inflation 

6.50% decreasing 0.25% per year to an ultimate 
rate of 4.40% for 2024 and later years 

Mortality rates were based on the Pub - 2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables with separate 
tables for General employees, Public Safety employees and Teachers and for nonannuitants and 
annuitants, projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2020. 
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The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2020 valuation were based on standard tables modified
for certain plan features such as eligibility for full and early retirement where applicable and input from
the plan sponsor. A full actuarial experience study has not been completed. 

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was determined by adding expected
inflation to expected long-term real returns and reflecting expected volatility and correlation. Best
estimates of the real rates of returns for each major asset class are include in the OPEB Plan's target
asset allocation. Best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset as of June 30,
2021 are summarized in the following table: 

Long-Term 
Target Expected Real

Asset Class Allocation Rate of Return

Municipal bonds 22.50% 0.90% 
Fixed income 8.00% 1.45% 
Fixed income - high yield 2.00% 2.95 
Small/mid cap 34.80% 5.15% 
International emerging 27.70% 6.25% 
REITS 5.00% 4.15% 

100.00% 

Discount Rate 
The discount rate used to measure the total OPEB liability was 6.50%. The projection of cash flows
used to determine the discount rate assumed that Town contributions will be made at rates equal to
the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan's fiduciary 
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments of current plan 
members. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments was applied to 
all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's net OPES 

lliability would be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1 percentage point lower or 
1 percentage point higher than the current discount rate: 

Net OPEB Liability $ 

1% Decrease 

(5.50%) 

19,545,779 $ 

59 

Current Discount 

Rate 

(6.50%) 

16,693,761 $ 

1% Increase 

(7.50%) 

14,286,152 
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Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Healthcare Cost Trend Rates 
The following presents the net OPEB liability of the Town, as well as what the Town's net OPEB 
liability would be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1 percentage point 
lower or 1 percentage point higher than the current healthcare cost trend rates: 

Current Healthcare 

1 % Decrease Trend Rate 

(5.50% decreasing (6.50% decreasing 

to 3.40%) to 4.40%) 

1% Increase 

(7.50% decreasing 

to 5.40%) 

Net OPEB Liability $ 14,321,884 $ 16,693,761 $ 19,541,444 

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability 

Increase (Decrease) 
Total OPEB Plan Fiduciary NetOPEB 

Liability Net Position Liability 
(a) (b) (a)-(b) 

Balances as of July 1, 2020 $ 23,400,906 $ 6,109,331 $ 17,291,575 

Changes for the year: 
Service cost 276,630 276,630 
Interest on total OPEB liability 1,586,755 1,586,755 
Differences between expected and actual experience 818,687 818,687 

Changes in assumptions 18,578 18,578 
Employer contributions 1,445,778 (1,445,778) 
Net investment income 1,860,477 (1,860,477) 
Benefit payments, including refund to employee contributions (345,778) (345,778) 
Administrative expenses (7,791) 7,791 

Net changes 2,354,872 2,952,686 (597,814) 

Balances as of June 30, 2021 $ 25,755,778 $ 9,062,017 $ 16,693,761 

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflow/Inflows of Resources Related to OPEB 

For the year ended June 30, 202 1 , the Town recognized OPEB expense of $750,150. At June 30, 
202 1 , the Town reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB from the following sources: 

Differences between expected and actual experience 
Changes of assumptions 
Net difference between projected and 

actual earning on OPEB plan investments 

Total 

60 

$ 

$ 

Deferred 
Outflows of 
Resources 

744,261 $ 
16,889 

Deferred 
Inflows of 
Resources 

2 ,017,3 77 
6 60, 439 

1 ,063 ,911 

76 1 , 150 $ ==3=, 7=4=1 '::::::::72=7= 
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Amounts reported as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to 
OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows: 

Governmental 

Activities 

Year Ending June 30 

2022 
2023 

2024 

2025 

2025 

Thereafter 

Total 

Schedule of Plan Net Position - June 30, 2021 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments: 

Mutual funds 

Total assets 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 

Net Position: 
Restricted for OPEB Benefits 

$ 

$ 

61 

$ 

$ 

(615,404) 
(602,783) 

(493,621) 

(506,682) 

(224,313) 

(537,774) 

(2,980,577) 

OPEB 

Trust Fund 

4,634 

9,071,878 

9,076,512 

14,495 

9,062,017 
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Schedule of Changes in Plan Net Position for the Year Ended June 30, 2021 

Additions: 
Contributions: 

Employer 

Investment income: 
Net appreciation in fair value of investments 

Total additions 

Deductions: 
Benefit payments 
Administration 

Total deductions 

Change in Net Position 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 

Net Position at End of Year 

$ 

$ 

OPEB 

Trust Fund 

1,445,778 

1,860,477 

3,306,255 

345,778 
7,791 

353,569 

2,952,686 

6,109,331 

9,062,017 

B. Other Post-Employment Benefits - Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement Plan

Plan Description 

Teachers, principals, superintendents or supervisors engaged in service of public schools plus 
professional employees at State Schools of higher education are eligible to participate in the 
Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System Retiree Health Insurance Plan (TRS-RHIP), a cost 
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit other post employment benefit plan administered by the 
Teachers' Retirement Board (TRB), if they choose to be covered. 

Chapter 167a of the State Statutes grants authority to establish and amend the benefit terms to the 
TRB. TRS-RHIP issues a publicly available financial report that can be obtained at www.ct.gov/trb. 

Benefit Provisions 

There are two types of the health care benefits offered through the system. Subsidized Local School 
District Coverage provides a subsidy paid to members still receiving coverage through their former 
employer and the CTRB Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans provide coverage for those 
participating in Medicare but not receiving Subsidized Local School District Coverage. 

Any member who is not currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to continue health 
care coverage with their former employer. A subsidy of up to $110 per month for a retired member 
plus an additional $110 per month for a spouse enrolled in a local school district plan is provided to the 
school district to first offset the retiree's share of the cost of coverage, and any remaining portion is 
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used to offset the district's cost. The subsidy amount is set by statute and has not increased since 
July 1996. A subsidy amount of $220 per month may be paid for a retired member, spouse or the 
surviving spouse of a member who has attained the normal retirement age to participate in Medicare, 
is not eligible for Part A of Medicare without cost and contributes at least $220 per month towards 
coverage under a local school district plan. 

Any member who is currently participating in Medicare Parts A & B is eligible to either continue health 
care coverage with their former employer, if offered, or enroll in the plan sponsored by the System. If 
they elect to remain in the plan with their former employer, the same subsidies as above will be paid to 
offset the cost of coverage. 

If a member participating in Medicare Parts A & B so elects, they may enroll in one of the CTRB 
Sponsored Medicare Supplement Plans. Effective July 1, 2018, the System added a Medicare 
Advantage Plan option. Active members, retirees and the State pay equally toward the cost of the 
basic coverage (medical and prescription drug benefits) under the Medicare Advantage Plan. Retired 
members who choose to enroll in the Medicare Supplement Plan are responsible for the full difference 
in the premium cost between the two plans. Additionally, effective July 1, 2018, retired members who 
cancel their health care coverage or elect to not enroll in a CTRB sponsored health care coverage 
option must wait two years to re-enroll. 

Survivor Health Care Coverage 

Survivors of former employees or retirees remain eligible to participate in the plan and continue to be 
eligible to receive either the $110 monthly subsidy or participate in the TRB-Sponsored Medicare 
Supplement Plans, as long as they do not remarry. 

Eligibility 

Any member who is currently receiving a retirement or disability benefit is eligible to participate in the 
plan. 

Credited Service 
One month for each month of service as a teacher in Connecticut public schools, maximum 10 months 
for each school year. Ten months of credited service constitutes one year of Credited Service. 
Certain other types of teaching services, State employment, or wartime military service may be 
purchased prior to retirement if the member pays one-half the cost. 

Normal Retirement 
Age 60 with 20 years of Credited Service in Connecticut, or 35 years of Credited Service including at 
least 25 years of service in Connecticut. 

Early Retirement 
Age 55 with 20 years of Credited Service including 15 years of Connecticut service, or 25 years of 
Credited Service including 20 years of Connecticut service. 

Proratable Retirement 
Age 60 with 10 years of Credited Service. 

Disability Retirement 
No service requirement if incurred in the performance of duty, and 5 years of Credited Service in 
Connecticut if not incurred in the performance of duty. 
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Termination of Employment 
Ten or more years of Credited Service. 

Contributions 

State of Connecticut 

Per Connecticut General Statutes Section 10-1832, contribution requirements of active employees and 
the State of Connecticut are approved, amended and certified by the State Teachers' Retirement 
Board and appropriated by the General Assembly. The State appropriates from the General Fund one 
third of the annual costs of the Plan. Administrative costs of the Plan are financed by the State. 
Based upon Chapter 167a, Subsection D of Section 10-183t of the Connecticut statutes, it is assumed 
the State will pay for any long-term shortfall arising from insufficient active member contributions. 

Employer (School Districts) 

School District employers are not required to make contributions to the plan. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the amount of "on-behalf' contributions made by the State was 
$163,324 and is recognized in the General Fund as intergovernmental revenues and education 
expenditures. 

Employees/Retirees 

The cost of providing plan benefits is financed on a pay-as-you-go basis as follows: active teachers 
pay for one-third of the Plan costs through a contribution of 1.25% of their pensionable salaries, and 
retired teachers pay for one-third of the Plan costs through monthly premiums, which helps reduce the 
cost of health insurance for eligible retired members and dependents. 

OPEB Liabilities, OPEB Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of 
Resources Related to OPEB 

At June 30, 2021, the Town reports no amounts for its proportionate share of the net OPEB liability, 
and related deferred outflows and inflows, due to the statutory requirement that the State pay 100% of 
the required contribution. The amount recognized by the Town as its proportionate share of the net 
OPEB liability, the related State support and the total portion of the net OPEB liability that was 
associated with the Town was as follows: 

Town's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability $ 

State's proportionate share of the net OPEB liability associated with the Town 15,736,711 

Total $ 15,736,711 
============ 

The net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2020, and the total OPEB liability used to 
calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020. At 
June 30, 2021, the Town has no proportionate share of the net OPEB liability. 

For the year ended June 30, 2021, the Town recognized OPEB expense and revenue of $726,917 in 
Exhibit II. 
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Actuarial Assumptions 

The total OPES liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020, using the 
following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement: 

Inflation 
Health care costs trend rate 

Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 

Year fund net position will 
be depleted 

2.50% 
5.125% for 2020, decreasing to an ultimate 
Rate of 4.50% by 2023 
3.00-6.50%, including inflation 
2.21 %, net of OPES plan investment 

expense, including inflation 

2021 

Mortality rates were based on the PubT-2010 Healthy Retiree Table (adjusted 105% for males and 
103% for females at ages 82 and above), projected generationally with MP-2019 for the period after 
service retirement. 

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation were based on the results of an 
actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2014 - June 30, 2019. 

The long-term expected rate of return on plan assets is reviewed as part of the GASS 75 valuation 
process. Several factors are considered in evaluating the long-term rate of return assumption, 
including the plan's current asset allocations and a log-normal distribution analysis using the best­
estimate ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected return, net investment expense and 
inflation) for each major asset class. The long-term expected rate of return was determined by 
weighting the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and then 
adding expected inflation. The assumption is not expected to change absent a significant change in 
the asset allocation, a change in the inflation assumption, or a fundamental change in the market that 
alters expected returns in future years. The plan is 100% invested in U.S. Treasuries (Cash 
Equivalents) for which the expected 10-Year Geometric Real Rate of Return is (0.42%). 

Discount Rate 

The discount rate used to measure the total OPES liability was 2.21%. The projection of cash flows 
used to determine the discount rate assumed that total payroll for the initial projection year consists of 
the payroll of the active membership present on the valuation date. In subsequent projection years, 
total payroll was assumed to increase annually at a rate of 3.00%; employee contributions will be 
made at the current member contribution rate and that contributions for future plan members were 
used to reduce the estimated amount of total service costs for future plan members. Annual State 
contributions were assumed to be equal to the most recent five-year average of State contributions to 
the fund. Based on those assumptions, the OPES plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be 
depleted in 2021 and, as a result, the Municipal Bond Index Rate was used in the determination. 

Sensitivity of the Net OPEB Liability to Changes in the Health Care Cost Trend Rate and the 
Discount Rate 

The Town's proportionate share of the net OPES liability is $-0- and, therefore, the change in the 
health care cost trend rate or the discount rate would only impact the amount recorded by the State of 
Connecticut. 
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Other Information 

Additional information is included in the required supplementary information section of the financial 
statements. A schedule of contributions is not presented as the Town has no obligation to contribute 
to the plan. Detailed information about the Connecticut State Teachers OPEB Plan fiduciary net 
position is available in the separately issued State of Connecticut Comprehensive Annual Financial 
Report at www.ct.gov. 

12. RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts; theft of, damage to and destruction of 
assets; error and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. These risks are covered by 
commercial insurance purchased from independent third parties. Settled claims from these risks did 
not exceed commercial insurance coverage during the three years ended June 30, 2021. 

Workers' Compensation 

The Town currently is a member in Connecticut lnterlocal Management Agency (CIRMA), a public 
entity risk pool established for the purpose of administering an interlocal risk management program 
pursuant to the provisions of Section 7-479a et seq., of Connecticut General Statutes, for workers' 
compensation first dollar coverage. 

The Workers' Compensation Pool provides statutory benefits pursuant to the provisions of the 
Connecticut Workers' Compensation Act. The coverage is subject to an insured loss retrospective 
rating plan and losses incurred in the coverage period will be evaluated at 18, 30 and 42 months after 
the effective date of coverage. The premium is subject to payroll audit at the close of the coverage 
period. CIRMA's Workers' Compensation Pool retains $1,000,000 per occurrence. The Town has not 
incurred any retrospective charges and is not aware of potential obligations related to its membership 
in CIRMA as of June 30, 2021. 

Medical Self Insurance 

The Town's self-insurance program is used to account for health insurance coverage for Town and 
Board of Education employees on a cost-reimbursement basis. Under the program, the Town is 
obligated for claim payments. A stop loss insurance contract executed with an insurance captive 
covers claims in excess of $175,000 on a per member basis with an aggregate stop loss coverage 
limit of $12,834,000 per year. 

The Fund establishes claims liabilities based on estimates of claims that have been incurred but not 
reported; accordingly, the Fund recorded an additional liability at June 30, 2021 of $605,346. 

Premium payments are reported as interfund services provided and used for the General Fund, and, 
accordingly, they are treated as operating revenues of the Self-Insurance Fund and operating 
expenditures of the General Fund. 
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A schedule of changes in the claims liability for the years ended June 30, 2021 and 2020 is presented
below: 

Unpaid claims, July 1 $ 

Incurred claims (including IBNR) 
Claim payments 

Unpaid Claims, June 30 $ 

13. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Contingent Liabilities 

Litigation and Unasserted Claims 

2021 

639,399 
9,194,818 

(9,228,871)
605,346 

2020 

$ 976,696 
7,935,880 

(8,273, 177)

$ 639,399 

There are various lawsuits pending against the Town. The outcome and eventual liability of the Town,
if any, in these cases is not known at this time. Based upon consultation with legal counsel, the
Town's management estimates that potential claims against the Town, not covered by insurance,
resulting from such litigation would not have a materially adverse effect on the financial position of the
Town. 

Federal and State Assistance Programs - Compliance Audits

The Town has received state and federal grants for specific purposes that are subject to review and
audit by the granter agencies. Such audits could lead to requests for reimbursement to the granter
agency for any expenditure disallowed under terms of the grant. Based on prior experience, Town
management believes such disallowances, if any, will not be material. 

14. MAJOR TAXPAYER

For the fiscal year ended June 30, 2021, 34.3% of the Town's property tax revenues were derived 
lfrom its largest taxpayer, Dominion Nuclear Connecticut, Inc., an electrical power facility. 
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15. GASB 84 - RESTATEMENT

The Town previously reported the activities of the School Activity Agency Fund, Student Scholarship 
Fund and Performance Bonds as fiduciary funds. As a result of implementation of GASB No. 84, 
Fiduciary Activities, as of July 1, 2020, the Town made the following reporting changes: The activities 
of the Performance Bonds are reported with the general fund activities, the School Activity Fund is 
reported as a special revenue fund and the Student Scholarship Fund is reported as a custodial fund. 
Accordingly, the Town increased the beginning assets and liabilities of the General Fund by $237,368, 
and thus no effect to the beginning fund balance. The Town created a new special revenue fund for 
the School Activity Fund, thus increasing assets and fund balance of $237.368 and created a new 
custodial fund for the Student Scholarship Fund increasing assets and net position by $443,615. 
Accordingly, the Town restated beginning balances of the assets, liabilities, fund balance and net 
position as follows: 

Governmental Nonmajor 

Activities Governmental 

Net Funds 

Governmental Funds: Position Fund Balance 

Balance as previously reported June 30, 2020 $ 158,417,896 $ 6,013,487 

Adjustment: 
Student Activity Fund now reported as a Special Revenue Fund 237,368 237,368 

Balance as restated July 1, 2020 $ 158,655,264 $ 6,250,855 

Agency Custodial 

Fiduciary Funds: Funds Funds 

Balance as previously reported June 30, 2020 $ 975,067 $

Adjustments: 
School Activity Fund now reported as a Special Revenue Fund (237,368) 
Performance Bonds now reported in the General Fund (443,615) 
Student Scholarship Fund now reported as a Custodial Fund (294,084) 294,084 

Balance as restated July 1, 2020 $ - $ 294,084 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under} 

Property taxes: 
Revenues from current year $ 92,008,071 $ 92,008,071 $ 92,598,458 $ 590,387 
Prior year taxes 350,000 350,000 394,517 44,517 
Interest and lien fees 325,000 325,000 341,236 16,236 

Total property taxes 92,683,071 92,683,071 93,334,211 651,140 

Intergovernmental: 
State of Connecticut: 

Equalized cost sharing 326,091 326,091 316,189 (9,902) 
Health and welfare 6,000 6,000 6,359 359 

General Government: 
Tax relief: 

Tax relief- state-owned property 143,075 143,075 143,075 
Disabled 1,873 1,873 1,919 46 
Private tax-exempt property 109,838 109,838 109,838 
Veterans 8,148 8,148 8,503 355 

Court fines 9,000 9,000 5,568 (3,432) 
Civil preparedness 2,500 2,500 19,823 17,323 
Telecommunication 52,000 52,000 58,656 6,656 
Town aid road 318,883 318,883 317,277 (1,606) 
SDE state grant 14,000 14,000 14,189 189 
Enhancement 911 22,981 22,981 22,149 (832) 
Grants for Municipal Projects 34,255 34,255 34,255 
COVID relief fund reimbursement 106,000 106,000 

Total State of Connecticut 1,048,644 1,048,644 1,163,800 115,156 

Federal 108,652 108,652 

Total intergovernmental 1,048,644 1,048,644 1,272,452 223,808 

Assessments and connections: 
Water main assessments 1,015 1,015 
Sewer assessments 6,770 6,770 

Total assessments and connections 7,785 7,785 

Licenses and permits: 
Recreation and parks commission 150,000 150,000 89,305 (60,695) 
Building inspector 325,000 325,000 720,514 395,514 
License, fees, permits and fines 21,797 21,797 35,617 13,820 
Conveyance tax 200,000 200,000 493,745 293,745 
Planning and zoning 44,000 44,000 68,610 24,610 
Liens - Utility Commission 10,000 10,000 10,500 500 
Town Clerk fees 150,000 150,000 259,436 109,436 

Total licenses and permits 900,797 900,797 1,677,727 776,930 

Fines, penalties and charges for services: 
Tuition 183,450 183,450 111,890 (71,560) 
Library 16,810 16,810 (16,810) 
False alarm fines 200 200 
Bulky waste fees 100,000 100,000 114,609 14,609 
Recycling 54,500 54,500 58,502 4,002 
Miscellaneous 50,000 50,000 120,697 70,697 
EMS - Reg. Comm Ctr fees 6,000 6,000 6,000 
Tipping fees 300,000 300,000 329,218 29,218 
Senior services 30,880 30,880 5,306 (25,574) 

Total fines, penalties and charges for services 741,640 741,640 746,422 4,782 

(Continued on next page) 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF REVENUES AND OTHER FINANCING SOURCES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary Over 

Original Final Basis (Under) 

Other sources: 
Rent and miscellaneous $ 5,910 $ 5,910 $ 25 $ (5,885) 
Rental of buildings 150,940 150,940 157,451 6,511 
Sale of Equipment 6,477 6,477 
NL Radio Comm. Network Use Fee 114,000 114,000 81,237 (32,763) 
SCRRRA Rebate 7,814 7,814 
C-Pace Stipend 500 500 500 
Eugene O'Neill Lease 8,589 8,589 
Ambulance operating subsidy 12,000 12,000 12,000 
East Lyme cost sharing 20,524 20,524 
CIRMA members equity distribution 37,305 37,305 
YSB BOE clerical stipend 5,000 5,000 5,000 
BOE human resources offset 15,628 15,628 16,119 491 

Total other sources 303,978 303,978 353,041 49,063 

Interest and dividends: 
Interest on investments 300,000 300,000 86,327 (213,673) 

Total revenues 95,978,130 95,978,130 97,477,965 1,499,835 

Other financing sources: 
Transfers in 129,941 129,941 
Cancellation of prior year encumbrances 100 100 65,164 65,064 

Total other financing sources 100 100 195,105 195,005 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources $ 95,978,230 $ 95,978,230 97,673,070 $ 1,694,840 

Budgetary revenues are different than GAAP revenues because: 
State of Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System on-behalf pension contributions for 

Town teachers is not budgeted. 6,767,538 
State of Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System on-behalf OPEB contributions for 

Town teachers is not budgeted. 163,324 
Encumbrances for purchases and commitments which were subsequently 

cancelled in the next fiscal year (65,164) 
Proceeds from bond refunding are not budgeted 28,890,000 
Excess cost - student based grant 489,746 
GASB 54 activity of certain special revenue funds now consolidated 

into the General Fund 18,268 

Total Revenues and Other Financing Sources as Reported on the 
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances -
Governmental Funds $ 133,936,782 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary (Over) 

Original Final Basis Under 

General Government: 
Selectman 

Personnel costs $ 194,527 $ 194,527 $ 189,468 $ 5,059 
Services 5,675 5,195 3,412 1,783 
Materials and supplies 1,118 8,718 8,358 360 

Total selectman 201,320 208,440 201,238 7,202 

Registrar of Voters: 
Personnel costs 63,535 63,535 62,703 832 
Services 5,599 5,599 4,375 1,224 
Materials and supplies 5,144 5,144 2,595 2,549 
Equipment 1 1 1 

Total registrar of voters 74,279 74,279 69,673 4,606 

Board of Finance: 
Personnel costs 4,400 2,139 1,572 567 
Services 61,600 61,600 60,494 1,106 
Materials and supplies 16 16 

Total board of finance 66,000 63,755 62,082 1,673 

Assessor: 
Personnel costs 278,064 281,268 280,493 775 
Services 4,899 10,040 10,017 23 
Materials and supplies 650 800 752 48 

Total assessor 283,613 292,108 291,262 846 

Board of Assessment Appeals: 
Personnel costs 1,038 1,038 615 423 
Services 550 550 452 98 

Total board of assessment appeals 1,588 1,588 1,067 521 

Tax Collector: 
Personnel costs 175,509 175,009 174,740 269 
Services 30,567 30,067 27,211 2,856 
Materials and supplies 30 1,030 936 94 

Equipment 50 50 50 
Total tax collector 206,156 206,156 202,937 3,219 

Finance: 
Personnel costs 553,370 549,133 543,754 5,379 
Services 117,900 94,960 90,541 4,419 
Materials and supplies 30,000 30,000 29,330 670 
Equipment 70 70 

Total finance 701,270 674,163 663,695 10,468 

Legal Department: 
Services 298,000 330,990 322,135 8,855 

Town Clerk: 
Personnel costs 232,562 236,075 235,830 245 
Services 30,004 31,915 31,859 56 
Materials and supplies 2,853 1,453 1,450 3 
Equipment 1,890 1,890 1,890 

Total town clerk 267,309 271,333 271,029 304 

Planning and Zoning Commission: 
Personnel costs 569,792 572,572 564,041 8,531 
Services 55,260 52,480 40,172 12,308 
Materials and supplies 3,515 3,515 2,745 770 
Equipment 700 700 286 414 

Total planning and zoning commission 629,267 629,267 607,244 22,023 

(Continued on next page) 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary (Over) 

Original Final Basis Under 

General Government (Continued): 
Insurance: 

Services 4,658,000 4,609,302 4,524,071 85,231 

Economic Development Commission: 
Services 8,576 8,576 7,043 1,533 

Conservation Commission: 

Services 17,750 17,750 13,641 4,109 
Materials and supplies 500 500 331 169 

Total conservation commission 18,250 18,250 13,972 4,278 

Zoning Board of Appeals: 
Services 4,260 4,225 3,263 962 
Materials and supplies 50 85 85 

Total zoning board of appeals 4,310 4,310 3,348 962 

Retirement Commission: 
Personnel costs 5,982,978 5,887,978 5,869,628 18,350 

Representative Town Meeting: 

Personnel costs 1 
Services 18,952 18,952 11,640 7,312 

Total representative town meeting 18,953 18,953 11,640 7,313 

Building Department: 

Personnel costs 276,285 265,660 253,787 11,873 
Services 10,988 21,613 8,363 13,250 
Materials and supplies 1,750 1,750 636 1,114 
Equipment 400 400 400 

Total building department 289,423 289,423 262,786 26,637 

Social Service Grants: 

Services 64,316 64,316 64,057 259 
Contracts out to agencies 15,800 15,800 15,800 

Total social service grants 80,116 80,116 79,857 259 

Contingency: 
Miscellaneous 265,000 60,928 60,928 

Flood and Erosion Control Board: 
Personnel costs 818 818 403 415 
Services 1,295 1,295 1,295 
Materials and supplies 25 25 25 

Total flood and erosion control board 2,138 2,138 403 1,735 

Ethics Commission: 

Personnel costs 650 645 426 219 
Services 5 5 
Materials and supplies 

Total ethics commission 650 650 431 219 

(Continued on next page) 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 
BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary (Over) 

Original Final Basis Under 
General Government (Continued): 

Human Resources: 
Personnel costs $ 200,240 $ 244,084 $ 244,085 $ (1) 
Services 65,143 93,842 75,688 18,154 
Materials and supplies 850 951 751 200 

Total human resources 266,233 338,877 320,524 18,353 

Information Technology: 
Services 773,708 753,347 748,459 4,888 
Equipment 51,260 105,260 97,193 8,067 

Total information technology 824,968 858,607 845,652 12,955 

Total general government 15,148,397 14,930,187 14,631,717 298,470 

Public Safety: 
Emergency Management: 

Personnel costs 939,704 916,894 900,807 16,087 
Services 144,701 128,008 103,138 24,870 
Materials and supplies 2,850 2,850 1,288 1,562 
Equipment 3 16,696 16,693 3 

Total emergency management 1,087,258 1,064,448 1,021,926 42,522 

Fire Services: 
Personnel costs 1,866,238 2,241,724 2,238,523 3,201 
Services 936,944 926,722 905,862 20,860 
Materials and supplies 238,880 257,489 251,737 5,752 
Equipment 59,500 52,900 47,565 5,335 

Total fire services 3,101,562 3,478,835 3,443,687 35,148 

Police Department: 
Personnel costs 5,849,672 5,799,362 5,729,310 70,052 
Services 341,616 342,448 323,978 18,470 
Materials and supplies 224,176 266,157 239,849 26,308 
Equipment 5,277 5,395 5,395 

Total police department 6,420,741 6,413,362 6,298,532 114,830 

Total public safety 10,609,561 10,956,645 10,764,145 192,500 

Building Maintenance: 
Personnel costs 82,433 80,169 56,941 23,228 
Services 133,612 135,876 133,736 2,140 
Materials and supplies 10,000 9,988 8,432 1,556 
Capital Improvements 27,000 27,012 27,012 

Total building maintenance 253,045 253,045 226,121 26,924 

Public Works: 
Personnel costs 2,398,985 2,315,460 2,281,075 34,385 
Services 1,267,687 1,258,631 1,239,851 18,780 
Materials and supplies 682,425 569,777 524,351 45,426 
Equipment 19,412 19,412 17,576 1,836 
Capital improvements 320,698 320,698 304,884 15,814 

Total public works 4,689,207 4,483,978 4,367,737 116,241 

Total public works 4,942,252 4,737,023 4,593,858 143,165 

Social Services: 
Youth Service Bureau: 

Personnel costs 197,743 216,229 214,544 1,685 
Services 47,000 48,549 45,877 2,672 

Total social services 244,743 264,778 260,421 4,357 

Conservation of Health: 
Services 139,197 139,197 139,197 

Waterford Public Health Nursing Service: 
Contracts out to agencies 27,820 27,820 7,917 19,903 

(Continued on next page) 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

GENERAL FUND SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND OTHER FINANCING USES 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) (CONTINUED) 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2020 

Budgeted Amounts Actual Variance 
Budgetary (Over) 

Original Final Basis Under 

Social Services (Continued): 
Senior Citizen Commission: 

Personnel costs $ 408,513 $ 408,513 $ 337,217 $ 71,296 
Services 121,494 121,494 86,348 35,146 
Materials and supplies 15,278 15,278 6,979 8,299 
Equipment 2,842 2,842 1,949 893 

Total senior citizen commission 548,127 548,127 432,493 115,634 

Total social services 959,887 979,922 840,028 139,894 

Library: 
Personnel costs 957,025 1,001,496 967,820 33,676 
Services 59,638 59,638 45,176 14,462 
Materials and supplies 8,000 8,000 7,912 88 
Equipment 45,000 45,000 45,000 

Total library 1,069,663 1,114,134 1,065,908 48,226 

Recreation and Parks: 
Personnel costs 1,134,847 1,069,779 909,744 160,035 
Services 297,249 361,217 343,827 17,390 
Materials and supplies 72,944 72,944 63,304 9,640 
Equipment 1,825 2,925 2,548 377 

Total recreation and parks 1,506,865 1,506,865 1,319,423 187,442 

Community Use of Schools 86,126 86,126 86,126 

Debt Service: 
Principal 5,060,000 5,060,000 5,060,000 
Interest 2,568,790 2,568,790 2,504,397 64,393 

Total debt service 7,628,790 7,628,790 7,564,397 64,393 

Board of Education 50,372,315 50,372,315 49,249,222 1,123,093 

Total expenditures 92,323,856 92,312,007 90,114,824 2,197,183 

Other Financing Uses: 
Transfers out 3,654,374 3,707,324 3,707,324 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Uses $ 95,978,230 $ 96,019,331 93,822,148 $ 2,197,183 

Budgetary expenditures are different than GAAP expenditures because: 
State of Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System on-behalf pension contributions for 

Town teachers is not budgeted. 6,767,538 
State of Connecticut State Teachers' Retirement System on-behalf OPEB contributions for 

Town teachers is not budgeted. 163,324 
Encumbrances for purchases and commitments ordered but not received 

are reported in the year the order is placed for budgetary purposes, but 
in the year the order is received for financial reporting purposes. (184,900) 

Excess cost - student based grant 489,746 
Bond issuance costs on refunding are not budgeted 210,540 
Payments to escrow agents during the bond refunding are not budgeted 28,679,460 
GASB 54 Activity of Certain Special Revenue Funds now consolidated 

into the General Fund 320,064 

Total Expenditures and Other Financing Sources as Reported in the Statement 
of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances - Governmental Funds $ 130,267,920 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET PENSION LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

PENSION TRUST FUND 

LAST NINE FISCAL YEARS' 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Total pension liability: 
Interest $ 57,640 $ 59,937 $ 63,102 $ 61,919 
Differences between expected and actual experience 6,607 (23,064) 
Changes of assumptions 101,230 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (95,139) (111,229) (116,167) (126,029) 

Net change in total pension liability (37,499) (44,685) (53,065) 14,056 
Total pension liability - beginning 969 081 1 013 766 1 066 831 1,052 775 

Total pension liability- ending 931 582 969 081 1 013 766 1,066,831 

Plan fiduciary net position: 
Contributions - employer 82,000 89,953 82,000 81,493 
Net investment income 117,497 32,400 29,150 28,406 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions (95,139) (111,229) (116,167) (126,029) 
Administrative expense (5,755) (5,958) (3,271) (4,821) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 98,603 5,166 (8,288) (20,951) 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 540 447 535 281 543 569 564,520 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 639 050 540,447 535 281 543 569 

Net Pension Liability - Ending $ 292,532 $ 428,634 $ 478 485 $ 523 262 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 68.60% 55.77% 52.80% 50.95% 

Covered payroll N/A N/A NIA N/A 

Net pension liability as a percentage of covered payroll N/A N/A N/A N/A 

Notes to Schedule 

• - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional information will be added as it becomes available. 

N/A - Not applicable. Plan members are retired. 
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2017 2016 

$ 66,103 $ .82,588 $ 
(83,403) 
65,285 

(139,838) (151,557) 
(73,735) (87,087) 

1 126 510 1 213 597 
1,052 775 1,126,510 

84,000 83,367 
54,202 11,137 

(139,838) (151,557) 
(9,314) (6,948) 

(10,950) (64,001) 
575 470 639 471 
564 520 575 470 

$ 488,255 $ 551,040 $ 

53.62% 51.08% 

N/A N/A 

N/A N/A 

2015 

87,820 $ 

(168,133) 
(80,313) 

1,293,910 
-----1..n.3,597 

83,367 
19,200 

(168,133) 
(8,511) 

(74,077) 
713 548 
639 471 

574,126 $ 

52.69% 

N/A 

N/A 

2014 

93,351 

(171,078) 
(77,727) 

1 371 637 
1,293,910 

78,744 
84,249 

(171,078) 
(6,522) 

(14,607) 
728 155 
713 548 

__ !;80,362 

55.15% 

N/A 

N/A 
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2013 

$ 98,557 

(169,686) 
(71,129) 

1 442 766 
1,371,637 

78,744 
55,520 

(169,686) 
(5,693) 

(41,115) 
769 270 
728 155 

$ 643,482 

53.09% 

N/A 

N/A 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

PENSION TRUST FUND 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

Valuation date: 
Measurement date: 

July 1, 2019 
June 30, 2021 

$ 

$ 

2021 2020 

59,870 $ 81,131 $ 

82,000 89,953 

(22,130) $ (8,822) $ 

NIA NIA 

NIA NIA 

2019 2018 2017 2016 

81,131 $ 81,493 $ 81,493 $ 83,367 
82,000 81 493 84,000 83 367 

(869) $ - $ (2,507) $ -

NIA NIA NIA NIA 

NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 
Amortization method Level percentage of salary, closed 
Remaining amortization period As of the July 1, 2019 valuation 11 years remain. 

RSl-4 

2015 2014 2013 2012 

$ 83,367 $ 78,744 $ 78,744 $ 82,855 
83,367 78 744 78 744 __jg.855 

$ - $ - $ - $ 

NIA NIA NIA NIA 

NIA NIA NIA NIA 

Asset valuation method The actuarial value of assets used in the development of plan contributions phases in the recognition of differences between the market value and expected 
actuarial value by recognizing 20% of the difference each year. 

Inflation 2.60% 
2.60% per year 
6.25%, net of pension plan investment expense, including inflation 

Cost of living increases 
Investment rate of return 
Mortality Pub-2010 Public Retirement Plans Amount - Weighted Mortality Tables (with separate tables for General Employees, Public Safety and Teachers), projected to 

the valuation date with Scale MP-2019. 

NIA - Not applicable. Plan members are retired. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS 

PENSION TRUST FUND 

LAST EIGHT FISCAL YEARS* 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 

2021 

20.68% 

2020 2019 2018 2017 

5.97% 5.55% 5.12% 9.89% 

*Note - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional information will be added as it becomes available.
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1.75% 2.57% 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF THE DISTRICT'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 

Town's proportion of the net pension liability 3.01% 3.02% 3.07% 5.54% 6.09% 4.88% 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ 33,488,078 $ 31,145,927 $ 29,401,392 $ 13,738,876 $ 16,236,237 $ 12,496,017 

Town's covered payroll $ 21,046,486 $ 21,269,052 $ 20,394,151 $ 18,584,885 $ 17,944,522 $ 17,944,522 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 159.11% 146.44% 144.17% 73.92% 90.48% 69.64% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of 
the total pension liability 71.18% 72.69% 73.60% 91.68% 88.29% 92.72% 

*Notes:
- This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as it becomes available
- The measurement date is one year earlier t�an the employer's reporting date.
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2015 

5.21% 

12,413,899 

18,274,228 

67.93% 

90.48% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

MUNICIPAL EMPLOYEES RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Actuarially determined contribution 
Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) 

Covered payroll 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

2021 

$ 3,690,224 $ 

3,690,224 

$ - $ 

$ 22,102,038 $ 

16.70% 

Valuation dale: June 30, 2020 
Measurement date: June 30, 2020 

2020 2019 

3,273,290 $ 2,819,839 $ 

3,273,290 2,819,839 

- $ $ 

21,046,486 $ 21,269,052 $ 

15.55% 13.26% 

2018 

2,694,077 $ 
2,694,077 

- $ 

20,394,151 $ 

13.21% 

2017 

2,603,848 $ 

2,603,848 

- $ 

18,584,885 $ 

14.01% 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, each biennium for the fiscal years ending two and three years after the valuation date. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Single equivalent amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Inflation 

Entry Age 
Level dollar, closed 
21 years 
5-years smoothed market 
2.50% 
3.50% - 10.00%, including inflation 
7 .00%, net of investment-related expense 
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2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

2,423,860 $ 2,515,782 $ 2,425,327 $ 2,358,637 $ 2,277,760 
2,423,860 2,515,782 2,425,327 2,358,637 --1Z!1,_760 

- $ - $ - $ - $ 

17,944,522 $ 17,944,522 $ 18,274,228 $ 18,065,219 $ 17,793,604 

13.51% 14.02% 13.27% 13.06% 12.80% 

Salary increases 
Investment rate of return 
Change in assumptions: In 2019, the latest experience study for the System updated most of the actuarial assumptions utilized in the June 30, 2020 valuation to include: rates of inflation, real 

investment return mortality, withdrawal, disability, retirement and salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and anticipated experience. These 
assumptions were recommended as part of the Experience Study for the System for the five-year period ended June 30, 2017. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET PENSION LIABILITY 

TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST SEVEN FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 

Town's proportion of the net pension liability 0.00% 0.00% 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability $ - $ -

State's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

associated with the Town 105,509,269 97,008,042 

Total $ 105,509,269 $ 97,008,042 

Town's covered payroll $ 23,898,019 $ 23,917,559 

Town's proportionate share of the net pension liability 

as a percentage of its covered payroll 0.00% 0.00% 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total pension liability 49.24% 52.00% 

Notes to Schedule 

None 

2019 2018 2017 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

$ - $ - $ -

74 798 836 75 284,376 79,425,593 

$ 74,798 836 $ 75 284 376 $ 79,425,593 

$ 23,425,482 $ 23,142,985 $ 21,020,000 

0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 

57.69% 55.93% 52.26% 

Changes in benefit terms 
Changes of assumptions The Board adopted new assumptions as the result of an experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019: 

- Decrease the annual rate of real wage increase assumption from 0.75% to 0.50%. 

- Decrease payroll growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%. 

2016 

0.00% 

$ -

60,790,928 

$ 60,790,928 

$ 20,407,000 

0.00% 

59.50% 

- Rates of withdrawal, disability, retirement, mortality, and assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual and 

Actuarial cost method 

Amortization method 

Single equivalent amortization period 

Asset valuation method 

Inflation 

Salary increase 

Investment rate of return 

Notes: 

Entry age 
Level percent of pay, closed 

30 years 

4-year smoothed market 

2.50% 

3.25%-6.50%, including inflation 

6.90%, net of investment-related expense 

- This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' information will be displayed as ii becomes available.
- The measurement dale is one year earlier than the employer's reporting date.
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2015 

0.00% 

$ 

� 189,042 

$ 56,189,042 

$ 21,623,000 

0.00% 

61.56% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPEB LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS 

OPEB TRUST FUND 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS* 

2021 2020 2019 2018 

Total OPEB liability: 
Service cost $ 276,630 $ 265,479 $ 281,505 $ 264,365 $ 

Interest 1,586,755 1,579,705 1,700,177 1,672,521 
Differences between expected and actual experience 818,687 (1,146,862) (1,149,976) (829,167) 
Changes of assumptions 18,578 (917,752) 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member 
contributions (345,778) (855,957) (712,252) (746,707) 

Net change in total OPEB liability 2,354,872 (157,635) (798,298) 361,012 
Total OPEB liability - beginning 23,400,906 23,558,541 24,356,839 23,995,827 

Total OPEB liability - ending 25,755,778 23,400,906 23,558,541 24,356,839 

Plan fiduciary net position: 
Contributions - employer 1,445,778 1,614,570 1,871,345 1,906,707 
Net investment income 1,860,477 300,988 268,186 133,054 
Benefit payments, including refunds of member 
contributions (345,778) (855,957) (712,252) (746,707) 
Administrative expense (7,791) (7,242) (6,729) (11,768) 

Net change in plan fiduciary net position 2,952,686 1,052,359 1,420,550 1,281,286 
Plan fiduciary net position - beginning 6,109,331 5,056,972 3,636,422 2,355,136 

Plan fiduciary net position - ending 9,062,017 6,109,331 5,056,972 3,636,422 

Net OPEB Liability - Ending $ 16,693,761 $ 17,291,575 $ 18,501,569 $ 20,720,417 $ 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the 

total OPEB liability 35.18% 26.11% 21.47% 14.93% 

Covered payroll $ 31,862,190 $ 31,077,578 $ 30,290,037 $ 30,429,413 $ 

Net OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll 52.39% 55.64% 61.08% 68.09% 

*Note - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional information will be added as it becomes available.
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2017 

257,290 
1,622,163 

(76,479) 

(1,497,102) 
305,872 

23,689,955 
23,995,827 

3,811,946 
40,292 

(1,497,102) 

2,355,136 

2,355,136 

21,640,691 

9.81% 

29,615,001 

73.07% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF EMPLOYER CONTRIBUTIONS 

OPEB TRUST FUND 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 

RSl-10 

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Actuarially determined contribution $ 2,139,712 $ 2,127,089 $ 2,482,200 $ 2,474,700 $ 2,607,000 $ 2,755,300 $ 2,720,300 $ 2,747,000 $ 2,718,100 $ 2,690,600 

Contributions in relation to the actuarially determined contribution 

Contribution Deficiency (Excess) $ 

1,445,778 

693,934 $ 

1,614,570 1,871,345 1,906,707 

512,519 $ 610,855 $ 567,993 $ 

3&1.1.,_946 

(1,204,946) $ 

798,000 

1,957,300 $ 

584,100 

2,136,200 $ 

608,000 1,266,500 1,409,100 

2,139,000 $ 1,451,600 $ �500 

Covered payroll $ 31,862,190 $ 31,077,578 $ 30,290,037 $ 30,429,413 $ 29,615,001 $ 29,073,500 $ 29,073,500 $ 31,032,400 $ 31,032,400 $ 28,277,100 

Contributions as a percentage of covered payroll 

Notes to Schedule 

Valuation date: July 1, 2020 

Measurement date: June 30, 2021 

4.54% 5.20% 6.18% 6.27% 12.87% 2.74% 

Actuarially determined contribution rates are calculated as of June 30, two years prior to the end of the fiscal year in which contributions are reported. 

Methods and assumptions used to determine contribution rates: 

Actuarial cost method Entry age normal 

Amortization method Level percentage of salary 

2.01% 

Amortization period Amortized over 30 years on a closed basis. The amortization began on July 1, 2006, and, as of the July 1, 2020 valuation, 16 years remain. 

Asset valuation method Market value 

Inflation 

Healthcare cost trend rates 

Inflation 
Investment rate of return 

Retirement age 

2.40% (prior: 2.60%) 
6.50% decreasing to 4.60% (prior: 7.25% decreasing to 4.6%) 
2.40% (prior: 2.60%) 
6.50% (prior: 6.75%) 

Medical and dental benefits pre-65 

Medical benefits post-65 

1.96% 4.08% 4.98% 

Mortality Pub - 2010 Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables (with separate tables for General employees, Public Safety employees and Teacher) and for nonannuitants and annuitants, 
projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2020. 

Prior: Pub - 201 O Public Retirement Plans Mortality Tables (with separate tables for General employees, Public Safety employees and Teacher) and for nonannuitants and 
annuitants, projected to the valuation date with Scale MP-2018. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF INVESTMENT RETURNS 

OPEB TRUST FUND 

LAST FIVE FISCAL YEARS* 

Annual money-weighted rate of return, net of investment expense 

2021 

26.18% 

2020 2019 2018 

5.44% 6.44% 4.13% 

*Note - This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional information will be added as it becomes available.
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2017 

2.09% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF THE TOWN'S PROPORTIONATE SHARE OF THE NET OPEB LIABILITY 

TEACHERS RETIREMENT SYSTEM 

LAST FOUR FISCAL YEARS* 

Town's proportion of the net OPES liability 

Town's proportionate share of the net OPES liability 

State's proportionate share of the net OPES liability 
associated with the Town 

Total 

Town's covered payroll 

Town's proportionate share of the net OPES liability 
as a percentage of its covered payroll 

Plan fiduciary net position as a percentage of the total OPES liability 

Notes to Schedule 

None 

2021 

0.00% 

$ 

15,736,711 

$ 15,736,711 

$ 23,898,019 

0.00% 

2.50% 

2020 2019 

0.00% 0.00% 

$ $ 

15,128,952 14,952,787 

$ 15,128,952 $ 14,952,787 

$ 23,917,559 $ 23,425,482 

0.00% 0.00% 

2.08% 1.49% 

Changes in benefit tenns 
Changes of assumptions Based on the procedure described in GASS 75, the discount rate used to measure plan obligations for financial accounting purposes as of 

June 30, 2020 was updated to equal the Municipal Bond Index Rate as of June 30, 2020; 

Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Remaining amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Investment rate of return 
Price inflation 

Notes: 

Expected annual per capita claims costs were updated to better reflect anticipated medical and prescription drug claim experience; 

Long-term health care cost trend rates were updated; 

The percentages of participating retirees who are expected to enroll in the Medicare Supplement Plan and the Medicare Advantage Plan 
options were updated based on observed plan experience. Additionally, participants are no longer assumed to migrate from the Medicare 

Supplement Plan to the Medicare Advantage Plan after selecting an option; and, 

The Board adopted new assumptions as the result of an experience study for the five-year period ending June 30, 2019. The changes in 
assumptions are summarized below: 

- Decrease the annual rate of real wage increase assumption from 0.75% to 0.50%. 

- Decrease payroll growth assumption from 3.25% to 3.00%. 

- Rates of withdrawal, disability, retirement, mortality, and assumed rates of salary increase were adjusted to more closely reflect actual 

and anticipated experience. 

Entry age 
Level percent of payroll over an open period 
30 years 
Market value of assets 
3.00%, net of investment-related expense including price inflation 
2.75% 

- This schedule is intended to show information for ten years. Additional years' infonmation will be displayed as it becomes available. 
- The measurement date is one year earlier than the employer's reporting date. 

84 

RSl-12 

2018 

0.00% 

$ 

19,377,337 

$ 19,377,337 

$ 23,142,985 

0.00% 

1.79% 
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General Fund 



GENERAL FUND 

The General Fund is the principal fund of the Town and is used to account for all activities of the Town, except 
those required to be accounted for in another fund. The General Fund accounts for the normal recurring activities 
of the Town (i.e., general government, public safety, public works, health, social services, recreation, education, 
etc.). These activities are funded principally by property taxes, user fees and grants from other governmental units. 



EXHIBIT A-1 

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES AND ENCUMBRANCES COMPARED WITH APPROPRIATIONS 

GENERAL FUND - BOARD OF EDUCATION 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Expenditures 
Final and Unexpended 

Appropriation Encumbrances Balance 

Salaries - certified $ 23,742,546 $ 23,544,628 $ 197,918 
Salaries - support 6,319,612 6,003,990 315,622 
Salaries - other 31,974 7,044 24,930 
Temporary pay - certified 1,087,774 861,666 226,108 
Temporary pay - support 175,624 172,300 3,324 
Overtime - support 130,623 95,953 34,670 
Health and dental insurance 6,345,031 6,331,620 13,411 
Life and major medical insurance 75,764 73,749 2,015 
Long term disability 3,060 3,060 
Social security contribution 976,470 901,815 74,655 
Reimbursements 86,400 80,797 5,603 
Unemployment compensation 27,522 18,611 8,911 
Workers' compensation 378,498 378,220 278 
Sick pay 84,047 83,948 99 
Retirement Incentive 6,000 6,000 
Instructional services 108,236 96,217 12,019 
Staff and curriculum development 94,050 124,132 (30,082) 
Other professional and technical services 1,437,957 1,299,694 138,263 
Legal services 117,004 125,350 (8,346) 
Public utilities 92,429 69,390 23,039 
Maintenance and repairs 370,624 480,346 (109;722) 
Rentals 1,600 19,478 (17,878) 
Pupil transportation 2,302,216 2,130,567 171,649 
Insurance - property 106,577 86,295 20,282 
Insurance - liability 108,142 106,764 1,378 
Other insurance 24,273 21,994 2,279 
Communications 71,953 64,474 7,479 
Postage 19,244 14,863 4,381 
Advertising 2,000 1,807 193 
Tuition 2,481,734 2,279,586 202,148 
Travel and conference 162,525 74,542 87,983 
Other purchased services 148,732 236,975 (88,243) 
Instructional supplies 396,905 375,582 21,323 
Software 409,425 421,316 (11,891) 
Maintenance and custodial 269,245 319,073 (49,828) 
Heat and energy 1,273,620 1,225,742 47,878 
Transportation supplies 137,908 80,212 57,696 
Textbooks 172,300 102,653 69,647 
Library and professional books 29,549 27,210 2,339 
Other supplies 164,960 149,212 15,748 
Equipment 369,316 725,710 (356,394) 
Membership dues and fees 28,846 26,637 2,209 

Total $ 50,372,315 $ 49,249,222 $ 1,123,093 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

REPORT OF TAX COLLECTOR 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Uncollected 

Grand Taxes Current 

List July 1, 2020 Levy 

2019 $ $ 93,122,393 

2018 525,600 

2017 227,710 

2016 129,379 
2015 96,965 

2014 60,538 
2013 48,666 

2012 34,273 

2011 29,047 

2010 24,638 

2009 15,799 
2008 6,888 

2007 3,059 

2006 2,483 

2005 2,346 

Total $ 1,207,391 $ 93,122,393 

Lawful Corrections Transfers Adjusted 

To Taxes 

Additions Deductions Suspense Collectible 

$ 82,533 $ 273,018 $ 7,645 $ 92,924,263 $ 
22,929 132,241 11,564 404,724 

4 181 11,127 216,406 

129,379 
96,965 

144 60,394 
48,666 

34,273 
29,047 

24,638 
15,799 

6,888 

3,059 
2,483 

2,346 

$ 105,466 $ 407,930 $ 30,336 $ 93,996,984 

Suspense collections 

Total collections $ 

Property taxes receivable - considered available: 
June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 

86 

Collections 

Lien 
Taxes Interest Fees 

92,501,211 $ 147,659 $ 1,200 
197,099 61,776 2,222 
117,535 46,708 744 

52,872 33,264 360 
35,597 20,623 216 
16,465 12,827 72 

7,927 6,833 48 
2,136 1,750 

285 

382 
1,221 

2,360 1,498 
337 
696 
515 

92,933,202 336,374 4,862 

18,494 

92,951,696 $ 336,374 $ 4,862 

$ 

$ 

Total 

92,650,070 $ 
261,097 

164,987 

86,496 
56,436 

29,364 
14,808 

3,886 
285 

382 
1,221 
3,858 

337 
696 
515 

93,274,438 $ 

18,494 

93,292,932 

(118,447) 
159,726 

93,334,211 

 

EXHIBIT A-2 

Uncollected 

Taxes 

June 30, 2021 

423,052 
207,625 

98,871 

76,507 
61,368 
43,929 
40,739 

32,137 
29,047 

24,638 
15,799 

4,528 
3,059 
2,483 

1,063,782 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF WATER MAIN ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Contract 

Number 

75 
76 

Total 

$ 

$ 

Principal 
Uncollected 
July 1, 2020 

207 
2,846 

3 053 

Interest 

and Liens 

Uncollected 

July 1, 2020 

$ 697 $ 
1,838 

$ --- 2 535 $ 

New 
Contracts 

$ 

$ 

Interest 
and Liens 

Billed 

31 
510 

541 

Lawful Corrections 

Interest Interest 

Principal Principal and Lien and Lien 

Additions Deductions Additions Deductions 

$ $ $ $ 

$ $ $ $ 

Water main assessment receivable� considered available: 

June 30, 2020 
June 30, 2021 
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Collections 

Interest 

and 
Assessments Lien Fees 

$ 207 $ 456 
352 

$ 559 $ 456 

Transferred 

to Town 

Clerk 

$ 

$ 

Total 

$ 663 
352 

1,015 

$ 1 015 

Principal Interest 

Balance and Liens 

Uncollected Uncollected 

June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 

$ $ 272 
2 494 2 348 

$ 2 494 $ 2 620 

$ 

$ 

EXHIBIT A-3 

Balance 

Uncollected 
June 30, 2021 

272 
4,842 

5,114 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF SEWER ASSESSMENTS RECEIVABLE 

GENERAL FUND 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Interest 

Principal and Liens 

Contract Uncollected Uncollected New 

Number July 1, 2020 July 1, 2020 Contracts 

76 $ 15,752 $ 10,322 $ 

Interest 

and Liens 

Billed 

$ $ 

Lawful Corrections 

Interest 

Principal Principal and Lien 

Additions Deductions Additions 

$ $ 2,307 $ 

Interest 

and Lien 

Deductions Assessments 

$ 5,117 $ 

Sewer assessment receivable - considered available: 

Collections 

Interest Transferred 

and to Town 

Lien Fees Clerk Total 

2,540 $ (20) $ 7,637 

June 30, 2020 (867) 
June 30, 2021 
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EXHIBITA-4 

Principal Interest 

Balance and Liens Balance 

Uncollected Uncollected Uncollected 
June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 June 30, 2021 

$ 10,635 $ 10,089 $ 20,724 



Nonmajor 
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NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

Special Revenue Funds 

Special Revenue Funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that are 
restricted or committed to expenditures for specific purposes other than debt service or capital projects. 
The nature and purpose of each Special Revenue Fund is as follows: 

Fund Funding Source Function 
Special Education Grants State and federal grants School related programs 
School Cafeteria Sale of food and grants School lunch program 
School Activity Charges for services Student activities 
Drug Enforcement Federal and state forfeited Drug enforcement and education 

property 
Youth Services Donations and admission fees Youth programs 
Water Rentals from cell phone Maintenance of water 

companies for antennas on infrastructure 
water towers 

Contributed Gifts Donations Expenditures of donations 
according to the purpose of the 
various gifts 

Senior Citizens Donations and program fees Services and programs for senior 
citizens 

Youth Services Local Prevention Local prevention council grant Youth services alcohol and drug 
Council Grant abuse prevention program 
Small Harbor Improvement Connecticut Port Authority grant Mago Point Planning Study-
Projects (SHIP) Grant in aid Design 
Youth Services Mini Grant State grant passed through Community Coalition to address 

NECASA the Opioid Crisis 
Certified Local Government State of Connecticut Department National register nomination for 
Historic Preservation of Economic and Community Oil Mill District 
Enhancement Grant Development 
Dock Removal Grant Grant from private organization Removal of derelict dock 

structures in the Thames River at 
7 4 Scotch Cap Road 

Nuclear Safety Emergency State grant Nuclear Safety Preparedness 
Preparedness Grant Program 
Drug Recognition Expert (DRE) Federal Police Traffic Services Coordination of DRE training 
Support Grant funds passed through the State activities 

of Connecticut DOT 
Safe Polls/Absentee Ballot Federal funds from the Cares Funding for additional costs due 
Support Grant Act, HA VA I and HA VA II passed to the pandemic to ensure safe 

through the State of Connecticut polling places and support for 
processing unprecedented 
number of absentee ballots 

Center for Tech and Civic Life Center for Tech and Civic Life Funding for planning and 
Election Grant (CTCL) Election Grant operationalizing safe and secure 

election administration 
Municipal Covid Relief Grant State of Connecticut Department Funding to support public health 

Office of Policy and Management and safety for the Covid-19 
(OPM) public health emergency 

CT Aging Covid Grant State of Connecticut Department Reimbursement grant for costs 
of Aging and Disability Services related to reopening the Senior 

Center safely due to Covid -19 



Community Foundation Grant Community Foundation Grant Funding for establishing a 
Council for Diversity, Equity and 
Inclusion (DEi) 

Historic Properties Donations Donations to the Historic 
Properties Commission 

Jordan Mill Pond Fishway Grant from nonprofit organization Construct a fishway to promote 
spawning 

Harbor Management Docking and mooring fees Harbor management 

Youth Services Enhancement State grant To promote youth developmental 
Grant activities 

Small Cities Grant II State Community Development Waterford Housing Rehabilitation 
Block Grant (CDBG) funds and Program 
loan payments 

Historic Documents Preservation Connecticut State Library Preservation of historic 
Grant Targeted Grant documents 

Reeve Foundation Grant Christopher Reeve Foundation Purchase of recreational 
grant equipment to make Waterford 

Beach accessible to individuals 
in wheelchairs 

Senior Services Title 1118 Open Federal funding under Title Ill Senior Services open doors 
Doors Grant and matching contributions program for local senior citizens 

Senior Services Wal Mart Grant Grant from Wal Mart Senior services program to 
conduct in-home fall assessment 
risks for local seniors. 

Distracted Driving HVE Grant Department of Transportation Department of Transportation 
Federal Highway Safety Grant Federal Highway Safety Grant 

Student Athletics Fund Gate receipts Site workers, ticket takers and 
tournament fees 

Capital Project Funds 

The Capital Projects Funds are used to account for and report financial resources that are restricted, 
committed or assigned to expenditure for capital outlay. 

Fund Funding Source Function 

Fleet Management Sales and rental of vehicles and Program for funding the 
equipment replacement of equipment and 

vehicles over ten thousand 
dollars 

Sewer Maintenance and Sewer connection fees Maintenance of existing sewer 
Development svstem assets 

Animal Control Facility Donations Construction of an animal shelter 

Capital Improvement General Fund appropriation Various short-term capital 
projects 

Early Childhood Learning Center State grants Construction of a District Magnet 
School 



Permanent Funds 

Permanent Funds are used to account for and report resources that are restricted to the extent that only 
earnings, not principal, may be used for purposes that support the reporting governments programs. 

Fund Funding Source Function 

Hammond Memorial Trust Payments from trust and Maintenance of cemetery 
investment earnings 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Special 
Education 

Grants 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 73,004 

Investments 

Receivables, net 371,893 

lnterfund receivables 9,639 

Supplies 

Prepaid items 

Total Assets $ 454,536 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payable $ 1,983 

Accrued liabilities 24,977 

lnterfund payables 1,035 

Unearned revenue 421,088 

Total liabilities 449,083 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

Unavailable revenue - grants receivable 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 5,453 

Committed 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 5,453 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balances $ 454,536 

School School 
Cafeteria Activi� 

$ 118,820 $ 212,583 
22,632 24,868 

183,554 

9,101 

$ 334,107 $ 237,451 

$ 37,454 $ 
4,343 

224,905 

266,702 

9,101 

58,304 
237,451 

67,405 237,451 

$ 334,107 $ 237,451 

Special Revenue Funds 

Drug 
Enforcement Youth 

Grant Services Water 

$ $ $ 

1,247 

16,086 264,871 639,308 

$ 17,333 $ 264,871 $ 639,308 

$ $ 18,348 $ 6,000 
47,419 1,215 

162,988 

228,755 7,215 

17,333 36,116 

632,093 

17,333 36,116 632,093 

$ 17,333 $ 264,871 $ 639,308 

(Continued on next page) 
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Contributed 
Gifts 

$ 

71,569 

$ 71,569 

$ 992 

992 

70,577 

70,577 

$ 71,569 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Senior 
Services 

$ 

72,887 

72,887 $ 

3 $ 

5,068 

5,071 

67,816 

67,816 

72,887 $ 

EXHIBIT B-1 

Youth 
Services Local Small Harbor 

Prevention Improvement 
Council Grant Projects Grant 

$ 

1,610 35,000 

1,610 $ 35,000 

$ 

35,000 

35,000 

1,610 

1,610 

1,610 $ 35,000 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 

Investments 

Receivables, net 

lnterfund receivables 

Supplies 

Prepaid items 

Total Assets 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payable 

Accrued liabilities 

lnterfund payables 

Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Historic 
Youth Preservation 

Services Enhancement 
Mini Grant Grant 

$ 

3,667 

3,667 $ -

$ 

5,000 

5,000 

Unavailable revenue - grants receivable 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 3,667 
Committed 

Unassigned (5,000) 
Total fund balances 3,667 (5,000) 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances $ 3,667 $ -

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Dock 
Removal 

Grant 

40,376 

40,376 

40,376 
40,376 

40,376 

EXHIBIT B-1 

S_e_ecial Revenue Funds 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

Nuclear 
Safety 

Emergency 
Preearedness 

84,798 

84,798 

36,898 

47,900 

84,798 

84,798 
84,798 

(84,798) 
(84,798) 

84,798 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

DRE 
Support 

Grant 

3,455 

___ 1,309 

4,764 

359 

4,405 

___ 4_,764 

1,309 

(1,309) 

4,764 

(Continued on next page) 
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$ 

Safe Polls/ Center for Tech 
Absentee Ballot and Civic Life (CTCL) Municipal 

Support Election Covid Relief (CRF) 
Grant Grant Grant 

$ $ $ 

CT Aging 

Covid 

Grant 

$ - $ - $ - $===== 

$ $ $ 

$ - $ - $ 

$ 

- $ ===== 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 
Receivables, net 
lnterfund receivables 
Supplies 
Prepaid items 

$ 

Community 
Foundation 

Grant 

7,500 

$ 

Total Assets $ 7,500 $ 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 
Accounts and other payable 
Accrued liabilities 
lnterfund payables 
Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 
Unavailable revenue - grants receivable 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Fund Balances: 
Nonspendable 
Restricted 
Committed 
Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 
Resources and Fund Balances 

$ $ 

7,500 

7,500 

$ 7,500 $ 

Historic 
Pro_e_erties 

12,502 

$ 

12,502 $ 

$ 

12,502 

12,502 

12,502 $ 

Jordan 
Mill Pond 
Fishway_ 

777 

$ 

777 $ 

$ 

777 

777 

777 $ 

S_e_ecial Revenue Funds 

Harbor 
Manag_ement 

34,404 

$ 

34,404 $ 

$ 

395 

395 

34,009 

34,009 

34,404 $ 

Youth 
Services 

Enhancement 
Grant 

14 

$ 

14 $ 

$ 

14 

14 

14 $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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Small 
Cities 

Grant II 

124,334 $ 

192 

Historic 
Documents 

Preservation 
Grant 

-124,526 $==== 

$ 

124,526 

124,526 

$ 

$ 

$ 

124,526 $ - $ 

EXHIBIT B-1 

Senior 
Reeve Services Title IIIB 

Foundation Open Doors 
Grant Grants 

$ 

1,530 3,995 

1,530 $ 3,995 

$ 

1,530 3,995 

1,530 3,995 

1,530 $ 3,995 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING BALANCE SHEET (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Special Revenue Funds 

Senior 
Services 
Wal Mart 

Grant 
ASSETS 

Cash and cash equivalents $ $ 
Investments 

Receivables, net 

lnterfund receivables 500 
Supplies 

Prepaid items 

Total Assets $ 500 $ 

LIABILITIES, DEFERRED INFLOWS OF 
RESOURCES AND FUND BALANCES 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payable $ $ 
Accrued liabilities 

lnterfund payables 

Unearned revenue 

Total liabilities 

Deferred Inflows of Resources: 

Unavailable revenue - grants receivable 

Total deferred inflows of resources 

Fund Balances: 

Nonspendable 

Restricted 

Committed 

Unassigned 

Total fund balances 

Total Liabilities, Deferred Inflows of 

Resources and Fund Balances 

500 

500 

$ 500 $ 

Distracted 
Driving 

HVE Grant 

$ 

- $ 

$ 

- $ 

Student 
Athletics 

28,444 $ 

28,444 $ 

$ 

28,444 

28,444 

28,444 $ 

Fleet 
Management 

2,665,733 $ 

31,962 

2,697,695 $ 

1,453 $ 

45,573 

47,026 

2,650,669 

2,650,669 

2,697,695 $ 

92 

Capital Projects Funds 

Sewer Animal 
Maintenance & Control 
Develoement Facili� 

540,418 $ $ 

1,999 

542,417 $ $ 

2,788 $ $ 

25,245 

28,033 

514,384 

514,384 

542,417 $ - $ 

Capital 
...!!!!e.rovement 

2,280,320 $ 

2,280,320 $ 

112,225 $ 

308,841 

421,066 

1,859,254 

1,859,254 

2,280,320 $ 

Early 
Childhood 
Learning 

Center 

$ 

549,784 

549,784 $ 

$ 

549,784 

549,784 

549,784 $ 

Permanent 

Fund 

Hammond 
Memorial 

Trust 

53 $ 
143,968 

144,021 $ 

$ 

144,021 

144,021 

144,021 $ 

EXHIBIT B-1 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

6,043,709 
191,468 
678,908 

1,766,211 
9,101 
1,309 

8,690,706 

218,503 
78,349 

662,904 
664,520 

1,624,276 

84,798 
84,798 

154,431 
960,613 

5,957,695 
(91,107) 

6,981,632 

�o ,7 06 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 

Fines, penalties and charges for services 

Investment earnings (loss) 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Recreation 

Social services 

Education 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances at End of Year 

$ 

$ 

Special 
Education 

Grants 

1,956,622 $ 

2,500 
1,959,122 

1,959,111 

1,959,111 

11 

11 

5,442 

5,453 $ 

School 
Cafeteria 

726,659 $ 
24,774 

11 

751,444 

730,103 

730,103 

21,341 

21,341 

46,064 

67,405 $ 

S,e.ecial Revenue Funds 

Drug 
School Enforcement Youth Contributed Senior 
Activi� Grant Services Water Gifts Services 

$ 5,374 $ 22,636 $ $ 10,840 $ $ 
158,283 73,384 1,149 

97 
83,285 16,965 13,821 

158,380 5,374 105,921 73,384 27,805 14,970 

23,063 10,489 
63,484 

3,827 
167,031 10,754 

158,297 

158,297 23,063 167,031 63,484 14,316 10,754 

83 (17,689) (61,110) 9,900 13,489 ___ 4,216 

83 (17,689) (61,110) 9,900 13,489 4,216 

237,368 35,022 97,226 622,193 57,088 63,600 

237,451 $ 17,333 $ 36,116 $ 632,093 $ 70,577 $ 67,816 $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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EXHIBIT B-2 

Youth 
Services Local 

Prevention 
Council Grant 

4,153 

4,153 

4,127 

4,127 

26 

26 

1,584 

1,610 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 

Fines, penalties and charges for services 

Investment earnings (loss) 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Recreation 

Social services 

Education 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances at End of Year 

Small Harbor 
Improvement 

Projects Grant 

$ $ 

$ - $ 

Youth 
Services 

Mini Grant 

$ 

3,667 

3,667 $ 

Historic 
Preservation 

Enhancement 
Grant 

$ 

(5,000) 

(5,000) $ 

S.e_ecial Revenue Funds 

Nuclear 
Dock Safety 

Removal Emergency 
Grant Preparedness 

39,624 $ 48,512 $ 

39,624 48,512 

39,624 133,310 

39,624 133,310 

(84,798) 

(84,798) 

- $ (84,798) $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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DRE 
Support 

Grant 

6,119 $ 

6,119 

6,119 

6,119 

- $ 

Safe Polls/ 
Absentee Ballot 

Support 
Grant 

14,041 $ 

14,041 

13,991 

13,991 

50 

(50) 
(50) 

- $ 

EXHIBIT B-2 

Center for Tech 
and Civic Life {CTCL) 

Election 
Grant 

18,360 

18,360 

18,358 

18,358 

2 

(2) 
(2 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT EXHIBIT B-2 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Sp_ecial Revenue Funds 

Youth 
Municipal CT Aging Community Jordan Services Small 

Covid Relief (CRF) Covid Foundation Historic Mill Pond Harbor Enhancement Cities 
Grant Grant Grant Proeerties Fishwa:i Management Grant Grant II 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental $ 126,003 $ 2,442 $ $ $ $ $ 10,734 $ 
Fines, penalties and charges for services 11,625 

Investment earnings (loss) 

Other 7,500 9,194 78,395 

Total revenues 126,003 2,442 7,500 9,194 11,625 10,734 78,395 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 6,040 

Public safety 126,003 2,442 

Public works 

Recreation 

Social services 10,726 

Education 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 126,003 2,442 6,040 10,726 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 7,500 9,194 5,585 8 78,395 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 7,500 9,194 5,585 8 78,395 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 3,308 777 28,424 6 46,131 

Fund Balances at End of Year $ $ - $ 7,500 $ 12,502 $ 777 $ 34,009 $ 14 $ 124,526 

(Continued on next page) 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 

Fines, penalties and charges for services 

Investment earnings (loss) 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Recreation 

Social services 

Education 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fu,nd Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances at End of Year 

Historic 
Documents 

Preservation 
Grant 

$ 5,500 $ 

5,500 

5,500 

5,500 

$ $ 

seecial Revenue Funds 

Senior Senior 
Reeve Services Title 111B Services Distracted 

Foundation Open Doors Wal Mart Driving 
Grant Grants Grant HVE Grant 

$ $ $ 6,298 $ 

10,000 
10,000 6,298 

6,298 

10,000 

10,000 6,298 

1,530 3,995 500 

1,530 $ 3,995 $ 500 $ $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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EXHIBIT 8-2 

Caeital Projects Funds 

Sewer 
Student Fleet Maintenance & 
Athletics Management Development 

$ $ 
12,998 108,825 123,337 

2,771 502 
36,051 

12,998 147,647 123,839 

68,105 

19,981 
596,317 

19,981 596,317 68,105 

(6,983) (448,670) 55,734 

900,000 

900,000 

(6,983) 451,330 55,734 

35,427 2,199,339 458,650 

28,444 $ 2,650,669 $ 514,384 

� 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES (CONTINUED) 

NONMAJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Revenues: 

Intergovernmental 

Fines, penalties and charges for services 

Investment earnings (loss) 

Other 

Total revenues 

Expenditures: 

Current: 

General government 

Public safety 

Public works 

Recreation 

Social services 

Education 

Capital outlay 

Total expenditures 

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues 

over Expenditures 

Other Financing Sources (Uses): 

Transfers in 

Transfers out 

Total other financing sources (uses) 

Net Change in Fund Balances 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year 

Fund Balances at End of Year 

$ 

$ 

Capital Projects Funds 

Animal 
Control Capital 
Facili� Improvement 

$ $ 

25,966 

986,117 
25,966 986,117 

(25,966) (986,117) 

2,269,630 
(1,029,889) 
1,239,741 

(25,966) 253,624 

25,966 1,605,630 

- $ 1,859,254 $ 

Permanent 

Fund 

Early 
Childhood Hammond 
Learning Memorial lnterfund 

Center Trust Eliminations 

$ $ $ 

26,886 

26,886 

9,999 

9,999 

16,887 

(900,000) 
900,000 

16,887 

549,784 127,134 

549,784 $ 144,021 $ - $ 

97 

� � 

EXHIBIT B-2 

Total 
Nonmajor 

Governmental 
Funds 

3,003,917 
514,375 

30,267 
257,711 

3,806,270 

21,539 
405,663 
131,589 

13,827 
192,638 

2,867,492 
1,582,434 
5,215,182 

(1,408,912) 

2,269,630 
(129,941) 

2,139,689 

730,777 

6,250,855 

6,981,632 



Fiduciary Funds 



TRUST FUNDS 

Pension Trust Fund - To account for assets that have been set aside in trust for the employee retirement 
plan for certain Town employees. 

OPEB Trust Fund - To account for assets that have been set aside in trust for other post-employment 
benefits for certain Town employees. 

CUSTODIAL FUND 

Student Scholarship Fund - To account for financial assistance provided to local residents. 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS 

JUNE 30, 2021 

Pension 

Trust Fund 

Assets: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 28,320 

Investments: 

Mutual funds 612,131 

Total assets 640,451 

Liabilities: 

Accounts and other payables 1,401 

Net Position: 

Restricted for OPEB Benefits 

Restricted for Pension Benefits 639,050 

Total Net Position $ 639,050 

98 

OPEB 

Trust Fund 

$ 4,634 $ 

9,071,878 

9,076,512 

14,495 

9,062,017 

$ 9,062,017 $ 

EXHIBIT C-1 

Total 

32,954 

9,684,009 

9,716,963 

15,896 

9,062,017 

639,050 

9,701,067 



EXHIBIT C-2 

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

COMBINING STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN FIDUCIARY NET POSITION 

PENSION AND OTHER EMPLOYEE BENEFIT TRUST FUNDS 

FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2021 

Pension OPEB 

Trust Fund Trust Fund Total 

Additions: 

Contributions: 

Employer $ 82,000 $ 1,445,778 $ 1,527,778 

Investment income: 

Net change in fair value of investments 117,497 1,860,477 1,977,974 

Total additions 199,497 3,306,255 3,505,752 

Deductions: 

Benefit payments 95,139 345,778 440,917 

Administration 5,755 7,791 13,546 

Total deductions 100,894 353,569 454,463 

Change in Net Position 98,603 2,952,686 3,051,289 

Net Position at Beginning of Year 540,447 6,109,331 6,649,778 

Net Position at End of Year $ 639,050 $ 9,062,017 $ 9,701,067 
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Statistical Section Information 

The objectives of statistical section information are to provide financial 
statement users with additional historical perspective, context and detail to 
assist in using the information in the financial statements, notes to financial 
statements and required supplementary information to understand and assess 
economic condition. 

Statistical section information is presented in the following categories: 

• Financial trends information is intended to assist users in understanding
and assessing how financial position has changed over time.

• Revenue capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding
and assessing the factors affecting the ability to generate own-source
revenues (property taxes, charges for services, etc.).

• Debt capacity information is intended to assist users in understanding and
assessing debt burden and the ability to issue additional debt.

• Demographic and economic information is intended 1) to assist users in
understanding the socioeconomic environment and 2) to provide
information that facilitates comparisons of financial statement information
over time and among governments.

• Operating information is intended to provide contextual information about
operations and resources to assist readers in using financial statement
information to understand and assess economic condition.

The accompanying tables are presented in the above order. Refer to the Table 
of Contents for applicable page number locations. 

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in the tables is derived from the 
comprehensive annual financial reports for the relevant year. 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

NET POSITION BY COMPONENT 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

2021 

Governmental activities: 
Net investment in capital assets $ 165,530 $ 

Restricted 1,440 
Un restricted (9,002) 

Total governmental activities net position 157,968 

Business-type activities: 
Net investment in capital assets 45,670 
Restricted 
Un restricted 4,767 

Total business-type activities net position 50,438 

Primary government: 
Net investment in capital assets 211,201 
Restricted 1,440 
Unrestricted (4,235) 

Total Primary Government Net Position $ 208,405 $ 

Notes: 
(1) Schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting.

2020 2019 2018 

177,425 $ 172;217 $ 172,063 $ 

127 135 137 
(19,134) (13,040) (11,532) 
158,418 159,312 160,668 

47,418 49,212 50,975 

4 609 4 361 3,842 
52,027 53,573 54,817 

224,843 221,430 223,038 
127 135 137 

(14,525) (8,679) (7,690) 

210,445 $ 212,885 $ 215,485 $ 

100 

TABLE 1 

FISCAL YEAR 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 
---

172,024 $ 174,397 $ 174,913 $ 173,491 $ 178,578 $ 176,727 
145 130 216 178 169 139 

(5,839) (10,913) (5,725) 5,299 3,661 5,367 
166,330 163,614 169,404 178,968 182,408 ____!g233 

52,848 54,164 54,835 55,840 57,974 56,785 
346 

3,822 3,299 2,765 2 194 1 379 794 
56,670 57,463 57,600 58,034 59,353 ___fil,925 

224,872 228,561 229,748 229,331 236,552 233,512 
145 130 216 178 169 485 

(2,017) (7,614) (2,960) 7,493 _ _  5,040 6,161 

223,000 $ 221,077 $ 227,004 $ 237,002 $ 241,761 $ 240,158 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

Expenses: 
Governmental activities: 

General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Library 
Social services 
Education 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total governmental activities expenses 
Business-type activities: 

Utilities Commission 

Total primary government expenses 

Program Revenues: 
Governmental activities: 

Charges for services: 
General government 
Public safety 
Public works 
Recreation 
Library 
Social services 
Education 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total governmental activities program revenues 
Business-type activities: 

Charges for services 
Operating grants and contributions 
Capital grants and contributions 

Total business-type activities program revenues 

Total primary government program revenues 

Net (expense) revenue: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total Primary Government Net Expense 

$ 

$ 

2021 

15,705 $ 

13,999 
8,780 
1,763 
1,156 
1,285 

74,351 
1,393 

118,433 

5,480 

123,913 

1,762 
293 
872 

89 

11 
319 

19,990 
578 

23,914 

3,841 

16 
3,857 

27,772 

(94,519) 
(1,623) 

(96,141) $ 

2020 

15,856 $ 

13,150 
8,086 
1,941 
1,159 
1,427 

68,539 
2,057 

112,215 

5,399 

117,614 

1,068 
502 
612 
180 

10 
185 
533 

13,901 
658 

17,649 

3,710 

3,710 

21,359 

(94,566) 
(1,689) 

(96,255) $ 

2019 

15,429 $ 

13,198 
8,432 
1,773 
1,154 
1,370 

60,142 
2,285 

103,783 

5,217 

109,000 

1,119 
561 
735 
232 

16 
294 
657 

6,171 
839 

10,624 

3,765 

3,765 

14,389 

(93,159) 
(1,452) 

(94,611) $ 

(Continued on next page) 
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2018 

14,892 $ 

12,098 
7,180 
1,020 
1,065 
1,299 

64,680 
2,400 

104,634 

5,740 

110,374 

1,032 
500 
635 
228 

17 
236 
611 

12,205 
2,450 

17,914 

3,654 

3,654 

21,568 

(86,720) 
(2,086) 

(88,806) $ 

FISCAL YEAR 

2017 

13,745 $ 

11,508 
8,558 
1,763 

917 
1,321 

61,805 
2,604 

102,221 

4,945 

107,166 

1,289 
265 
846 
217 

18 
261 
582 

11,261 
3,106 

17,845 

3,727 

417 
4,144 

21,989 

(84,376) 
(801) 

(85,177) $ 

2016 

14,176 $ 

13,356 
8,569 
1,897 
1,598 
3,238 

56,442 
2,795 

102,071 

5,172 

107,243 

1,135 
254 
829 
218 

19 
243 
592 

9,056 
1,004 

13,350 

3,728 

1,307 
5,035 

18,385 

(88,721) 
(137) 

(88,858) $ 

2015 

13,676 $ 

10,640 
7,384 
1,822 
1,383 
3,254 

55,882 
3,096 

97,137 

5,178 

102,315 

1,168 
201 
528 
213 

19 
189 
721 

8,874 
6,163 

18,076 

3,797 
2 

945 
4,744 

22,820 

(79,061) 
(434) 

(79,495) $ 

2014 

12,699 $ 

10,167 
7,292 
1,741 
1,470 
3,282 

56,593 
2,809 

96,053 

5,666 

101,719 

1,181 
258 
967 
184 

19 
187 
728 

9,940 
1,584 

15,048 

3,914 
8 

423 
4,345 

19,393 

(81,005) 
(1,321) 

(82,326) $ 

2013 

12,041 $ 

10,337 
9,094 
1,706 
1,032 
1,297 

57,492 
2,521 

95,520 

4,531 

100,051 

1,533 
162 
786 
173 

18 
130 
701 

8,859 
6,596 

18,958 

3,621 

2,685 
6,306 

25,264 

(76,562) 
1,775 

(74,787) $ 

TABLE 2 

2012 

12,304 
10,155 

8,681 
1,646 
1,052 
1,243 

53,735 
886 

�702 

__ 6_,004 

�706 

1,191 
119 
847 
166 

18 
109 
767 

8,878 

_____i,lQ§ 
_______!L801 

3,752 

1,383 
_ _  5_,135 

______ll,936 

(71,901) 
(869) 

(72,770) 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

CHANGES IN NET POSITION (CONTINUED) 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

General revenues and other changes in net position: 
Governmental activities: 

Property taxes 
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific 

programs 
Unrestricted investment earnings 
Miscellaneous 
Transfers 

Total governmental activities 

Business-type activities: 
Investment earnings 
Transfers 

Total business-type activities 

Total Primary Government 

Changes in Net Position: 
Governmental activities 
Business-type activities 

Total Primary Government 

Notes: 
(1) Schedule prepared on the accrual basis of accounting. 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2021 

93,198 $ 

356 
133 
175 
(31) 

93,831 

3 
31 
34 

93,865 $ 

(688) $ 

(1,589) 

(2,277) $ 

2020 

92,136 $ 

351 
1,083 

197 
(95) 

93,672 

47 
95 

142 

93,814 $ 

(894) $ 

(1,547) 

(2,441) $ 

102 

2019 

90,251 $ 

353 
1,297 

39 
(138) 

91,802 

70 
138 
208 

92,010 $ 

(1,357) $ 

(1,244) 

(2,601) $ 

2018 

87,927 $ 

294 
686 
145 

(196) 
88,856 

37 
196 
233 

89,089 $ 

2,136 $ 

(1,853) 

283 $ 

FISCAL YEAR 

2017 

85,884 

771 
315 
123 

87,093 

8 

8 

87,101 

2,717 
(793) 

1,924 

$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

2016 

81,996 $ 

695 
185 

54 

82,930 

82,930 $ 

(5,791) $ 

(137i 

(5,928) $ 

2015 

79,071 $ 

830 
158 

7 

80,066 

80,066 $ 

1,005 $ 

(434) 

571 $ 

2014 

76,529 $ 

779 
137 
120 

77,565 

77,565 $ 

(3,440) $ 

(1,321) 

(4,761) $ 

TABLE2 

2013 2012 

73,583 $ 69,204 

953 975 
168 222 

1,687 1,689 
346 

76,737 _____fl_,090 

(346) 
(346) 

76,391 $ _____fl_,090 

175 $ 189 
1,429 (869) 

1,604 $ (680) 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

FUND BALANCES OF GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

2021 2020 

General Fund: 
Nonspendable $ 22 $ 215 
Committed 
Assigned 779 935 
Unassigned 22,981 18,963 

Total General Fund $ 23,782 $ 20,113 

All other governmental funds: 
Nonspendable $ 154 $ 131 
Restricted 961 910 
Committed 13,755 11,434 
Assigned 1,606 
Unassigned (3,033) (2,946) 

Total All Other Governmental Funds $ 11,837 $ 11,135 

2019 

$ 191 $ 

287 
16,781 

$ 17,259 $ 

$ 140 $ 
877 

7,206 
1,189 

(2,942) 

$ 6,470 $ 

FISCAL YEAR 

2018 2017 2016 

158 $ 45 $ 461 $ 

651 366 513 
13,980 13,183 10,948 

14,789 $ 13,594 $ 11,922 $ 

142 $ 145 $ 130 $ 
1,040 1,033 887 
8,061 9,437 10,250 

900 620 364 
(2,980) (3,699) (5,924) 

7,163 $ 7,536 $ 5,707 $ 

103 

2015 2014 

67 $ 29 
10,437 

369 497 
10,138 1,984 

10,574 $ 12,947 

150 $ 150 
1,112 1,574 

14,367 12,746 
186 149 

(6,021) (5,844) 

9,794 $ 8,775 

$ 

TABLE 3 

2013 2012 
---

43 $ 31 
8,991 9,455 

569 533 
� �2,236 891 

$ 11,839 $ 10,910 

$ 126 $ 108 
1,497 1,433 

13,269 13,634 
183 248 

(18,255) (41,121) 

$ (3,180) $ (25,698) 



TABLE4 

TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

REVENUES, EXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES· GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

FISCAL YEAR 

� 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 � 2014 2013 � ---- ----

Revenues: 

Property taxes, interest and liens $ 93,334 $ 92,060 91,062 $ 87,828 86,168 $ 81,756 $ 78,907 $ 76,356 $ 73,304 68,990 

Intergovernmental 11,736 11,396 12,197 10,197 15,149 11,367 12,055 13,140 16,929 13,903 

Assessments and connections 131 123 53 70 33 95 145 50 7 

Licenses and permits 1,988 1,641 1,737 1,624 1,175 1,021 1,040 1,028 1,387 1,043 

Fines, penalties and charges for services 1,151 1,382 1,771 1,591 1,806 1,524 1,511 1,524 1,389 1,511 

Investment earnings 128 1,020 1,254 659 304 181 156 135 166 220 

Other __ 2_91_ 276 134 162 708 740 � � � _..!E9..._ ----
Total revenues 108,760 107,898 108,208 � � 96,684 � � � � 

Expenditures: 

General government 14,620 14,164 13,454 13,480 13,493 13,180 12,290 11,837 11,409 11,394 

Public safety 11,188 10,615 10,737 10,248 10,053 10,022 9,690 9,269 9,055 8,636 

Public works 4,764 4,385 4,822 4,341 4,763 4,435 4,401 4,863 5,503 4,804 

Recreation 1,323 1,465 1,412 1,382 1,728 1,634 1,670 1,645 1,533 1,481 

Library 1,076 1,007 1,022 1,003 1,037 1,546 1,438 1,465 1,032 1,024 

Social services 1,033 1,113 1,199 1,242 1,244 2,990 3,187 3,104 1,165 1,119 

Education 59,771 58,698 58,886 55,761 56,983 50,786 50,850 50,512 51,428 50,163 

Capital outlay 8,383 11,637 7,314 6,424 5,156 7,414 5,438 9,025 21,885 37,732 

Debt service: 

Principal 5,060 5,145 5,020 4,980 4,585 4,430 4,005 2,670 2,015 1,265 

Interest � 2,355 � � � � � � � ___ 7_8_1_ 

Total expenditures 109,933 110,584 � � � � � � � � 

Excess of revenues over (under) 

expenditures � (2,686) _J2]J_ 821 � � � � � (30,995) 

Other financing sources (uses): 

Transfers in 3,801 5,975 4,978 4,834 5,274 3,509 6,646 3,776 4,079 7,399 

Transfers out (3,801) (5,975) (4,978) (4,834) (5,274) (3,509) (6,646) (3,776) (3,733) (7,399) 

Bonds and notes issued 32,545 19,085 14,585 15,930 33,750 15,640 

Bond and notes premium 1,442 1,610 2,842 404 1,608 

Payment to refunding bond escrow agent (28,679) (10,490) {17,289l ---- ----
Total other financing sources (uses) � 10,205 138 � � � 

Net change in fund balances 4,134 7,519 1,777 821 3,502 (2,738) (1,354) 13,064 23,446 (15,355) 

Fund Balances at Beginning of Year, as restated � 23,729 � ----21E.1.. 17,629 � ----2!E!... � � � 

Fund Balances at End of Year $ 35,619 $ 31,248 23,729 $ 21,952 $ 21,131 17,629 $ 20,367 $ 21,721 $ 8,657 $ (14,789) 
= = = = 

Debt Service as a Percentage of 

Noncapital Expenditures 8.29% 8.20% 8.29% 8.49% 8.42% 8.77% 8.45% 6.37% 5.54% 2.60% 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

ASSESSED VALUE AND ESTIMATED ACTUAL VALUE OF TAXABLE PROPERTY 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

In Thousands 

Real Estate 

Fiscal 

Year Grand List 

Ended Year 

June 30 October 1 Residential Commercial Industrial 

2021 2019 $ 1,496,995 $ 811,742 $ 33,151 $ 

2020 2018 1,490,621 820,308 333,682 

2019 2017 1,487,852 818,493 333,099 

2018 2016 1,469,387 410,093 734,321 

2017 2015 1,463,583 399,505 734,321 

2016 2014 1,460,280 404,196 734,321 

2015 2013 1,447,859 402,598 738,064 

2014 2012 1,447,758 430,568 799,766 

2013 2011 1,894,137 433,114 781,274 

2012 2010 1,894,682 424,348 784,968 

Source: Assessor's Office - Town of Waterford 

Notes: (1) Revaluation October 1, 2012 

Personal Motor 
Property Vehicles 

875,071 $ 161,228 $ 
843,989 156,473 
834,617 155,805 
814,973 152,334 
791,659 150,220 

760,024 149,335 

803,517 149,082 
789,947 146,841 
799,238 148,736 
799,628 142,437 
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Less: 
Exemptions 

348,230 $ 

344,559 

339,574 
342,048 

345,424 

349,274 

343,699 

441,933 

343,864 
346,231 

Total Taxable 

Assessed 

Value 

3,330,957 

3,300,514 

3,290,292 
3,239,060 

3,193,864 

3,158,882 

3,197,421 
3,172,947 

3,712,635 
3,699,832 

Total Direct Tax 

Rate (Mill Rate) 

27.87 

27.98 

27.42 

27.03 

26.78 

25.83 

24.80 

24.08 

19.77 
18.79 

TABLE 5 

Estimated 

Actual Taxable 

Value 

$ 4,758,510 

4,715,019 

4,700,417 
4,627,229 

4,562,663 

4,512,689 

4,567,744 

4,532,781 
5,303,764 

5,285,474 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

PRINCIPAL PROPERTY TAXPAYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

Business Name 

Dominion Nuclear Connecticut 

Eversource/Yankee Gas 

Crystal Mall/Simon Properties 

Centro GA 

Mass Municipal 

Chase Crossroads & Waterford Plaza 

Charter Oak Federal Credit Union 

Sonalysts Inc. 

Walmart 

VTR Northeast Holdings LLC 

Total 

Source: Town of Waterford, Office of Tax Assessor 

Nature of Business 

Nuclear Power 

Utility 

Shopping Center 

Shopping Center 

Business Corp 

Shopping Center 

Banking Headquarters 

Government Contractor 

Shopping Center 

Healthcare 

2019 GL 

Taxable Assessed Value Rank 

$ 1,115,641 1 

88,817 2 

30,690 3 

29,145 4 

25,636 5 

13,977 6 

13,473 7 

12,838 8 

12,184 9 

11,816 10 

$ 1,354,216 
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Percentage of 

Total Taxable 

Assessed Value 

33.49% $ 

2.67% 

0.92% 

0.87% 

0.77% 

0.42% 

0.40% 

0.37% 

0.37% 

0.35% 

40.63% $ 

TABLE 6 

2010 GL 

Percentage of 

Taxable Assessed Total Taxable 

Value Rank Assessed Value 

1,108,715 1 30.32% 

45,795 1.25% 

88,417 2 2.42% 

30,951 5 0.85% 

8 0.00% 

30,655 6 0.84% 

0.00% 

13,165 10 0.36% 

19,777 7 0.54% 

11,148 0.30% 

1,348,623 36.88% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 
PROPERTY TAX LEVIES AND COLLECTIONS 
LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 
fin Thousands) 

Taxes Levied 
Fiscal Year Tax Rate for the Fiscal 

Ended June 30 in Mills Year 

2021 27.87 $ 93,122 $ 

2020 27.98 92,085 

2019 27.42 90,489 

2018 27.03 87,763 

2017 26.78 85,757 

2016 25.83 81,681 

2015 24.80 79,312 

2014 24.08 76,344 

2013 19.77 73,354 

2012 18.79 69,485 

Adjusted 
Taxes Levied 

Tax Levy for the Fiscal 
Adjustment Year 

(198) $ 92,924 $ 
(573) 91,512

(188) 90,301
(219) 87,544

(185) 85,572

(126) 81,555
(367) 78,945

(448) 75,896

(150) 73,204
(263) 69,222

Source: Tax Collector's Report; Comprehensive Annual Financial Report 
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TABLE 7 

Collected within the 
Fiscal Year of the Levy Total Collections to Date 

Collections 
in 

Subsequent 
Amount Percentage Years Amount Percentage 

92,501 99.33% $ $ 92,501 99.33% 
91,644 99.52% 197 91,841 99.74% 
89,774 99.21% 477 90,251 99.74% 
86,952 99.08% 327 87,279 99.45% 
85,025 99.15% 474 85,499 99.70% 
80,913 99.06% 319 81,232 99.60% 
78,331 98.76% 293 78,624 99.59% 
75,511 98.91% 181 75,692 99.73% 
72,501 98.84% 562 73,063 99.81% 
68,573 98.69% 537 69,110 99.84% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

RATIOS OF OUTSTANDING DEBT BY TYPE 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

General 

Obligation 

Fiscal Year Bonds Capital Leases 

2021 $ 72,815 $ 

2020 73,030 

2019 69,465 

2018 74,485 

2017 79,465 

2016 85,715 

2015 90,145 

2014 94,885 

2013 91,625 

2012 83,640 

Ratio of Debt 

Utility Total Primary to Per Capita 

Commission Government Income 

$ $ 72,815 6.38% 
73,030 8.81% 
69,465 8.70% 
74,485 9.32% 
79,465 9.95% 
85,715 10.68% 
90,145 11.12% 

94,885 11.62% 

91,625 12.00% 

83,640 10.94% 

Note: Details regarding the Town's outstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial statements. 
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TABLE 8 

Ratio of Debt 

to Taxable 

Assessed Debt per 

Value Capita 

2.19% $ 3,730 
2.21% 3,742 

2.10% 3,655 

2.30% 3,919 

2.49% 4,181 

2.71% 4,487 

2.82% 4,675 

2.99% 4,884 

2.47% 4,698 

2.26% 4,282 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

SCHEDULE OF DEBT LIMITATION 

JUNE 30, 2021 

(In Thousands) 

Total Tax Collections for Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2020, Including Interest and Lien Fees 

Reimbursement for revenue loss on: 
State owned and private tax exempt properties 
Property tax relief 

Base 

General 

Purpose Schools 

Debt Limitation: 
2-1/4 times base
4-1/2 times base
3-3/4 times base
3-1/4 times base
3 times base
7 times base

Total debt limitation 

Indebtedness: 
Bonds payable 
Authorized and unissued 

$ 208,546 $ 
417,092 

208,546 417,092 

13,655 59,160 
1,345 7,247 

15,000 66,407 

Sewers 

$ $ 

347,576 

347,576 

Urban 

Renewal 

301,233 

301,233 

$ 

TABLE 9 

$ 92,426 

253 
8 

$ 92,687 

Pension 

Deficit Total 

$ 

278,061 
648,809 

278,061 648,809 

Total indebtedness 

Debt Limitation in 
Excess of Outstanding 
and Authorized Debt $ 193,546 $ 350,685 $ 347,576 $ 301,233 $ 278,061 $ 648,809 

Note 1: 

Note 2: 

In no event shall total debt exceed seven times annual receipts from taxation. The maximum amount 
permitted would be $649 million. 

Bonds authorized and unissued represent bond authorizations for which bonds have been issued 
to partially finance the project or interim financing has been issued. 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT TABLE10 

LEGAL DEBT MARGIN INFORMATION 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

(In Thousands) 

FISCAL YEAR 
2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Debt limit $ 648,809 638,610 $ 614,811 $ 603,200 $ 603,192 $ 572,307 $ 552,363 $ 534,504 $ 513,141 $ 482,944 

Total net debt applicable to limit 72,815 73,030 69,465 74,485 87,841 134,033 138,463 137,207 139,957 144,615 

Legal debt margin $ 575,994 565,580 $ 545,346 $ 528,715 $ 515,351 $ 438,274 $ 413,900 $ 397,297 $ 373,184 $ 338,329 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

DEMOGRAPHIC AND ECONOMIC STATISTICS 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Per Capita 

Fiscal Personal Income Total Personal School 

Year Population (1, 6) (1,6) Income (5) Median Age (2,6) Enrollment (3) 

2021 19,519 $ 44,280 $ - 42 2,367 

2020 18,746 43,125 - 46 2,469 

2019 19,007 42,028 - 49 2,518 

2018 19,007 42,028 - 48 2,653 

2017 19,007 42,028 - 48 2,776 

2016 19,427 39,498 - 47 2,749 

2015 19,427 39,498 - 46 2,764 

2014 19,508 39,042 - 47 2,799 

2013 19,517 38,245 - 46 2,895 

2012 19,517 37,690 - 45 2,967 
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TABLE 11 

Unemployment 
Rate (4) 

7.7% 

10.6% 

3.7% 

2.8% 

3.7% 

4.8% 

5.4% 

6.0% 

7.6% 

8.0% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

PRINCIPAL EMPLOYERS 

CURRENT YEAR AND NINE YEARS AGO 

Business Name Nature of Business 

Dominion Nuclear Connecticut 

Town of Waterford 

Waterford Hotel Group 

Wal Mart Stores, Inc 

Sonalysts Inc. 

Home Depot 

Bayview Healthcare Center 

Lowe's Home Improvement 

BJ's Wholesale 

Coca Cola Bottling 

Total 

Nuclear Power 

Municipality 

Hospitality 

Retail 

Government Contractor 

Hardware & Lumber 

Healthcare Facility 

Hardware & Lumber 

Retail Store 

Distributor 

Source: Employment Data - Official Statement July 2019 

2021 

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employees Rank Employment 

1,650 1 16.74% 
692 2 7.02% 

531 3 5.39% 

497 4 5.04% 

275 5 2.79% 
200 6 2.03% 
198 7 2.01% 
160 8 1.62% 
116 9 1.18% 
112 10 1.14% 

4,431 44.96% 
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2012 

Employees Rank 

1,650 1 

645 2 

531 3 

497 4 

275 5 

186 7 
225 6 
182 8 

4,191 

TABLE 12 

Percentage of 

Total City 

Employment 

16.61% 

6.29% 

5.35% 

5.00% 

2.77% 

1.87% 

2.26% 

1.83% 

41.98% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT 

FULL-TIME EQUIVALENT GOVERNMENT EMPLOYEES BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

2021 2020 2019 

General government 72.65 94 92 

Police 53 55 54 

Fire 15.5 15 15 

Refuse collection 6 6 6 

Other public works 28 27 24 

Recreation and parks 12 11 10 

Library 16 21 24 

Education 463 463 463 

Total 463 692 688 

Source: Town and Board of Education Human Resources Departments 
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2018 

92 
54 

15 

6 

24 
10 

24 

461 

686 

TABLE 13 

2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

92 92 92 92 93 93 
54 54 54 54 56 56 

15 15 20 15 15 15 
6 6 6 5 5 5 

24 24 24 28 28 28 
10 10 10 13 13 13 

24 24 24 23 23 23 
456 455 455 455 440 440 

681 680 685 685 673 673 



TOWN OF WATERF<;)RD, CONNECTICUT 

OPERATING INDICATORS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

Function/Program 2021 2020 2019 

General Government 

Building permits issued 13 30 28 

Building inspections conducted 180 330 475 

Police 
Physical arrests 708 818 1,062 

Parking violations 24 69 146 

Traffic violations 3,159 4,102 6,344 

Fire 
Emergency responses 2,239 2,900 3,930 

Fires extinguished 69 81 47 

Inspections 139 185 272 

Refuse Collection 
Refuse collected (tons per day) 31 29 28 

Recycleables collected (tons per day) 7 8 15 

Other Public Works 
Street resurfacing (miles) 1 2 3 

Potholes repaired 211 267 453 

Recreation and Parks 
Athletic field permits issued 1,494 1,026 2,091 

Community center admissions (1) 493 19,524 61,784 

Number of program registrations 27 3,229 6,146 

Program fees 815 63,933 212,071 

Senior Services 
Number of program participants 23,147 24,181 47,159 

Program revenue 22,719 26,771 34,138 

Library 
Volumes in collection 78,436 78,250 81,782 

Total volumes borrowed 136,477 151,739 193,542 

Water 
New connections 36 25 25 

Water main breaks 14 11 11 

Average daily consumption (MGD) 2.4 2.7 2.7 

Peak daily consumption (MGD) 4.2 4.7 4.7 

Source: Department Directors 
Note: COV/019 had as significant impact on some department operations. 

2018 2017 2016 2015 

31 24 15 15 
490 312 195 282 

1,170 1,128 1,914 1,955 

147 162 176 38 
5,162 3,509 4,066 3,691 

4,167 3,860 3,896 3,668 
60 62 82 60 

323 311 425 488 

28 25 48 27 
17 17 17 13 

2 2 3 4 

534 372 510 989 

2,003 2,076 2,060 2,832 
61,000 61,218 62,240 61,689 

7,247 6,973 7,531 5,812 

203,612 201,084 201,885 190,780 

47,060 45,751 43,931 45,432 

32,040 29,135 31,074 27,988 

84,904 80,254 83,023 81,283 
200,769 209,508 218,010 232,796 

28 22 7 7 

13 7 6 7 

2.7 2.7 2.7 2.7 

4.6 4.6 4.6 4.6 
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2014 

19 
408 

2,104 

57 

4,937 

3,624 
68 

539 

42 
9 

3 

747 

2,855 
61,630 

5,381 

190,485 

44,856 

29,911 

83,076 

242,724 

8 
9 

2.7 

4.6 

2013 

22 
460 

1,718 

58 
5,046 

3,823 

61 

558 

45 

9 

5 

422 

2,009 
61,742 

6,596 
205,803 

45,173 

33,573 

82,460 
236,607 

17 

4 
2.7 

4.6 

TABLE 14 

2012 

17 
223 

1,283 

54 
4,431 

3,297 

53 

648 

44 
9 

8 

400 

2,087 
62,439 

6,742 

159,623 

46,302 

31,653 

86,105 

231,572 

16 
8 

2.6 
4.5 



TOWN OF WATERFORD, CONNECTICUT TABLE 15 

CAPITAL ASSETS STATISTICS BY FUNCTION/PROGRAM 

LAST TEN FISCAL YEARS 

FISCAL YEAR 

Function/Program 2021 2020 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014 2013 2012 

Police 

Stations 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Zone offices 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 
Patrol units 28 28 28 26 26 20 20 20 20 20 

Fire 

Stations 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Refuse Collection 

Collection trucks 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 

Other Public Works 

Streets (Miles) 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 121 

Storm drain (Miles) 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 61 

Recreation and Parks 

Acreage 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 

Playgrounds 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 

Baseball/softball diamonds 15 15 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 14 

Soccer/football fields 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 

Community centers 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 

Water 

Water main (miles)* 111 111 111 111 111 111 110 110 109 109 

Fire hydrants 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,134 1,133 1,133 1,128 1,128 

Storage capacity (000's of gallons) 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,800 5,8,00 5,800 

Wastewater 

Sanitary sewers (miles)** 149.15 149.15 148.01 148.01 148.01 148.01 148.01 148.01 146.10 146.10 

Pump stations 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 28 27 27 

Source: Directors at each department 

* Does not include service connections

** Includes lateral sewer service connections
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T N OF WATERFORD, CT 

ADOPTED BUDGET 

Fiscal Vear: July 1, 2021 - June 30, 2022 

The following was adopted by the RTM on May 6, 2021 
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TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND BUDGET 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND-EXPENDITURE SUMMARY 

2021-2022 FISCAL YEAR 

ADOPTED BUDGET 

General Government Operations 

Board of Education - Operating Budget 

Capital and Debt Service: 

Current Year Capital Improvements 

Transfers to Capital and Non-Recurring Expenditure 

Debt Service 

Total Capital and Debt Service 

TOTAL BUDGET 

$ 34,560,086 

$ 51,043,047 

$ 2,964,754 

$ 900,600 

$ 7,934,633 

$ 11,799,987 

$ 97,403,120 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 

MILL RATE CALCULATION 

FY2022 EXPENDITURES PROPOSED BUDGET 

Grand List 

Net Taxable Grand List after BAA- 3/10/2021 

Average Rate of Collections 

Net Grand List-Adj. For Rate of Collections 

Value of a Mill ( adjusted for rate of collections) 

Mill Rate Calculation 

Expenditures as approved by the BOF (3/24/21) 

Revenue from sources other than Taxes 

Application of Fund Balance 

Amount to Be Raised by Taxes 

FY 2022 Mill Rate Requirement 

FY 2021 Mill Rate 

Mill Rate Increase/Decrease 

Percent Increase/Decrease 

3,387,173,186 

99.1% 

_1J56 688 627 

3.356.689 

97,403,120 

4,212,489 

_Q 

93,190.631 

27.76 

27.87 

-0.11

-0.39%



REVENUE 

1

11'' , " IJBlm,llfllB!lilRPA 
PILOT-STATE-OWNED PROP. .. 

. .....

PILOT-DISABLED 
PILOT-PRIVATE TAX EXEMPT PROP 
TAX RELIEF-VETERANS 
COURT FINES 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

· 2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET REVENUE

--� 

143,075 143,075 143,075 
1,873 1,873 1,919 

109,838 109,838 109,838 
8,148 8,148 8,503 

9,490 9,000 1,405 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT- CIVIL PREPAREDNESS 2,500 2,500 19,823 
TELECOMMUNICATIONS PROPERTY TAX 53,807 52,000 0 
TOWN AID ROADS 317,588 318,883 158,638 
SOE STATE GRANTS 14,000 14,000 7,095 
GRANTS FOR MUNICIPAL PROJECTS 34,255 34,255 0 
COVID RELIEF FUNDS 0 0 106,000 
ENHANCED 911 22,333 22,981 16,612 

,, ... lit II 

143,075 0 
1,873 0 

109,838 0 
8,148 0 
5,000 (4,000) 
2,500 0 

58,656 6,656 
317,277 (1,606) 

14,000 0 
34,255 0 

0 
16,000 

0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 
0.0% 

-44.4%
0.0% 

12.8% 
-0.5%
0.0% 

100.0% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET REVENUE 

REVENUE 

�b;; 

INTEREST & LIEN FEES 301,889 325,000 141,541 

INTEREST - INVESTMENTS 872,628 300,000 52,140 

RECREATION & PARKS COMM. 165,818 150,000 46,246 

COMMUNITY USE OF SCHOOLS 14,447 0 0 

BUILDING INSPECTOR 336,118 325,000 281,045 

LICENSES, FEES, PERMITS & FINES 19,147 21,797 18,133 

LIBRARY 10,304 16,810 0 

WATER MAIN ASSESSMENTS 781 0 363 

SALE OF EQUIPMENT 9,236 0 854 

SCRRRA REBATE 2,252 0 7,814 

NEW LONDON RADIO COMM. NETWORK USE FEE 114,000 114,000 81,237 

ALARM PENAL TIES 100 0 100 

BULKY WASTE FEES 95,063 100,000 55,919 

MISCELLANEOUS 54,478 50,000 80,160 

CONVEYANCE TAX 291,184 200,000 235,980 

REGIONAL COMMUNICATION CTR. 6,000 6,000 1,500 

SEWER ASSESSMENTS 13,507 0 6,253 

P&Z, ZBA & CONSERVATION 33,094 44,000 43,298 

TOWN CLERK'S FEES 188,548 150,000 126,745 

UTILITY COMMISSION LIEN FEES 10,360 10,000 0 

COMMERCIAL TIPPING FEES 267,846 300,000 127,874 

RECYCLING 39,650 50,000 17,181 

UNLIQUIDATED PRIOR YEAR ENCUMBRANCES 39,365 100 6,152 

RENTALS 199,307 150,940 103,074 

407,280 82,280 25.3% 
120,000 (180,000) -60.0%
220,000 70,000 46.7% 

0 0 #DIV/0! 
357,237 32,237 9.9% 

56,727 34,930 160.3% 
16,810 0 0.0% 

1,200 1,200 0.0% 
0 0 #DIV/0! 
0 0 0.0% 

81,000 (33,000) -28.9%
0 0 #DIV/0! 

72,851 (27,149) -27.1%
69,312 19,312 38.6% 

200,000 0 0.0% 
6,000 0 0.0% 

0 0 #DIV/0! 
40,062 (3,938' -9.0%

200,000 50,000 33.3% 
10,000 0 0.0% 

319,083 19,083 6.4% 
35,562 (14,438) -28.9%

1,000 900 900.0% 
105,950 (44,990) -29.8%



REVENUE 

AMBULANCE OPERATING SUBSIDY 
SENIOR SERVICES 
TRANSFER IN OTHER FUNDS 
VERSA KART/BLUE BOX SALES 
C-PACE STIPEND
EUGENE O'NEILL GATE RECEIPTS
BOE HUMAN RESOURCES OFFSET 
CIRMA MEMBERS EQUITY DISTRIBUTION 
YSB BOE CLERICAL SUBSIDY 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET REVENUE 

214,896 12,000 6,000 
26,781 30,880 0 

358,913 0 0 
5,370 4,500 4,530 

500 500 0 
23,648 0 8,587 
15,665 15,628 16,119 
90,164 0 37,305 

5,000 5,000 5,000 
RI. l .m111n:111 . 11111

,,1 I ' ,1 

12,000 0 
15,820 (15,060 

0 0 
5,370 870 

0 (500) 
10,000 10,000 
15,119 (509) 

0 0 
5,000 0 

0.0% 
19.3% 

-100.0%
100.0% 
-3.3%
0.0% 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

10102 REGISTRARS OF VOTERS 
10103 BOARD OF FINANCE 
10104 ASSESSOR 
10105 BD. OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS 
10106 TAX COLLECTOR 
10107 FINANCE DEPARTMENT 
10108 LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

10109 TOWN CLERK 
10110 PLANNING & ZONING 

10111 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
10112 INSURANCE 

TOWNOFWATERFORD. 
GENERAL FUND EXPENDITURES 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

DEPARTMENTAL SUMMARY 

392,891 201,320 
69,802 74,279 
61,418 66,000 

290,208 283,613 
1,446 1 588 

198,508 206,156 
655,167 701,270 
307,356 298,000 
265,192 267,309 
550,528 629,267 
225,090 253,045 

4,649,884 4,658,000 
10113 ECONOMJC DEVELOPMENT COMM 6,831 8,576 
10114 
10115 
10116 
10117 
10118 
10119 
10120 
10121 
10122 
10123 
l0129 
10130 
10132 
10133 
10135 
10136 
10137 
10141 
10143 
10145 
10146 
10147 

10160 

10138 
10139 
10140 

CONSERVATION COMMJSSION 
ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 
RETIREMENT COMMISSION 
REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MTG. 
BUILDING DEPARTMENT 
YOUTH & FAMILY SERVICES 
SOC. SVC. GRANTS/MISC. 
CONTINGENCY 
EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 
FIRE SERVICES 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 
CONSERVATION OF HEALTH 
PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING SERV. 
SENIOR CITIZENS COMMISSION 
WATERFORD PUBLIC LIBRARY 
RECREATION & PARKS COMM. 
FLOOD & EROSION CONTROL BD 
ETHICS COMMISSION 
HUMAN RESOURCES DEPT. 
COMMUNITY USE OF SCHOOLS 
INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 

I OPERATING BUDGET 

ill:' " 

CURRENT YEAR CAPITAL IMPR. 
DEBT SERVICE 
TRANS TO CAP & NON-REC. 

16,969 18,250 
2,459 4,310 

5,098,103 5,982,978 
18,019 18 953 

244,453 289,423 
242,910 244 743 

83,175 81 780 
Jl4,934 265,000 

1,122,592 1,087,258 
3,069,463 3,101,562 
6,272,172 6,450,741 
4,357,816 4,689,207 

140,082 139,197 
25,830 27,820 

477,293 548,127 
1,017,094 1,069,663 
1,438,643 1,511,615 

335 2,138 
1,011 650 

244,000 266,233 
172,252 86,126 
753,374 824,968 

I 48:672,2111 50,372,315 

1,443,850 
7,389,902 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

(77,044 
0 

77 044 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

I 

0 I 

0 
0 
0 

90,277 0 205,313 205,313 3,993 1.98% 
43,451 0 74,508 74,508 229 0.31% 
59,177 65,547 65,547 65,547 (453 -0.69% 

138,772 0 291,847 291,847 8,234 2.90% 
242 1,620 1,620 1,620 32 2.02% 

I Jl,348 0 2Jl,907 211,907 5,751 2.79% 
321,757 0 653,894 653,894 (47,376 -6.76% 
108 075 0 298,000 298,000 0 0.00% 
146,528 0 269,750 269,750 2,441 0.91% 
319,075 634,914 634,914 634,914 5,647 0.90% 
103,042 0 778,870 778,870 525,825 207.80% 

1,140,148 0 4,717,903 4,717,903 59,903 1.29% 
7,043 11,076 10,076 10,076 1,500 17.49% 

12,891 0 18,250 18,250 0 0.00% 
1,935 4,310 4,310 4,310 0 0.00% 

3,709,972 5,932,906 5,682,906 5,682,906 (300,072 -5.02% 
8,958 18,903 18,903 18,903 /50) -0.26% 

105,976 0 293,008 293,008 3,585 1.24% 
115,931 288,224 232,634 232,634 (12,109) -4.95% 

74,281 84,366 84,366 84,366 2,586 3.16% 
0 265,000 265,000 265,000 0 · 0.00% 

485,640 0 1,062,665 1,062,665 (24,593) -2.26% 
1,749,168 0 3,411,155 3,326 034 224,472 7.24% 
3,336,113 6,421,688 6,421,688 6,421,688 (29,053 -0.45% 
2,616,765 0 4,709,654 4,709,654 20,447 0.44% 

139,197 0 142,282 142,282 3,085 2.22% 
2,520 0 27,820 27,820 0 0.00% 

202,326 491,489 491,489 49),489 (56,638) -10.33% 
586,266 1,014,724 999,475 999,475 (70,188) -6.56% 
639,858 1,487,566 1,450,159 1,450,159 (61,456) -4.07% 

145 2,138 2,138 2,138 0 0.00% 
219 0 850 850 200 30.77% 

123,505 0 265,664 265,664 (569 -0.21% 
0 0 0 (86,126) -100.00% 

502,123 854,618 846,642 846,642 21,674 2.63% 

I 

19,598,448 50,645,471 l 51,043,047 670.,732 

2,228,530 2,964,754 2,964,754 2,964,754 748,074 
5,766,252 7,934,633 7,934,633 7,934,633 305,843 
1,401,280 975,600 975,600 900,600 500,680 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10101 

51010 FIRST SELECTMAN 106,451 

51020 OTHER SELECTMEN 3,657 

5ll10 ADMINISTRATION 70 024 

51210 CLERICALrrECHNICAL 0 

51810 OVERTIME 0 

51920 F.l.C.A 13 

52010 ADVERTISING 0 

52020 POSTAGE 250 

52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 3,929 

52040 SERVICE CONT & REPAIRS 1,398 

52050 DUES, CONF., & EDUCATION 0 

52070 URSABLE EXPENSE 270 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

BOARD OF SELECTMEN 

107,596 

3,669 

69 497 

75 

0 

lOO 

75 

3 680 

1,300 

150 

370 

150 200 

968 -200 

0 

52,985 

1,834 

27 976 

63 

0 

6255 

0 

19 

0 

549 

0 

254 

164 

110,837 110,837 110,837 110,837 3,241 3.01% 
3,780 3 780 3,780 3,780 Ill 3.03% 

71 061 71,061 71,061 71,061 1,564 2.25% 
75 75 75 75 0 0.00% 
0 0 0 0 

14 0 14,210 14 210 520 3.80% 

100 100 100 100 0 0.00% 
100 100 100 100 25 33.33% 

3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 -680 -18.48% 
0 0 0 0 -1,300 -100.00% 

400 400 250 166.67% 
700 700 330 89.19% 

150 0 0.00% 
900 -68 -7.02"/4 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10102 

51010 ELECTED OFFICIALS 
51310 VOTER REGISTRATION 
51320 ELECTION ACTIVITIES 
51920 F.l.C.A 

!!lllil:I 
52010 ADVERTISING 
52020 POSTAGE 
52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIRS 
52050 DUES, CONF., & EDUCATION 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 
52080 TELEPHONE 

I'
'

,I' 

I 

53020 /OTHER SUPPLIES 
' ,. ., 

54180 TvoTING MACHINE 

1 l 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

REGISTRARS OF VOTERS 

46,444 47,280 
1,997 3,500 
6,339 8,240 
4,191 4,515 

s 

0 I 

1,562 1,400 
2,000 2,000 
1,010 1,220 

623 878 
0 100 

J: ( 

5,6361 5,144 I 

-Ill�,,,

01 II 

l l --1 

23,128 47,848 
2,016 3,500 
8,875 6,657 
3,237 4,437 

' 1 l l · �) 

0 I 

1,122 1,300 
2,000 2,250 

340 1,110 
501 885 

0 1 
' 

I I 

2,232 6,518 

I 

0 I 

,,1, 

47,848 47,848 47,848 568 1.20% 47,848 
3,500 3,500 ' 3,500 0 0.00% 3,5001 
6,657 6,657 6,657 -1,583 -19.21% 6,6571 
4,437 4,437 4,437 -78 -1.73% 4,4371 'I!!:: • l@HII, !>tli!J!lllffll� ' 

I I I 0 0.00% 
1,300 1,300 1,300 -100 -7.14% 1,3001 
2,250 2,250 2,250 250 12.50% 2,2501 
1,110 1,110 1,110 -110 -9.02% 1,110 

885 885 885 7 0.80% 885 
I I 1 -99 -99.00% 

·, 
,;,,.:'I I ii 

6,518 6,518I I 6,5181 1,3741 26.71%I I 6,518 

1111' ·s

·1jw1""""' 

�lllllil�lll.,ill!H . ""l!ll\'ll'lfillllBlll!lill!'ffll�W!ll�flL,,iliiiiiiiiiii!i,lniillliliiiiil1!1Jil 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10103 BOARD OF FINANCE 

4,1001 -161 3351 
3001 261 

r,:i!!41!ij I 

2,300 0 
59,300 0 58,800 

0 
l!lll!111,..,,,oillll1,mi,,:i•i1i! m•=•�� -·

_Q_ 16 16 

3,61 II 
2761 

2,300 
59,300 

0 

I I 

60 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

3,6111 3,611 I 
2761 2761 

2,300 2,300 
59,300 59,300 

601 601 
R!llll/llll 

3,611 I I 
276 I 

2,300 
59,300 

0 

601 I 

3,6111 
276 

;[J '' , 
I 

2,300 
59,300 

0 

601 

-4891 3,61 I 
-24 276 

I 1/1,1;1, 

0 2,300 
0 59)00 

60 

f�,iif� 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10104 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

ASSESSOR 

.lllll!lll!IIIIII
,_ __ ----+-----+--- _ _ _ _

5lll0 ADMINISTRATION 201,303 196,788 94,683 196,788 196,788 196,788 196,788 0 0.00% .!96,788. 
51210 CLERICAL/fECHNICAL 62,080 58,818 (736 30,004 62,788 62,788 62,788 62,788 3,970 6.75% 62,788. 
51810 OVERTIME 32 2,697 0 0 0 0 0 -2,697 -100.00% o. 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 1,887 0 (1,805 0 2,408 2,408 2,408 2,408 2,408. 
51920 F.I.C.A 19,402 19,761 9,057 20,041 20,041 20,041 20,041 280 1.42% 20,041 
1, !,, .. , , ',1 _ ... ,'i'"•i., _ i!iz I llllllfr!l!�m11�1ruiil!f , . II , I 

II, 1"'11"'·" --+--- - -- --
52010 ADVERTISING 366 650 (150) 214 400 400 400 400 -250 -38.46% 400 
52020 POSTAGE 1,364 744 (20) 215 1,031 1,031 1.031 t031 287 38.58% 1,031. 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 478 0 250 250 250 250 250 250 250 
52040 SERVICE CONT & REPAIRS 2,319 1,680 3 561 3,747 5,666 5,666 5,666 5,666 3,986 237.26% 5,6661 ;52050 DUES, CONF., & EDUCATION 450 1,825 (1,250 320 1,825 1,825 1,825 1,825 0 0.00% 1,825 
l52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE O O O O O O O 

1 , i , �l.-1 , 'f ., ,"11,.�, 111il1M1!1!11m1,1,1ml1tui21 

I 11 
53020 ToTHER SUPPLIES 57 150 150 282 150 150 150 150 ol o.OO¾ 
l53200 lPRICING BOOKS 470 500 500 500 500 500 OJ O.OOo/� 

r• .. ' I ,J i1 
I I 0 

_ _________ __ _ _ __ 
' ,, '11'11""11"111"'\II •' !Iii! / /II,·:, � .. ,! -�•JIIIIIIIE�lll�'lllil!



DEPT/AGENCY: 10105 

TOWNOFWAT ERFOR D 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

BO. OF ASSESSMENT APPEALS 

3001 

6641 I 
2691' ol I 

80[ 7'.!.[ l 

791 
0I 
6j 

694 I 694 I 6947 6941 1 
I I I I I 

76J 76 I 76 I 76 I I 
,�illlllllllllll/111111, 

6941 301 4.52% 
0 I ol 

76 I 2 I 2.70% 

ii . 

0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
1: .1 I 

lll'!lli't 

694 30 
0 0 

76 2 
mllilll 

350 o1 
50 ol 

150 OJ 
5, 

'[fl\\\1 • . illffll]I

0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10106 TAX COLLECTOR 

51810 !OVERTIME I 0 0 I 
51920 JF.1.C.A 11,495 12,478 

�ll! ! ,11 !
'· 

�I ' 

WI� 
52010 ADVERTISING 655 700 
52020 POSTAGE 5,552 6,000 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 20,579 21,832 
52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIR 1,339 1,350 
52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUCATION 632 685 (500 

• 

1,000 

I 
II 

575 50 
� ' jool'•�•1•�-jl!lilij 

41,9861 
37,260 

I 
5,766 

! ll'si6Jfill

328 
2,190 

21,491 
1,350 

0 
" 'J' 

927 
.,, 

I 

50 

' I ! 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

86,286 I 86,286 I 
82,334 82,334 

0 01 
12,900 12,900 I 

I 1111111 

700 700 
6,000 6,000 

22,214 22,214 
1,178 1,178 

195 195 
, .. 

'' 

35 100 I 
� ' !" 

I I 

65 I 01 
I, 

n l1t 

86,286 I I 86,286 I 
82,334 82,334 

01 0 
12,900 12,900 

� j; ., 

700 700 
6,000 6,000 

22,214 22,214 
1,178 1,178 

195 195 
1jimlMID!llllillll!1111l1111!)1 rm/ -

100 I 100 I 
.. , 

I 

0I I 0 
,' I Ill' 

1,024 I 1.20%1 
4,565 I 5.87% 

422 3.38% 
' '" >11,,rn,�"ml" 

0 
0 

382 
(172) 

(490 
II.

I 

70 I 

I 

(50)1 
' 

I 

0.00% 
0.00% 
1.75% 

-12.74% 
-71.53% 

• ·1 

233.33% 

I 

I 

-100.00%1 

' I 

'I' " �1\lrnmm"";,,""'""''!•II 

I 86,286 
82,334 

I 0 
I 12,900 

J 
I 

700 
6,000 

22,214 
1,178 

195 
,. ·m 

.. ! 

100 
!II

T 0 
:=-�=·• 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10107 

51010 ELECTED OFFICIALS 
51110 ADMINISTRATION 
51210 CLERICALfTECHNICAL 
51810 OVERTIME 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 
51920 F.LC.A 

52010 ADVERTISING 
52020 POSTAGE 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 
52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIR 
52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUCATION 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 
52080 TELEPHONE 

M 

53010 !OFFICE SUPPLIES 
W.�i 

540!0 !OFFICE FURNITURE I 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-20222 PROPOSED BUDGET 

FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

28,111 28,620 
279,572 292,050 15,775) 
188,390 188,150 

1,946 2,650 
1,485 2,750 

36,393 39,150 
' 

0 500 
3,874 4,800 

56,016 68,820 
23,073 21,490 5,775 
1,688 4,240 

170 JOO 
13,826 17,950 

20,623 30,000 
.I 

I 01 I 

14,309 29,485 
136,629 292,334 
95,145 196 889 

879 2,650 
200 2,950 

18,020 39,885 

0 500 
1,200 4,500 

17,471 60,000 
15,316 24,997 
1,305 6,184 

0 100 
6,165 14,475 

15,1181 32,000 

o_l 01 

29,485 29,485 29,485 
292,334 292,334 292,334 
147,394 147,394 147,394 

2,650 2,650 2,650 
2,950 2,950 2,950 

36,325 36,325 36,325 
" "' .  ,, " ' 

I 

500 500 500 
4,500 4,500 4,500 

60,000 60,000 60,000 
24,997 24,997 24,997 
6,184 6,184 6,184 

100 100 100 
14,475 14,475 14,475 

32,000 32,0001 I 32,0001 
1 J�tmiiiM'\iMHD�'II! ·i .r,,,,..;;i.,._/_._' -"-

---

01 01 I 
---01 

865 
284 

-40,756 
0 

200 
-2,825 

0 
-300 

-8,820 
3,507 
1,944 

0 
-3,475 

2,000 

I 

3,02% 
0.10% 

-21.66% 
0.00% 
7.27% 

-7.22% 

'

0.00% 
-6.25% 

-12.82% 
16.32% 
45.85% 
0.00% 

-19.36% 

6,67% 

I 

29,485 
292,334 
147,394 

2,650 
2,950 

36,325 

500 
4,500 

60,000 
24,997 
6,184 

100 
14,475 

L 31,_000 

I 0 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

PROBATE COURT 

MISC. CLAIMS 

�---, 

10108 LEGAL DEPARTMENT 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

260
2
000 

33,000 

5,000 

.1JJ�dllli1 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

51010 IELECTEDOl'FICIALS 
51110 !ADMINISTRATION 
51210 I CLERICAL/TECHNICAL 

OVERTIME 

POSTAGE 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 
52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIR 
52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUCATION 
52060 PRINTING 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 
52180 VITAL STATISTICS 
52510 RENTALO 
�liiJ1)ll!i11i 

53010 
53020 
53270 
53280 

10109 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

TOWN CLERK 

89,987 90,908 
73,966 73,307 
52,166 51,720 

0 100 

1,299 1,000 
2,556 2,900 

0 I 

0 I 

675 850 
0 
0 I 

250 250 

44,767 92,707 
36,872 73,966 
26,529 54,957 

0 100 

0 1,300 
1,409. 2,500 

0 I 

0 1 
375 850 

0 

OI 1 

92,707 92,707 
73,966 73,966 
54,957 54,957 

100 100 
16,962 16,962 

llli�l!!'G92!l! !IC.� .. 

1,300 1,300 
2,500 2,500 

I I 

I 1 
850 850 

01 250 I 250 I )50 
25,000 24,000 24,000 

'-:;;z ' ''.I': �'.�..lt�U r,llllJl!!lllil 

872 
0 

1,415 
0 

1,450 
700 

l,450 
700 

92,707 
73,966 
54,957 

100 

1,300 
2,500 

I 
1 

850 

250 

1,799 
659 

3,237 
0 

300 
(400 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

1.98% 
0.90% 
6.26% 
0.00% 

30.00% 
-13.79% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

-50.00% 

92,707 
73,966 
54,957 

100 

1,300 
2,500 

850 

250 
24,000 

.!llllll\llf11/I 

1,450 
"100 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10110 PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

rm to ADMINISTRATION 104,897 104,097 52,418 108,835 108,835 l08,835 108,835 108,835 4,738 4.55% l08,835 4 738 4.55% 

151120 INSPECTION 232 647 272,147 130,624 272,386 272,386 272 386 272,386 272 386 239 0,Q9% 272 386 239 0.09% 
151210 CLERICAL/fECHNICAL 136,367 142 460 72,303 149,889 149,889 149 889 149 889 149 889 7,429 5.21% 149,889 7,429 5.21% 

518IO OVERTIME I 819 4,9IO 1,176 5,139 5,139 5,139 5,139 5,139 229 4.66% 5 139 229 4.66% 

51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 4,119 5 687 5 213 7,705 7,705 7 705 7 705 7,705 2,018 35.48% 7,705 2,018 35.48% 

51920 F.1.C.A 34,559 40,491 18,645 41,613 41,613 41,613 41,613 41,613 1,122 2.77% 41,613 1,122 2.77% 

' i I""'='" -�111t;il,lilffll I ,I H' "ill 
!HJ��llil 

52010 ADVERTISING 3 835 4,000 I 701 4,000 4,000 4 000 4 000 4 000 0 0.00% 4,000 0 0.00% 

52020 POSTAGE 504 450 235 450 450 450 450 450 0 0.00% 450 0 0 . .00% 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 8 373 20 000 l0,000 20,000 20 000 20,000 20,000 20,000 0 0.00% 20 000 0 0.00% 

52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIR 16,783 25,764 23,649 16741 16,741 16 741 16 741 16,741 (9 023) -35.02% 16,741 (9,023) -35.02% 

52050 DUES, CONF. "& EDUCATION 2,677 4,396 I 585 2 721 2,721 2 721 2,721 2 721 (I 6751 -38.10% 2,721 Cl 675) -38.IO% 
52060 PRINTING 29 450 38 450 450 450 450 450 0 0.00% 450 0 0.00% 

52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE __ ____ o 200 _ __ __,.!!� 200 200 200 200 200 0 0.00% 200 0 0.00% 

''"'' 

53010 TOFFICE SUPPLIES I 2,6981 2,750T T 1,1841 2,150T 2 750 2,750 2,750 2,750 I 0 0.00% 2 750 ol 0.00%7 
53090 lFUELS & LUBRICANTS J._ -�'11. __ 16a __ _L_ 118_1 595 I 595 595 595 595 (170) -22.22% 595 (170) -22.22o/'!f 

l§J,-,,,,.l! l11111lm.l [l(jl!@1,IBHfilfflll."illflft ' , ,I' 
[ ! I ·!IS , ffi1m1�•·• 

7411 7001 I 1861 1,440 I_ 1,44()__ J,44_0 1,440 _1,4401_ 740 105.71% 1,440 7401 105.71%1 lill!"�' ' � J 'ii••--

'ifflll • o. 
---- --- - l I



DEPT/AGENCY: 

[51810 IOVERTIME I 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS I 

[51920 )F.l.C.A l 
-- -

T 
lll\1111111111) 

52010 ADVERTISING 
52040 SERVICE CONT. & REPAIRS 
52090 FUEL OIL/NATURAL GAS 
52100 ELECTRICITY 
52110 WATER 
52120 SEWER 

ll111111llllfilllllRimlll '' 
--

T 
cmr � 

'. 
,_ .. 

53020 lOTHER SUPPLIES 
II ti

[55030 TBUILDING IMPROVEMENTS 
!. I ' '"''!" 

10111 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

BUILDING MAINTENANCE 

53,071 76,500 
0 

0 75 
4,085 5,858 

m, :111111 ''"'""' 

0 1,020 
51,407 61,357 

3,563 6,735 
58,969 60,000 

1,035 1,600 
2,362 2,900 

,�111111im:,��1i lllllll[Jllll��l!llfl>I l!i!f!lllilllllllllHlll!ll!lllilllll .!

18,643 10,000 

. 1111. ·• -�'':!'Im ,, '11111111!1 ,,1 

31,955 27,000 
_, __ I j; 

'i'llilll'!ti!lll!illlltli!l.�m11l>llilll!lilil!il'I 

36,190 76,500 
110 0 

0 75 
2,772 5,858 

0 1,020 
23,673 171,360 

940 129,061 
14,644 343,343 

373 12,186 
909 21,775 ' 

f'\t.,,. 

4,000 8,000 

19,4311 9,692 
I " 1, .. ,1 I 

', -

76,500 
0 

75 
5,858 

'ii.: 

1,020 
171,360 
129,061 
343,343 

12,186 
21,775 
'"" 

8,000 
I "'" 

9,692 
I 

la!lllllli,,. 

I 

I! I 

76,500 
0 

75 
5,858 

1.020 
171,360 
129,061 
343,343 
12,186 
21,775 

! "''I ' ,, 

8,000 
... , 

9,692 
.. �11 

. .. 
ii: 

!. 

. ' 
11iallfll 

76,soo I OJ 0.00% 
0 

751 ol 0.00% 
5,858 0 0.00% 

' Jl6il 

J -

1,020 0 0.00% 
171,360 110,003 179.28% 
129,061 122,326 1816.27% 
343,343 283,343 472.24% 
12,186 10,586 661.63% 
21,775 18,875 650.86% 

! .. 

I I --

8,000 (2,000)1 -20.00%1 
!Ql!llii 1[11111!" 

'' 11:ml/ 
I fJ 

9,692 (17,308)1 -64.10%, 
r.,. I!, 

I 
-!ll'�l-i[l!llii 

I 

1,020 
171,360 
129,061 
343,343 
12,186 
21,775 

8,000 
!l[jll/;jllllllll1IR!OO/l!I 

9,692 

l



DEPT/AGENCY: 

52200 WORKERS' COMPENSATION 

52201 LIABILITY/AUTO/PROPERTY ILAPl 

52240 UNEMPLOYMENT COMPENSATION 

52250 DEDUCTIBLE COVERAGE 

52251 HEALTHCARE 

52252 LONG TERM DISABILITY 

52253 LIFE INSURANCE 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10112 INSURANCE 

713,648 710,000 
411,0ll 420,000 
43,498 5,000 
48,865 35,000 

3,410,686 3,460,000 
2,440 3,000 

19,736 25,000 

ltiii!l\'l!l!.-i!Mi_,.,1 I', '. . 

496,679 734,664 
359,959 455,676 
15,113 I0,000 

0 35,000 
256,685 3,458,563 

1,499 3,000 
10,213 21,000 

I' i I . 'ii"'l'�•1"�'"""':l�ij; 

734,664 734,664 
455,676 455,676 
10,000 10,000 
35,000 35,000 

3,458,563 3,458,563 
3,000 3,000 

21,000 21,000 
,,

.,,· 1 i·:�:11, ,. 

734,664 
455,676 
10,000 
35,000 

3,458,563 
3,000 

21,000 
' ,. 

' 

24,664 3.47% 734,664 
35 676 8.49% 455,676 
5 000 100.00% I0,000 

0 0.00% 35,000 
0,437) -0.04% 3,458,563 

0 0.00% 3,000 
(4,000) -16.00% 21,000 
"11·1 

I 
1; ' ''.'_'i� ' �,�



530IO !OFFICE SUPPLIES T 
�\� 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

IOIIJ ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT COMM. 

6.83iT 7,851 
150 
150 

o1 0 0 
: ill 

7 043 

< .

0 
�-

0 0 0 
2 500 2,500 1,500 
7,851 7,851 7.851 

150 150 150 
150 150 ISO 

'I ' I 

0 0 0 
,,, 'I 

I' I 

425 
0 

1,500 
7,851 

ISO 
150 

I .. 
I 

0 I I 
1 �1tm1'i1m1

11im�1111"m1t 

425 
0 

1,soo I 
1,ss1 I 

ISO I 
150 I 

I 
I 

0 I 
I! ,. 

0 
0 
0 

1.sooT 1,500 

0.00% 7,851 I o I 0.00% 
0.00% ISO 
0,00% 150 

0 
1�·'"'/rn"JIIII'� 'I I m" !ll!'•''"''lruJIII

I --
!1(4 It < llliii..141 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10114 CONSERVATION COMMISSION 

52010 ADVERTISING 902 1,500 
52020 POSTAGE 104 125 
52030 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 3,500 3,500 
52031 PLANNING SERVICES 12,000 12,000 
52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUC. 455 600 
52060 PRINTING 0 25 

il1II 
" I . ,, 

,. 

53020 I OTHER SUPPLIES I 81 5001 I 
.. ,, 

10)} 
I 

�-�;!'llilll!l/ll!ltfflJ/!ffllil!lliiil' !, 

406 
59 

250 
12,000 

115 

1 
., 

ol 

I . 
,I 

I 500 
125 

3,500 
12,000 

600 
25 

500 I 

I 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

1,500 
125 

3,500 
12,000 

600 
25 

�111ll!l!ll 

I 500 I 
1
1
1
1 

I 

I 
!' Hf! 

1,500 
125 

3,500 
12,000 

600 
25 

' 

500 I I 
1 :1,.,,�,1 I 

I I 
!I' ,i 

Jlli! 

1,500 0 0.00% 

125 0 0.00% 

3,500 0 0,00% 
12,000 0 0.00% 

600 0 0.00% 
25 0 . , __ 0.00% 

5007 ol o.oo%T 
I Im•1111; I 

I 
ll,!1111111111!1\jij!!ll!!llllllulll!l'l!lllll!III !1111!!! 

1,500 
125 

3,500 
12,000 

600 
25 

I 500 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10115 

illlll\lffil 1 

ADVERTISrNG 

POSTAGE 

DUES, CONF. & EDUC. 
me ,,ml!Aii ,, 

ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS 

1m 
88 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

J,700 

160 

400 

v�lllm'I�

OI 0.00%1 
01 0.00'/o 
01 0.00% 

,-I 

I 

I 
01 0.00% 

,,,, � 

I 
I 
I 

I 

1111.ll.li! 

3,700 
160 
400 

so 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

51930 
51940 
51945 
51949 

I HYPERTENSION/ HEART DISEASE 
I PENSION CONTRIBUTIONS 
IREITREE HEALTI!BENEFITS 

lOPEB TRUST FUND CONTRIBUTION 
;I ... 

10116 

TOWNOFWATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

RETIREMENT COMMISSION 

167,292 181,100 I 
3,812,390 4,305,701 I 

355,708 396,177 I 
762,713 1,100,000 I 

���i. h' � '1,111!11 
l 

89,3381 181,448 181,448 I 
2,350,6021 4,348,776 4.348,776 I 

168,0651 402,682 402,682 I 
1,101,9671 1,000,000 1,000,000 I 

I 111 ! 

l - I 

181,448 181,448 
4,348.776 4,348,776 

402,682 402,682 
750,000 750,000 

,,, ,, 1•wi1 

llll!Sll 
'I, ii I' I 

181,448 
4,348,776 

402,682 
750,000 

'!! 

348 I 0.19%1 
43,075 I 1.00%I 

6,505 I 1.64%1 
(350,000)1 -31.82%1 
I 'l!l>/lll 

1)0,lm!); 

I 
I 
I 
I 

!JI 

181,448 
4,348,776 

402,682 
750,000 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10117 

52050 DUES, CONFERENCES, EDUC. 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

REPRESENTATIVE TOWN MEETING 

6,000 

100 

12,852 

6,000 6000 

50 50 

12 852 I 852 

6,000 

50 

12,852 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

51110 ADMINISTRATION 
51120 INSPECTION 
51810 OVERTIME 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 
51920 FICA 

52010 ADVERTISING 
52020 POSTAGE 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 
52040 SERVICE CONT.& REPAIRS 
52050 DUES,S:ONF., & EDUCATION 

I 
, ,· 

530!0 !OFFICE SUPPLIES I 
53090 jFUELS & LUBRICANTS l 

54060 I OFFICE EQUIPMENT I 
1111 ·, 

·'"" 

10118 

I 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

BUILDING DEPARTMENT 

96,229 95,976 
126,023 159,207 (16,164) 

205 1,243 
0 225 1,164 

16,469 19,634 
m� '' '. li II ,. 

738 1,200 
873 900 

0 750 15,000 
2,144 2,658 

480 5,480 
I ,, "::rai' I I 

732 850 
560 900 

Ill 

ol 4001 
I -, 'I'�':,,

47,969 
43,807 

136 
1,389 
6,672 

I 1m·. 

273 
402 

3,206 
967 
977 

I 

0 
178 

0 
I 

95,976 
159,207 

1,243 
3,925 

20,029 
!/$'bt1"';;.,f 

1,050 
900 
750 

2,658 
5,480 

850 
540 

400 
'I I 'l1h!l!!l1 I 

95,976 
159,207 

11i111J'II '· 

I 

I 

l[l1m11 

1,243 
3,925 

20,029 '' 

1,050 
900 
750 

2,658 
5.480 

,, ' 

850 
540 

400 
'

95,976 
159,207 

1,243 
3,925 

20,029 

1,050 
900 
750 

2,658 
5,480 

. 

850 
540 

400 
I '' /ll]llml!l!IIW\li 

Ullffli 

95,976 0 0.00% 
159,207 0 0.00% 

1,243 0 0.00% 
3,925 3,700 1644.44% 

20,029 395 
'I 

" > < ili�ei 

1,050 (150) -12.50% 
900 0 0.00% 
750 0 0.00% 

2,658 0 0.00% 
5,480 0 0.00% 

a J1m1! j "'
'1ilJ:

850 0 0.00% 
540 (360) -40.00% 

1 400 I 01 0.00% 
111�nf11n1rn 

I •• 

!ii. ir4ra



DEPT/AGENCY: 10119 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

YOlffH & FAMILY SERVICES 

144,933 141,352 10,021 141,683 141,683 141,683 141,6831 I 141,6831 331 I 0.23%1 
43,533 42.339 21 750 46,542 96,658 46,542 46,5421 I 46,5421 4,203 9.93% 

366 o 115 o 0 0 0I I DI o 
13,375 14,052 6,137 14,399 18,233 14,399 14,3991 I 14,39!!J_ 347J 2.473/� 

'!'0:1: Jlil;;f);111:•'l"'•�i: il!-illifwl1' ·II1111r!!lllliriilf;02"" -�'ll��l l;i!!il1er;ij�;itl 1111w,m�!iU[:®!il'�J IJll�iiilillll�,'llll�liJ(g'tJi� 

235 200 76 200 200 200 200 200 0 0.00% 200 O 
14,922 22,000 9,538 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000 22,000 0 0.00% 22,000 O 0.00% 

'52040 SERVICE CONT.& REPAIRS 1,247 1,200 696 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 1,060 (140 -11.67% 1,060 (140) -I 1.67% 
52050 DUES, CONF, & EDUCATION 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 550 0 0.00"/o 550 0 0.00"/o 
52080 TELEPHONE 3,234 2,200 1,325 2,200 3,840 2,200 2.200 2,200 0 0.00% 2,200 O 0.00% 
52100 ELECTRICITY 13,647 16,000 4,637 0 (16,000 -l00.00% 0 (16,000) -l00,00% 
521IO WATER 82 200 37 0 (200) -100,00% 0 (200) -100.00% 
52120 SEWER 282 650 273 0 (650) -100.00% 0 (650) -100.00% 
52380 PROGRAMS 6,504 4,000 776 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 4,000 0 0.00% 4,000 0 0.00% 
11111·11 •1111llf/,\'iJ!,illii!'W!lllill/fsi!R'Fr, iii! ' ,, ill iit--wr®l\'Ul!lif�O:I !1]1ii[lij:l';9Jl!1Ulli:!lffii:qlh1 ""�'fill!!lallifsit'il J 

' ''ffi!"· ·• - �l!ll!i\,Jil! 
-- ... 

llr)ig.Jilli�li:�ii� l�!Jl!R�!il IMi!:!lf!(iil!llt.ePl '' . I '""'"""il!j•�;.,.ti""'"',.;�!£' " ' i1\\llmli\t�iB. · 1>�1,, - --- · - -�[iij.;., m\\l. ;;�1� 



DEPT/AGENCY: l0120 

-tlllfflii
WATERFORD SHELLFISH COMMISSION 
WATERFORD/EAST LYME SHELLFISH 5,000 

52634 SECT COUNCIL OF GOVERNMENTS 10 734 
52635 HISTORIC PROPERTIES COMMISSION 158 
52636 T.V.C.C.A 5.000 
52638 DISABLED AMERICAN VETERANS 0 
52639 V.F.W. POST 6573 9975 &. AL 161 1,994 
52643 SAFE F1JTIJRES 6 500 
52644 SEAT 35,013 
52645 EASTERN CT CONSERVATION DISTRICT INC 1,500 
52646 TOWN HISTORIAN 776 

'I"' 

[ill 

7.200 
TTHE ARCOF NEWLONDONCOUNTY 1 800 
INL HOMELESS HOSPITALITY CENTER 4,000 
ISACCEC 0 

!ll!fflll l);il , i 

l!l!!!l 

SOCIAL SERVICE GRANTS/MISC 

1,250 0 
10,734 10,734 

400 145 
5,000 5 000 

250 0 
1,994 0 
6.500 6.500 

35,888 35,888 
1,500 0 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

5,000 2,500 
10,734 10 734 

400 400 
5 000 5,000 

250 250 
1.994 1994 
6,500 6 500 

35,888 35 888 
1,500 1 500 

2,500 
10,734 

400 
5,000 

250 
1,994 
6500 

35,888 
1,500 

800 350 -� 800 800 

1,800 
7.200 
1,800 
5,000 

. . 0 
,, 

1,800 
7 200 

0 
5,000 

0 
t 

5,000 1 800 1,800 
8,000 7200 7200 
1.800 1800 1,800 
5,000 5,000 5,000 
1,000 I 000 1,000 

2.500 2.500 1.250 100.00% 2 500 1.250 
10,734 10,734 0 0.00% 10734 0 0.00% 

400 400 0 0.00% 400 0 0.00% 

5.000 5,000 0 0.00% 5 000 0 0.00% 

250 250 0 0.00% 250 0 0.00% 

1,994 1,994 0 0.00% 1 994 0 0.00% 

6,500 6 500 0 0.00% 6,500 0 0.00% 

35 888 35,888 0 0.00% 35,888 0 0.00% 
1,500 1,500 0 0.00% 1.500 0 0.00% 

800 800 0 0.00% 800 --

---
I 800 1,800 0 0.00% 1 800 0 O.OW� 
7,200 7 200 0 0.00% 7,200 0 0.00%1 
1,800 1,800 0 0.00% 1,800 0 0.00%1 
5 000 5,000 0 0.00% 5 000 0 0.00� 
1,000 I 000 

jfl.IDIJ" ! ' .t 1:1""' 

-- ---



DEPT/AGENCY; 10121 CONTINGENCY 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

51110 
51210 
51240 
51440 
51810 
51823 
51830 
51920 

52010 
52020 
52030 
52040 
52050 
52060 
52080 
52100 
52300 
52370 

ADMINISTRATION 
CLERICAL/TECHNICAL 
DISPATCH EDUCATION INCENTIVE 
DISPATCH PERSONNEL 
DISPATCH OVERTIME 
EMERGENCY PERSONNEL 
TRAINING OVERTIME 
FICA 

ADVERTISING 
POSTAGE 
PROFESSIONAL FEES 
SERVICE CONT & REPAIR 
DUES, CONF .• & EDUCATION 
PRINTING 
TELEPHONE 
ELECTRICITY 
TRAINING, EDUC & EMERG 
DISPATCH CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 
GENERATOR MAINTENANCE 

··4,i111IJ!l'i11iiiiijiffi!lli,_

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10122 

25,430 
38,496 

120 
632,716 
238,017 

496 
2,220 

66,181 

0 

6 
897 

40,593 
5,982 

0 
0 

29,326 
36,886 

732 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

73,600 
14,256 
2,300 

642,931 
131,668 

1,800 
7,080 

66,069 

200 
50 

1,000 
45,524 
22,_084 

200 
25,537 
35,546 
2,600 
3,760 

37,016 75,189 75,189 75,189 75,189 1,589 2.16% 75,189 
11,935 14,256 14,256 14,256 14,256 0 0.00% 14,256 

0 2,300 2,300 2,300 2,300 0 0.00% 2,300 
300,200 647,530 647,530 647,530 647,530 4,599 0.72% 647,530 
51,770 131,668 131,668 131,668 131,668 0 0.00% 131,668 

0 1,800 1,800 1,800 1,800 0 0.00% 1,800 
272 7,080 7,080 7,080 7,080 0 0.00% 7,080 

28,144 68,198 68,198 68,198 68,198 2,129 3.22% 68,198 
lY'lm �-. ·"'. ,, 1""':im ifllllli'l)'llll',..-?�,s;u,m li!"'li'illl1i!l!�l!i!il!,llli1\!l'J,/i.i!:'! .. i',ill!,ilalllij!til il'lil'l1i,rtw� 11 fl,!D�llilil'.11!�!™ @iiiil!.',wi/,lil\lllrt/1! ilil:l,11!11\l)ii<>.[1�111 

0 200 200 200 200 0 0.00% 200 
I 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 950 1900.00% 1,000 

298 1,000 1,000 1,000 1,000 0 0.00% 1,000 
18,046 43,920 43,920 43,920 43,920 (1,604) -3.52% 43,920 

1,347 22,084 22,084 22,084 22,084 0 0.00% 22,084 
0 200 200 200 200 0 0.00% 200 

14,935 28,368 28,368 28,368 28,368 2,831 I 1.09% 28,368 
18,562 0 0 0 0 (35,546 -100.00% O 

0 2,600 2,600 2.600 2,600 0 

250 
1,030 
1,030 

0

600 

250 
1,030 
1,030 

600 

0 0.00% 

30 I J.00% 
430 I 71.67% 

o I 0.00% 
o I o.o� 

:,loQ!�!lilll:il!ll!llil!ll�lfto�I• 

1,999 I 199900.00% 
0 

250 
1,030 
1,030 

600 



 

DEPT/AGENCY: 

ADMINISTRATION 
i51120 INSPECTION 
51210 CLERICALffECHNICAL 
51240 EDUCATION INCENTIVE 
51410 FIRE FIGHTING 

INCENTIVE PROGRAM STIPENDS 
51810 OVERTIME 
51920 FICA 

II !I 

!i •• ,I ,' I 
I' " ,t, !II 

52010 ADVERTISING 
52020 POSTAGE 
52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 
52040 SERV. CONT & REPAIRS 
52050 DUES, CONFERENCES & EDUC. 
52060 PRINTING 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 
52080 TELEPHONE 
52090 HEATING OIL 
52100 ELECTRICITY 
52110 WATER 
52120 SEWER 
52290 PUBLIC SAFETY AWARENESS 
52310 EXAMINATIONS 
52320 RENTAL OF HYDRANTS 
52370 CLOTHING ALLOWANCE 
52371 FIRE POLICE 
52372 INSURANCE 
52373 LP GAS 
52374 CABLE TELEVISION 
52375 LADDER TESTING & REP AIRS 
52376 HYDRAULIC TESTING & REPAIRS 

BREATHING APPARATUS TESTING & 
52377 REPAIRS 
52378 BUILDING MAINTENANCE 
52379 HOSE TESTING AND REPAIRS 
52387 PUMP TESTING SERVICES 
52392 GENERATOR MAINT. & REPAIRS 

!llllllll! , ,; 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10123 FIRE SERVICES 

218 054 219,533 
77 144 76,849 

127 394 131,263 
18,290 20 430 

1,150 926 I 226,023 

185 509 59,518 
129 202 132 622 '.' 

0 200 
292 250 

4 890 3,875 
8,893 18130 

33,335 48,675 

1,250 I 500 

17,549 18,050 
32,309 45,410 
60 638 62 383 

5 557 5 746 
8,378 8,645 
1,387 2500 

10 101 6 000 
450,806 457,200 

19,054 15 500 
429 I 500 

131,966 117810 
2 377 4,375 
6 767 6 060 
5 704 5 825 

388 2 500 

8,456 6,760 
84,133 80000 

8 282 9,825 
3,000 4 000 
3,603 4,225 

1•.· ,, 

71 569 

5,475 

rn 

105 944 
38,880 
58 805 
13,930 

699,267 

123 596 
15,456 

0 
148 

3,675 
8,604 

14 802 
13 

8 649 
39 049 
28,424 

2,081 
2 194 

303 
4,088 

112,702 
4 257 

0 
134,469 

680 
3,615 
2 829 
1,235 

8 609 
60,749 

7 904 
2 475 

0 

302,057 302,057 
78,566 78,566 

142 330 142,330 
20,430 20 430 

1,413 050 I 413,050 
50,000 50,000 
85,647 85,647 

160,046 160,046 
l""I' 

200 200 
250 250 

3 875 3 815 

13,530 13,530 
45,000 45 000 

1 500 1,500 
17 035 17 035 

0 0 
0 0 
0 0 
0 0 

2,500 2,500 
8,000 8,000 

457 200 457,200 
18,250 18,250 

1,500 1,500 
138 564 138,564 

3,500 3 500 
7,500 7,500 
5 825 5,825 
2,500 2,500 

8 760 8,760 
85,000 85 000 

9 825 9,825 
4,000 4 000 
4 225 4,225 

- !/ I 

78,566 78,566 1,717 2.2% 
142 330 142 330 11 067 8.4% 

20,430 20,430 0 0.0% 

1,413 050 1,413 050 187 027 15.3% 

50000 50,000 
85,647 85,647 26,129 43.9% 

160,046 (6 049) 153,997 21,375 16.1% 

5r i' I " 
.,, -

200 200 0 0.0% 
250 250 0 0.0% 

3,875 3,875 0 0.0% 
13 530 13 530 (4 600 -25.4% 
45,000 45,000 (3,675 -7.6% 

0 
1 500 1 500 0 0.0% 

17,035 17,035 11,015 -5.6% 

0 0 (45 410 -100.0% 
0 0 (62,383) -100.0% 
0 0 (5,746) -100.0% 

0 0 18,645) -100.0% 

2,500 2 500 0 0.0% 

8,000 8,000 2,000 33.3% 

457 200 457,200 0 0.0% 

18,250 18,250 2,750 17.7% 

1,500 1,500 0 0.0% 
138 564 138,564 20,754 17.6% 

3,500 3 500 (875) -20.0% 
7 500 7 500 1 440 23.8% 
5 825 5 825 0 0.0% 
2,500 2 500 0 0.0% 

8,760 8,760 2,000 29.6% 

85,000 85 000 5 000 6.3% 
9 825 9 825 0 0.0% 
4 000 4 000 0 0.0% 
4,225 4 225 0 0.0% 

I rWW�'1' f 1r 

78 566 
142,330 

20 430 
1,413,050 

50 000 
85,647 

153,997 
il!llllliii 

200 
250 

3,875 
13,530 
45,000 

0 
I 500 

17,035 
0 
0 
0 
0 

2 500 
8,000 

457 200 
18,250 

1,500 
138 564 

3,500 
7 500 
5 825 
2,500 

8 760 
85,000 

9 825 
4,000 
4 225 

lj!HIJl!il!I 11..,, 

1,717 
IJ,067 

0 
187,027 

50 000 
26,129 
21,375 

,, '" 
j 

0 
0 
0 

14 6001 
(3,675) 

0 
0 

II 015 
(45,410 
162 383) 
15,746) 
18,645) 

0 
2,000 

0 
2,750 

0 
20,754 

1875) 
1 440 

0 
0 

2,000 
5,000 

0 
0 
0 

2.23% 
8.43% 
0.00% 

15.25% 

43.90% 

16.12% 

0.00% 
0.00% 
0.00% 

-25.37% 
-7.55% 

0.00% 

-5.62% 
-100.00%: 
-100.00% 

-100.00% 

-100,00% 
0.00% 

33.33% 
0.00% 

17.74% 

0.00% 
17.62% 

-20.00% 
23.76% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

29.59% 
6.25% 
0.00% 

0.00% 

0.00% 
11!1111!1 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10123 FIRE SERVICES 

-53070 
53090 
53110 
53111 
53112 
53113 
_53114 

54060 
54202 
54218 
54220 
54221 
54222 

4226 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 
OTIIER SUPPLIES 
CONSUMABLE SUPPLIES 
AUTOMOTIVE REPAIRS 
FUELS & LUBRICANTS 
COMPUTER SUPPLIES 
FF - PROTECTIVE CLOTIIING 
FIREFIGHTING SUPPLIES & REPAIRS 
VOLUNTEER RESPONDER AWARDS 
MEDICAL SUPPLIES 

OFFICE EOUIPMENT 

-
-·--

EQUIPMENT- FIRE INVESTIGATIONS 
FIREFIGHTER EQUIPMENT 
RADIO/EMERGENCY LIGHTS 
SERVICE TRUCK EQUIPMENT 
RESCUE TRUCK EOUJPMENT 
EQUIPMENT - --

903 
24533 

4,348 
79,683 
26 152 

3,796 
54,479 

7,668 
990 

--

2,558 
593 

21,150 
10 667 

4,690 
1,897 

�-

2,000 
17,000 
7 500 

88,000 
28 800 

2,500 
78,080 
10,000 
5,000 

--- --

3,000 
500 

30,000 
9 000 

0 
5,000 

12,000 

- --

""',I I!� 

424 1,500 l 5UU 
15,051 18,000 18,000 
2,734 7,500 7,500 

87,053 90,000 90 000 
8,921 18 740 18,740 

950 3,000 3 000 
39,329 78 750 78,750 
7 339 10.000 10,000 

423 5,000 5,000 
10,000 10,000 

i!U{�� I 
' 

I 

114 3,000 3,000 
158 500 500 

11,636 35,000 35,000 
7,604 10000 10,000 

0 0 
7 500 7,500 

22,000 22,000 

r ", f "till(!l!l!11 I 

DUU 1,)UU (500) -25.0% 1,500 (500) -25.00% 
18,000 18 000 1,000 5.9% 18,000 I 000 5.88% 
7,500 7,500 0 0.0% 7 500 0 0.00% 

90 000 90.000 2,000 2.3% 90 000 2 000 2.27% 
18,740 18 740 (10,060) -34.9% 18,740 00 060 -34.93% 

3,000 3,000 500 20.0% 3,000 500 20.00% 
78,750 78 750 670 0.9% 78,750 670 0.86% 

10,000 10,000 0 0.0% 10,000 0 0.00% 
5,000 5,000 0 0.0% 5,000 0 0.00% 

10000 10,000 10,000 10,000 
I I � f'-�

3,000 3 000 0 0.0% 3 000 0 0.00% 

500 500 0 0.0% 500 0 0.00% 
35,000 35,000 5 000 16.7% 35 ODO 5,000 16.67% 

10,000 10,000 1,000 11.1% 10 000 I 000 ll.11% 

0 0 0 0 
7,500 7,500 2,500 50.0% 7 500 2,500 50.00% 

22,000 22 ODO l0000 83.3% 22,000 10,000 83.33% 

.. i I ' '""'"' 

-ill !lffllllMj !j· I 1 -l!m 111:�� 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10129 

51110 ADMINISTRATION 

51210 CLERICAIJTECHNICAL 

51220 CUSTODIAL 

51420 PATROL 

51421 MARINE PATROL 

51430 DETECTIVE 

51435 COMM. SERVICE OFFICERS 

51450 EXTRA DUTY 

51810 OVERTIME 

51820 REPLACEMENT OVERTIME 

51830 TRAINING & EDUCATION 

FRINGE BENEFITS 

" ''I 

I 
11jmmnmr�j I 

52010 ADVERTISING 

52020 POSTAGE 

52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 

52040 SER VICE CONT & REPAIRS 

52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUCATION 

52060 PRINTING 

52080 TELEPHONE 

52090 FUEL OIL 

52100 ELECTRICITY 

52115 WATER& SEWER 

52300 TRAINING & EDUCATION 

52305 OSHA COMPLIANCE 

52370 UNIFORM ALLOWANCE 

52520 CRIMINAL JUSTICE PLANNER 

I Irr.: ·!. ,,,, 

546,583 
270,884 
37,729 

3,209,509 
24,601 

553,154 
120,035 

136,281 
330,723 
92,821 

392,297 
11 .. , 

169 
1,331 

11,258 
34,345 
1,735 
1,200 

32,322 
16,796 
54,046 
4,066 

53,319 
2,489 

78,211 
13,126 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

POLICE COMMISSION 

473,575 
307,282 
43,923 

3,333,709 
23,716 

486,203 
140,053 

145,814 
360,508 
I 13,967 

420,922 
I fl 

j I 

500 
2,000 

11,000 
39,785 
1,735 
1,200 

33,422 
17,566 
52,223 
4,500 

74,200 
5,500 

84,465 
13,520 

-, 

242,922 4%,902 
173,360 300,922 
17,559 46,098 

1,660,000 3,353,956 
20,889 23,350 

260,195 494,794 
53,425 136,857 
3,614 

72,328 145,838 
232,110 360,508 
58,778 137,702 

-223 
202,674 426,138 ' 

ii 

429 500 
531 2,000 

6,989 11,000 
15,213 29,990 

413 1,735 
937 1,200 

13,747 31,798 
5,712 0 

30,339 
1,411 

32,369 85,500 
872 8,700 

72,566 80,665 
13,520 13,520 
.' I ""'1i1ml>ll!'lf.�'l.'!' \I 

496,902 496,902 
300,922 300,922 
46,098 46,098 

3,353,956 3,353,956 
23,350 23,350 

494,794 494,794 
136,857 136,857 

145,838 145,838 
360,508 360,508 
137,702 137,702 

426,138 426,138 
' 

\l\'N '!llllllllliiiiii!\llif�(_ ' l 

500 
2,000 

11,000 
29,990 
1,735 
1 200 

31,798 
0 

85,500 
8,700 

80,665 
13,520 

�•' I 

500 
2,000 

11,000 
29,990 
1,735 
1,200 

31,798 
0 

85,500 
8,700 

80,665 
13,520 

]. po 

! •. 

496,902 
300,922 
46,098 

3,353,956 
23,350 

494,794 . 
136,857 

145,838 
360,508 
137,702 

426,138 
'r r �,,,, ' 

500 
2,000 

11,000 
29,990 
1,735 
1,200 

31,798 
0 

85,500 
8,700 

80,665 
13,520 

l],., 

496,902 23,327 4.93% 496,902 
300,922 (6,360) -2.07% 300,922 
46,098 2 175 4.95% 46,098 

3,353,956 20,247 0.61% 3,353,956 
23,350 (366 -1.54% 23,350 

494,794 8,591 1.77% 494,794 
136,857 (3,196) -2.28% 136,857 

0 0 0 
145,838 24 0.02% 145,838 
360,508 0 0.00% 360,508 
137,702 23 735 20.83% 137,702 

0 0 0 
426,138 5,216 1.24% 426,138 . , I' ·:11,�; !!ll!�-�1i!llillllll!�'llll!!iill!ll!'mlllll��lil/ 

500 0 0.00% 500 ., 
2,000 0 0.00% 2,000 

11,000 0 0.00% 11,000 
29,990 (9 795) -24.62% 29,990 
1,735 0 0.00% 1,735 
1,200 0 0.00% 1,200 

31,798 (1,624) -4.86% 31,798 
0 117 566) -100.00"1,, 0 
0 152 223) -100.00"1,, 0 
0 (4,500 -100.00"/, 0 

85,500 11,300 15.23% 
8,700 3,200 58.18% 

80,665 13,800) -4.50%1 
13,520 0 o.00"/41 

I"""' ., I ''.�Jl!il!li' " 'I I ,, ' I !!_gjf, 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10129 

OFFICE Slll'l'LIES 532 

53020 OTHER SUPPLIES 6,496 

53070 AUTOMOTIVE REPAJRS 31 178 

53090 FUELS & LUBRICANTS 

53100 TIRES 

53150 BUJLDING MAINTENANCE 

53180 POLICE EQUIP. & SUPPLIES 

532IO SELECTIVE ENFORCEMENT 

MARINE PATROL SUPPLIES 

ANIMAL CONTROL SUPPLIES 

CHALLENGE 

TOWN Of WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021.2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

POUCE COMMISSION 

336 

4,262 
11,282 

30,928 

6,001 
19,512 

33891 

1,000 

1,000 
7,000 

32,000 
65,572 

10,325 
0 

39908 

2,500 

4,000 
60,000 

1,000 1,000 I 000 1,000 
7000 7,000 7,000 7,000 

32 000 32,000 32,000 32,000 
65,572 65,572 65,572 65 572 
10,325 10,325 10,325 10,325 

0 0 0 0 

39,908 39,908 39,908 39 908 
2,500 2,500 2,500 2,500 
4,000 4,000 4,000 0 4,000 

60,000 60,000 60,000 30,000 60,000 
0 0 0 

97IO 9,710 



 

DEPT/AGENCY: 

51110 ADMINISTRATION 
51130 ENGINEERING 
51210 CLERICALffECHNICAL 
51510 EQUIPMENT MAINTENANCE 

51520 HIGHWAY MAINTENANCE 
51530 REFUSE COLLECTION & MAINT. 

51540 SNOW REMOVAL 
51810 OVERTIME 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 

51920 FICA 
1�:11�1 ' '

lliiliim"' IIT111l
i

11i'1 
52010 ADVERTISING 

52020 POSTAGE 

52030 PROFESSIONAL FEES 

52040 SERVICE CONT & REPAIRS 

52050 DUES, CONF. & EDUCATION 

52060 PRINTING 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 

52090 FUEL OIL 

52100 ELECTRICITY 

52IIO WATER&SEWER 

52400 MEAL ALLOWANCE 
52410 STREET TREE MAINTENANCE 

52450 SITE WORK 
52460 STREET LIGHTING 

52470 SOLID WASTE DISPOSAL 

52475 RECYCLING PROGRAM 

52500 OPTIONS & RIGHTS OF WAY 

52510 RENTAL OF EQUIPMENT 

52531 LANDFILL CAP MAINTENANCE 

1111 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 
2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10130 PUBLIC WORKS 

287,650 315,404 

2,498 5,735 

135,408 141,937 

373,627 345,771 

822,206 984,189 

426,500 292,464 

34,269 80,000 
56,460 52,000 
10,878 11,005 

154,403 170,480 
If/oil� 11 

' !B 

5,676 6,100 

389 437 

99,858 90,000 

64,103 58,600 

435 1,960 

94 90 

7 50 

29,119 41,100 

32,330 25,400 

7,550 8,100 

1,343 2,600 

180 1,500 

530 500 

101,39I 90,000 

852,829 900,000 

300 250 

0 1,000 

20,465 20,000 

21,800 20,000 
',, 

_.,,_. '" 

157,693 320,501 

669 5,558 
73,061 149,076 

126,793 358,379 
(77,365) 392,823 1,038,247 
77,365 213,467 309,828 

19,583 70,000 
30,209 52,000 
8,637 I 2,355 

72,045 177,171 
., ' 

I 

1,065 0 

126 440 

91,366 90,000 

41,250 60,000 

283 1,657 
100 

40 50 
1,578 0 

19,117 0 

1,819 0 

209 2,223 
550 330 

0 1,210 

20,541 110,000 
883,146 870,000 

0 250 

0 1,000 

5,000 24,307 24,000 

19,450 23,800 
,II I ill " :· .I, 

320,501 

5,558 
149,076 

358,379 

1,038,247 

309,828 
70,000 
52,000 
12,355 

177,171 
' 

0 
440 

90,000 
60,000 
1,657 

100 

50 
0 
0 
0 

2,223 
330 

1,210 
110,000 
870,000 

250 
1,000 

24,000 
23,800 

i ·� ,,

320,501 

5,558 

149,076 

358,379 

1,038,247 

309,828 
70,000 
52,000 
12,355 

177,171 
., ' I 

0 

440 
90,000 
60,000 

1,657 
100 

50 
0 
0 

0 

2,223 
330 

1,210 
110,000 
870,000 

250 

1,000 
24,000 

23,800 

!lit ''"' 

I 

320,501 5,097 1.62% 320,501 
5,558 (177) -3.09% 5,558 

149,076 7,139 5.03% 149,076 
358,379 12,608 3.65% 358,379 

1,038,247 54,058 5.49% 1,038,247 
309,828 17,364 5.94% 309,828 
70,000 00,000 -12.50% 70,000 
52,000 0 0.00% 52,000 
12,355 1,350 12.27% 12,355 

177,171 6,691 3.92% 177,171 
1�-J � J ,I. 

1 1 

0 (6,100) -100.00% 0 
440 3 0.69% 440 

90,000 0 0.00% 90,000 
60,000 1,400 2.39% 60,000 

1,657 (303) -15.46% 1,657 
100 10 11.11% 100 
50 0 0.00% 50 
0 (41,100 -100.00% 0 
0 (25,400 -100.00% 0 
0 (8,100 -100.00% 0 

2,223 (377 -14.50% 2,223 
330 (1,170 -78.00% 330 

1,210 710 142.00% 1,210 
110,000 20,000 22.22% 110,000 
870,000 (30,000 -3.33% 870,000 

250 0 0.00% 250 
1,000 0 0.00% 1,000 

24,000 4,000 20.00% 24,000 
23,800 3,800 19.00% 23,800 

" iioolll� 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

53010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 
53030 OPERATIONAL SUPPLIES 
53050 ENGINEER EQUIP & SUPPLIES 
53070 AUTOMOTIVE REPAIRS 
53090 FUELS & LUBRICANTS 
53100 TIRES 
53250 TRAFFIC CONTROL MATERIALS 
53300 HIGHWAY MATERIALS 

im1111J ,. 

AUTOMOTIVE EQUIPMENT I 
OFFICE FURNITURE l 

TOWN AID ROADS-IMPROVED_i 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10130 

484 
16,408 

75 
140,372 
132,996 
36,834 
33,858 

261,720 
1§11 

23,9631 
01 

168,8081 

PUBLIC WORKS 

325 
17,500 

400 
147,500 
216,700 
35,000 
30,000 

235,000 
:,t, 

17,4121 
2,000 

320,698 
� 

, 'l;m,ml 'I_ 

252 325 
10,263 17,000 

4 300 
145,909 150,000 
33,084 180,000 
16,650 35,000 
13,083 30,000 

(5,000 55,170 225,000 
,. ' 

I 14,1221 71,656 
95 1,500 
,, 

I 

128,306 320,698 
!111(1:1�� ''1_"'' 

325 325 325 0 0.00% 325 
17,000 17,000 17,000 (500) -2.86% 17,000 

300 300 300 (100 -25.00% 300 
150,000 150,000 150,000 2,500 1.69% 150,000 
180,000 180,000 180,000 (36,700) -16.94% 180,000 
35,000 35,000 35,000 0 0.00% 35,000 
30,000 30,000 30,000 0 0.00% 30,000 

225,000 225,000 225,000 (10,000 -4.26% 225,000 
1 11, ii11�m�m�n� � 1�11!'.!i lllal� ' i'll!l!J!li!lllli 'II,,, iii'dl 

71,656 71,656 71,656 54,244 311.53% 1 71,656 
1,500 1,500 1,500 (500 -25.00% I 1,500 

I loaam,1111111 l,IW!ll(l1il!!j, ��wi11;',Z'2llff il'J,� 

I I 

320,698 320,698 320,698 ol 0.00%1 l 320,698 
' 

j 11111lllilll 

lii!li!rii,lllll1!lllll�-l,llll,1!!/UI II I lli.lll!IB 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10132 CONSERVATION OF HEALTH 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10133 PUBLIC HEALTH NURSING SERVICE 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

''!la11 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10135 

INSTRUCTORS T 
OVERTIME 
FICA l 

52010 ADVERTISING 
52020 POSTAGE 
52039 ADA SERVICES 
52040 SVC. CONTRACTS & REPAIRS 
52050 DUES, CONF & EDUCATION 
52090 HEATING FUEL 
52!00 ELECTRICITY 
52115 WATER/SEWER 
52130 PHYSICAL EXAM IN A TIO NS 
52380 PROGRAMS 

' 

,.,,., ' 

53010 OFFICE SUPPLIES 
53020 OTHER SUPPLIES 
53070 AUTO REP AIRS 
53090 FUELS & LUBRICANTS 

I 
ll!!llllllll>llfR-1' 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

SENIOR CITIZEN COMMISSION 

12 308T l7,07tT T 
6391 8911 I 

24,41'!J 29 0301 I 
,!I 

334 344 
1,674 1 802 

0 450 
56,210 49.374 

250 530 
5,414 8 308 

24,968 30,876 
2 008 2,220 
1,023 1,220 

17,198 26,370 

401 673 
2 682 2,611 
\ 030 3 024 
3,497 8,970 

2,556 
356 

I0,675 
�· 

48 
781 

0 
25 143 

0 
2,129 
9 238 

405 
291 

2,247 

46 

1445 
630 
784 

". 'l!fll!lnITTL1Wll!l'n!1' =l"'li'w""'.""1'1•1 

0 1,825 0 
136 120 30 
730 897 51 

-- _L -

217,381 
14,369 

931 
29,233 

344 
1,808 

450 

35,378 
530 

0 
0 
0 

1,520 
26 370 

639 
2 658 
3,088 
6,318 

0 
120 
897 

,, 

217,381 
14.369 

931 
29,233 

' ' 

344 
1,808 

450 

35 378 
530 

0 
0 
0 

1,520 
26,370 
'i 

639 
2 658 
3,088 
6,318 

,., 

0 
120 
897 

l
1mllfo.1 i .,. 

573 
217 381 217,381 217 38) 4,742 
14,369 14 369 14.369 (2,702) 

931 931 931 40 
29233 29.233 29 233 203 

� llill\'"!'111111· t1�1�ri�l «llllilllllllmrll ,1 
., 

344 344 344 0 
1,808 1,808 1 808 6 

450 450 450 0 
35 378 35 378 35 378 (13,996 

530 530 530 0 
0 0 0 (8,3081 
0 0 0 130,876) 
0 0 0 (2 220 

I 520 1,520 1,520 300 
26,370 26,370 26,370 0 

1,,.,rn,;,i,WJOa � I 

, 639 639 639 (34 
2,658 2,658 2,658 47 
3 088 3,088 3 088 64 
6,318 6,318 6,318 (2 652 

�il"'"""""'""'"'':l \ 

0 0 0 (1,825) 
120 120 120 0 

897 897 897 0 
\l 1 I ·I i,illli"1•l•ITTllf"'i 1 e,, I 

8 
" I I lillli 

.. 

0.38% 
2.23% 

-15.83% 

4.49"/4 
0.70% 

1ro:1

0.00% 

0.33% 
0.00% 

-28.35% 
0.00% 

-100.00% 

-IOO.OO% 
-100.00% 

24.59% 
0.00% 

'"" 

-5.05% 
1.80% 
2.12% 

-29.57% 

-I00.00% I 
0.00% 
0.00% l ' 

"illi!llllli 
I 

t 

149,455 
211,381 T 
14 369 I 

931 I 
29,233 I 

344 
I 808 

450 
35,378 

530 
0 
0 
0 

\,520 
26,370 

I 

639 
2 658 
3,088 
6,318 

o I
120 
897j 

4 742 I 
12,702)1 

40 
203 ·1 

0 
6 
0 

(13,996) 
0 

(8,308 
(30,876 

(2,220 
300 

0 

(34) 
47 
64 

(Z.652 

(1 8251 
0 
0 

llllllllllllilll'�i!'lOOl!!l!llllffl'�ll!! 

2.23% 
-15.83% 

4.49% 
0.70% 

0.00% 

0.33% 
0.00% 

-28.35% 

0.00% 

-100,00% 
-100.00% 
-100.00% 

24.59% 

0.00% 
Ji•"••l/1

-5.05% 
1.80% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10136 WATERFORD PUBLIC LIBRARY 

51210 
51220 
51810 
51910 
51920 

52040 
52070 
52090 
52100 
52110 
52120 

ADM!NISTRA TION 113,287 112,435 20,097 
CLERJCALffECHNICAL 630,388 687,309 (16,902 
CUSTODIAL-MAINTENANCE 72,704 85,826 
OVERTIME 5,737 250 
FRINGE BENEFITS 2,876 3,195 (3,195) 
FICA 61,045 68,010 

Ii lllllf)Jrs-� I 
' . I."' ' i ' 

" 

' JI 
•STAGE 347 325 

SERVICE CONT.& REPAIRS 34,459 11,815 
REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 656 667 
FUEL OIL 8,709 10,951 
ELECTRICITY 32,068 34,000 
WATER 932 940 
SEWER 934 940 

,. ·I' 
'',iflll'i1R 11111111111!1!!!1il<J11;.�!II 111!11, h ..• 

mllllm1�11,i1111111ml\'!IIIII� 
OFFICE SUPPLIES 3,999 4,000 

ilil\Jlili!lilllli!IM,I,,,, .• ,' 
,s ,. 

BOOKS/RELATED MATERIAL 45,000 45,000 
' " I 

.r1,1'1'1Mi�'·,. 

J ..... -_j 
�ifilJIG,111 11 
i II " 

I 

1 

1 

132,532 
308,962 

39,989 
0 
0 

32,712 
111111111\

!:tllflfa£! 

128 
7,229 

143 
546 

15,077 
393 
156 

I 

1,5241 

T 

45,0001 
I 
I' 

92,379 92,379 92,379 92,379 92,379 (20,056 -17.84% 92,379 
701,687 701,687 690,286 690,286 690,286 2,977 0.43¾ 690,286 

89,478 89,478 88,138 88,138 88,138 2,312 2.69% 88,138 
7,500 7,500 6,075 6,075 6,075 5,825 2330.00% 6,075 

0 0 0 0 0 (3,195 -100.00% 0 
68,165 68,165 67,082 67,082 67,082 (928 -136% 67,082 

li1!1�"5!i!!lll'9l \'II .... . �g,tlli -111111·11,1,1.m • . ,'_. f'', . 
li'llll,11!!,lilll�:'!'' l�j\Tij1.', .�!/,111111111111&11R�II -L llii11•11w1 

325 325 325 325 325 0 0.00% 325 
700 700 700 700 700 (11,115 -94.08% 700 
690 690 690 690 690 23 3.45% 690 

0 0 0 0 0 (10,951 -100.00% 0 
0 0 0 0 0 (34,000 -100.00% 0 
0 0 0 0 0 (940) -100.00% 0 
0 0 0 0 0 (940 -100.00% 0 "' "ll!i'Jll!il!IWl!ml1lllffifj'iillii 1!!!111 ',1ijfrnw111111!l!'J!i!!�lllllliil;i!I/Jl1ill\]1,11.-wJ:ll11:C .' ·.'JiJi'B,,, � .,.91 

I I 

4,000 I 4,000 4,000 I 4,ooo I 4,000 0 0.00% T 4,000 
4 800 800 20.00% 4,800 

.!Ji ., '.�ii _Jr,IJllrn.;t;
.'

' ., ' : ,l,li11l11111i-inin�ll'. I 

l l I 

45,000 45,000 45,000 45,000 I 45,000 0 0.00%.J. l 45,000 
,,, I -���1 l1l!illl11Jl,l,1Glil)llTIW11\lll!L ''"':"SJ'", 11J V!.!'llk",lgll!W11imau1111111111ffl111•n1111!!11

I I 

r 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10137 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

RECREATION & PARKS COMMISSION 

51110 ADMINISTRATION 190,237 188,698 92,467 193,599 193,599 193,599 193,599 193,599 4,901 2.60% 193,599_ 51210 CLERICAL/fECHNICAL 88,300 85,786 42,810 88,917 88,917 88,917 88,917 88,917 3,131 3,65% 88,917 
51220 CUSTODIAL 16,176 18,868 7,901 19,762 19,762 19,762 19,762 19,762 894 4,74% 19,762, 51610 PARKS MAINTENANCE 353,972 375,951 163,851 383,325 383,325 383,325 383,325 383,325 7,374 1,96% 383,325 
51620 RECREATION PROGRAMS 301,399 342,991 119,592 358,220 358,220 342,991 342,991 342,991 O 0.00% 342,991 
51630 SUMMERJOBS FOR MINORS 13,078 13,623 0 0 0 0 0 O -13,623 -l00.00% o 
51810 OVERTIME 16,792 20,478 8,347 20,376 20,376 20,376 20,376 20,376 -102 -0.50% 20,376_ 
51910 FRINGE BENEFITS 6,720 7,806 3,607 8,171 8,171 8,171 8,171 8,171 365 4.68% 8,171 
51920 FICA 72,838 80,646 32,348 82,036 82,036 80,871 80,871 80,871 225 0.28% so,s11 

�I•�i:i �:1m1!i, 1 1 11 � • • ,. "' i'r-l'I 1! 1:, 111 1 •i I i' • �) 

520IO ADVERTISING 2,443 2,760 O 2,760 2,760 2 760 2,760 2,760 O 0.00% 2,760 
52020 POSTAGE 6,837 6,100 2,093 6,550 6,550 6,100 6,100 6,IOO O 0.00"/o 6,100 
52040 SERVICE CONTRACTS & REPAIRS 58,365 50,282 24,641 36,606 36,606 36,606 36,606 36,606 -13,676 -27.20"/o 36,606 
52050 DUES, CONF., & EDUCATION 1,927 3,650 907 3,650 3 650 3,650 3,650 3 650 0 0.00"/o 3,650 
52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE O 150 150 150 150 150 150 150 0 0.00"/o 150 
52080 TELEPHONE 4,450 2.848 1,976 2,848 2,848 2,848 2,848 2,848 0 0.00"/o 2,848 
52206 WATERFORD WEEK SUBSIDY 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 4,750 0 0.00% 4,750 
52380 PROGRAMS 34,957 42,387 3,077 42,387 42,387 42,387 42,387 42,387 O 0.00% 42,387 
52390 CO-SPONSORED PROGRAMS 41,549 41,549 29,606 39,294 39,294 39,294 39,294 39,294 -2,255 -5.43% 39,294 
52420 MAINTENANCE OF PROPERTY 141,356 147,523 77,947 106,335 106,335 106,335 81,286 81,286 -66,237 -44.90% 81,286 
52110 WATER 4,420 4,420 4,420 4,420 
52120 SEWER 2,775 2,775 2,775 2,775 
52100 ELECTRICITY 11,163 11,163 11,163 11,163 
52090 HEAT(PROPANE/OIL/GAS) 6,691 6,691 6,691 6,691 

il!Jlfi1nll!!}lllililllllilllra11-1foJ!i�I - ' ,I 1w,![ I ' I ' ll?"" 

OFFICE SUPPLIES 1,6131 1,3631 709 1,600 1,600 1,363 1,363 1,363 o 0.00% 1,363 
O11-ffiRSUPPLIES 26,3081 30,6361 8,429 30,787 30,787 30,636 30,636 30,636 0 0.00% 30,636 
MAINTENANCE OF VEHICLES 28,907 20,750 9,037 30,750 30,750 20,750 20,750 20,750 0 0.00% 20,750 
FUELS & LUBRICANTS 15,694 20,195 5,613 12,693 12,693 12,693 12,693 12,693 -7,502 -37.15% 12,693 

' ! ! 1 _ I ,,p •M,:.M;,;;:, 1 ' '11 ·' ,II'/' ' ·• · " P IJl/11ii111rn1111111i1f · l !Ill ,. ll

I I , .. Illlill 
I I I 

UIPMENT 9,9751 l,825J O 12,000l _ _lb_OOO 1,825 l,SE,- __ J __ 1,82U O 0.00%/ I 1,825 

- I 

' 



155862 
INew 

55823 

55824 
55831 
55833 
55843 
55844 

55845 

55864 
55837 
55858 
55859 
55846 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

' 

155812 
[NEW 

NEW 

NEW 

NEW 
NEW 

NEW 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2022. 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

10138 CURRENT YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

HARDWARE REFRESH I 22,233 0 
PURE ARRAY I 74,000 
CISCO MERAK! I 
MICROSOFT EMAIL SYSTEM 
SOFTWARE WITH WINDOW 

!SERVER I I I 
M ICROSOFT WINDOWS 
SERVER/EXCHANGE2016 
(PHYSICAL SERVER FOR EMAIL) 
REC TRAC SOFTWARE 
SAN (STORAGE AREA NETWORK) 
SYSLOG SERVER 
BACKUP SYSTEM 
FD NETWORK.ED COMPUTER, 

IPHONE,WIFI 95,976 I I 
' 

BODY CAMERAS 98,250 
INFRARED CAMERAS IN CARS 14,812 14 350 
ACCIDENT INVESTIGATION 13,391 
ARCIDTECTURAL PLANS 
POLICY DIRECTIVE REV AMP 30,000 
CYBER CRIME TAKS FORCE 
EQUIPMENT 
TRAFFIC MESSAGEBOARDS 
IMPOUND YARD IMPROVEMENTS 
MARINE OUTBOARD MOTORS 
LICENSE PLATE READERS 

I 
II 

FIRE SERVICES-SCBA UPGRADE 
I I I PROGRAM 

EQUIPMENT REPLACEMENT PLAN l l l 

I JORDAN - WINDOW REPLACEMENT I I I 
QUAKER HILL - EMERGENCY 
GENERATOR 

QUAKER HILL - REAR PARKING LOT 
QUAKER HILL ROOF PROJECT 

jGOSHEN BUNKROOMRENOVATIONS I I I 

0.00% 
I !]!!!!°jli!t:l.'mJJllipplJi 

:i!St:l!il i!l'.1:;t1I1:i5!'!':ri�i'i I 
1liil:l::�1 11:111.'i!i!•-• I 

0 t:!r:l�·.lt�ilfll:i�I�_� 0 
74,000 •§:ll'.•J",.ii�£�'1l:11l!ll 0 

f,:'!�1.'��J.�,-� 0 

I I I l[!'(Jll!if l!ll1!1i;:i; ·li11,!iiJ�t�.l!L__ 0 

I :1�:l'•�l!i1lli 1!!i! 0 
11-i�V:l:ii;i,l�ilil:ilil 0 
l1"t,;-..f/M;Hi 0 
�1tlM�:'1l

1il'J!�.1iii.•1 0 
i�'i1ilifaw1ii-i�C"i11! 0 

I I I ffiJ��11:;t;l!!l.r�il':l:·!li!I 0 

110,100 !';,,,��f.l1il!lii!!;t!!/.a�-:: 0 
14,350 t':\l;\!}ff!Il;-Q-}J.�j1j 0 

!1.1.!l::t,i"l!l-i,1.ll!-'-'!I' 0 
![jiii&,'VID'l,jll�-� 0 
1:,■.IB'mlf..1'1!,15 0 

11,000 11,000 11,000 l,!tl:o:,,"!lllffl/,r.i��illoo;11� 0 
28,000 28,000 28,000 i•;;;i!if,Q�)li_l/;!tl.lUlll 0 
28,500 28,500 28,500 f:<li!!•iii:ti�/!'itn 0 
38,500 38,500 38,500 1!111:,!!111:tliil\!'i�ifilt 0 
27,120 27,120 21,120 1:11liii:IIM� 0 

I I I u 10•1
1!!•"~-•·N • 11 ii: :ii, 1.rj,,�,r..-..:1111 0 

l l l Jl'limlii;�1l[ 0 

I I I m11�l.¾f.:!IJ!l�Mllij11@Ji�ffl:l,:11 0 

l��lii1!,i!Ji:,11{irl 0 

llliilil\11
1

0 
--

�lP��iil1'.l!f!ti 0 

I I I 0 (1:��1ii11iR:\IT�il 
-----"I 



NEW 
NEW 

NEW 

NEW 
55847 

55865 

NEW 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

NEW 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

GOSHEN APPARATUS FLOOR 
DRAINAGE 
OSWEGATCHIE CASCADE SYSTEM 

I GOSHEN - AIR CONDITIONING SYSTEM 

COHANZJE EMERGENCY GENERATOR 
COHANZIE - ROOF REPLACEMENT 0 

Summer Street/Concrete Sidewalk 
David Street/Concrete Sidewalk 

Cross Road/ Asphalt 

Federal Grant Funds 
"-", ' 

I 1' 

claim 
Goshen-S inmaker-C Club Reclaim 

Oil Mill (Reclaim 
Section A, Area l(P) - (Olive, Vivian Ct, 

Orient, Louse, Monroe} 
Section A, Area I (P) & Areas 2 -

(Norman, Summer, David, William, 
Wild Rose Ave, Wild Rose Pl and 

Avenue A} I I I 
Section B, Area 8 - (Milstone Rd West, 
Summer Rest, Larson, Hanson, George 

&Allen} I I I 
Section B, Area 6 -(Wood, Bishop & 

Mago Blvd) 

Section C, Area I - (Perry, Linda, Alice, 
Oak

,_
Be , Lee, Anita & Division 
Gardiner Wood Road 

0 
0 

25,000 25,000 25,000 0 

0 
0 60,000 60,000 60,000 0 

0 

Q_ 
0 
0 

0 
0 
0 

80,100 80,100 80,100 0 
42,300 42,300 42,300 0 
33,420 33,420 33,420 0 
43,680 43,680 43,680 0 
69,800 69,800 69,800 0 

304,000 304,000 304,ooo e:.11 :J111;11'l'l',&1lI?.ol!1llQOill 0 

0 01 o l��r��,!��'iJ;�lllr�����id�:N,O�I Q_ 
0 
0 
0 
0 

334,473 334,473 I 334,473 J!,;,,,il;il!,'l�)@.\l'h'ili7$.il 0 

I I I r[!�t@;�r����s;;;;B'ill�I 0 

I I I 11�!!?�!4.-l1fff;IDl(lµ:I 0 

0 

0 
0 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

NEW 

55866 

NEW 
55868 

55867 
55850 

55860 

55829 
55834 

55869 
55851 
55852 
57857 

NEW 

NEW 

NEW 
NEW 
55853 

NEW 

NEW 
NEW 
55871 

55821 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2022 - 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CIP) 

10138 CURRENT YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

l�l •:, -!ll!JI- ..,; 
'_,... � - -·· 

Transfer Stateion Scale & Scale House 
BLOOMINGDALE SOUTH-MILL & 

)PAVE I I 131,300 I 
MILLSTONE EAST 
NEIGHBORHOOD 
GALLOWS LANE- Reclaim/Pave 134,080 
REMOVE UNDERGROUND UST-
Cohanzie Fire 299,000 
CROSS RD 
V AUXHALL ST. (Hunts Brook Mill & 

!Pave 251,237 ---- ____L 

¥:1 

POLICE & PUBLIC SAFETY HV AC 
JSTUDIES 

jTOWN HALL FIRE SYSTEM 

TOWN HALL PARKING LOT LIGHTS 
ADA IMPROVEMENTS YSB/PD 80,700 
TOWN HALL BATHROOMS 25,000 
CIVI TRJANGLE UPGRADES 0 

JUNDERGROUND TANK REPLACMENT 
AC UNIT REPLACEMENT AT 

JEMERGENCY RADIO SITES 
EUGENE O'NEILL MANSION ROOF 

)REPLACEMENT 
SW SCHOOL DEMOLITION 
JAUDITORIUM SEATING UPGRADE 

CCTV Camera & Lateral Launchin System 
CONTROL PANEL RETRO-FIT (GORMAN 
RUPP STATION) 
ROOF & SIDING REPLACEMENT 
EVERGREEN PUMP STATION 375,000 
IN-LINE WASTEWATER SOLIDS 
GRINDERS 85,000 

215,813 

106,548 

131,300 I I 

134,080 

299,000 

_l_ _l_ 

80,700 
25,000 

150,000 

250,000 

60,500 

35,000 

--- - - ----- ---

120,000 

375,000 

85,000 0 

215,813 

106,548 

I 

I 

150,000 

250,000 J 

60,500 I 

35,ooo I 

I 

120,000 I 

30,000 
50,000 

0 

215,813 

;lltL;_ ·�,fll1
:.:: 

106.548 11:r.-i 1mi111 

Jl'.iliJ�r:��!,1\��i:£1::!l!i'I 

!ll:ill11l\�--j.,i;;1 

fi.\ll�J��!ali1G:.; 

i;1J�iir11,: 1li'�l'i'ii(i1l:1•i \f�� 
IHI! 1i1·��1,,��;1�:Irrtif 

flil�lliJl{1!';1!�1!i1ii1ii�i&fYI 

11),1;;1,,rliaii.;ii;-�Jit�ill 
ii'ii';lll,iiJi/iiif:i 

Hlilii::lillll 
•,}s:il'l',ar.t•a:;ii�i 
!i-lllE!Dlfl::.:,�

150,000 i!i1':1·iii!!ll!!'i.llm!![ti�

250,000 J�"J/!!!!''.l!!i���-Q\1ll!Q.,I 

60,500 11:1Hrim4'£"ga,:�onu 

35,ooo IRJl:11: .. lli!!l!t®lllil 
Klli�l!:l[f=�--i 
mi,:1

1
J11tl,;•�w,::.1

120,000 U" iiji1ll!li!l'.!'l���or99n31 

30,000 
50,000 

0 isi;!t!YL���-Jf§i1J��(iffl,1� 

0 

0 
0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 

0 
0 

0 
0 
0 
0 

0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 

0 
0 
0 

0 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

NEW 

NEW 

NEW 

NEW 

55822 

55838 

55&20 

·55854 

55855 
55856 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2022 . 2026 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PLAN (CJP) 

10138 CURRENT YEAR CAPITAL IMPROVEMENTS 

VETERAN'S FIELD IRRIGATION 
VETERAN'S FIELD LIGHT 

REPLACEMENT 

EQUIPMENT STORAGE PLAN 

VETERAN'S GARAGE ADDmON PLAN 

MAGO POINT LIGHT REPLACEMENT 

LEARY PARK IRRIGATION 

CHILDREN'S PLAYGROUND EQUIP, 
GRANT & CNR FUNDS 

FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROAD 
REPAIR - EUGENE O'NEILL 

LEARY BASKETBALL COURT REBUILD 
TOWN HALL BASKETBALL COURT 
REPAIR 

DOG PARK FENCE REPLACEMENT 16,200 

l:IlGH SCHOOLFIELDENHANCEMENTS 

TRANSFER OUT 
FEDERAIJSTATE GRANTS 0 

Rooe Ferry Road Sidewalk 

EUGENE O'NEIL MASNIONS ROOF CO. 
FUNDING 

CONTRIBUTED G!Fr GRANT (REC & 

PARK) CHILDREN'S PLAYGROUND 

EQUIPMENT 

0 

0 
21,000 21,000 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 0 0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

(304,000 (304,000 (304,000) 

(25,000) (25,000) (25,000) 

(36,000 00 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

56025 
56026 
56027 
56028 
56029 
56032 
56033 
56034 
56035 
56036 
56037 
56038 
56039 
56040 
56041 
56042 
56043 
56044 
56045 

OSWEGATCIIlE PRINCIPAL 
OSWEGATCIIlE INTEREST 
GREAT NECK BOND PRINCIPAL 
GREAT NECK BOND INTEREST 
lilGHSCHOOLBONDPRINCIPAL 
lilGH SCHOOL BOND INTEREST 
SCHOOLS ISSUE OF 2014 PRINCIPAL 
SCHOOLS ISSUE OF 2014 INTEREST 
2014 BOND REFUNDING-PRINCIPAL 
2014 BOND REFUNDING -INTEREST 
2017 BOND REFUNDING -PRINCIPAL 
2017 BOND REFUNDING- INTEREST 
2019 BOND REFUNDING PRINCIPAL 
2019 BOND REFUNDING INTEREST 
2019 BAN'S MUNI COMP $!OM ISSUE 
2020 MUNICIPAL COMPLEX -PRINCIPAL 
2020 MUNICIPAL COMPLEX - INTEREST 
2020 BOND REFUNDING -PRINCIPAL 
2020 BOND REFUNDING -INTEREST 

ljl!H!llfflll 

TOWN OFWATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10139 DEBT SERVICE 

735,000 735,0001 
33,075 9,190 

950,000 0 
171,438 0 

I 550,000 1,755,000 
658,795 592,700 
750,000 750,000 
459,469 429,470 
830,000 840,000 
282,025 240,280 
330,000 325.000 
640,100 630,300 

655,000 
442,470 

0 224,380 

iilM2l!iJil! 

I 735,000 
9,188 

1,755,000 1,755,000 
313,898 35,100 

815,000 
214,734 57,950 
840,000 835,000 
130,638 206,750 
325,000 1,050,000 
317,575 609,650 
655,000 700,000 
245,844 375,750 
224,375 0 

685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 

I 
' 

1,755,000 
35,100 

815,000 
57,950 

835,000 
206,750 

1,050,000 
609,650 
700,000 
375,750 

0 
685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 

1,755,000 
35,100 

815,000 
57,950 

835,000 
206,750 

1,050,000 
609,650 
700,000 
375,750 

0 
685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 

1,755,000 
35,100 

815,000 
57,950 

835,000 
206,750 

1,050,000 
609,650 
700,000 
375,750 

0 
685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 

I ,,., .. jj!J 

1,755,000 
35,IO0 

815.000 
57,950 

835 000 
206,750 

1,050,000 
609,650 
700,000 
375,750 

0 
685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 

0 
l1m11mmmtt1m1111j l 

0 0.00% 
(557,600 -94.08% 

65,000 8.67% 

/371,520 -86.51% 

(5,000 -0.60% 
(33,530 -13.95% 

725,000 223.08% 

(20,650) -3.28% 

45,000 6.87% 
(66,720) -15.08% 

(224,380 -100.000/o 

685,000 #DN/0! 
457,975 #DN/01 

0 #DN/0! 
351,458 #DN/0! 

11111™!11.111!�!rJ, 

1,755,000 
35,100 

815,000 
57,950 

835,000 
206,750 

1,050,000 
609,650 
700,000 
375,750 

0 
685,000 
457,975 

0 
351,458 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
•!ii 

NEW 
NEW 
�-,,·, 

57848 

57837 
57826 
55847 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

57794 
1'1' 

57796 
57797 

57798 

57854 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

; � -- � - = 

FIBER UPGRADE 

fJtlffll.ll�lffi.1 

"'"™I , 

PHONE SYSTEM UPGRADE (SOFIW ARE & 
HARDWARE) 
SWITCHES 
UPS UPGRADES 
TOWN WIDE CAMERA SYSTEM 

� 

IN-CAR VIDEO 
LOCKER ROOM LOCKERS 

I LIBRARY HV AC UPGRADE 
111111 l 

HYDRALAULIC EQUIPMENT UPGRADE 
FIRE DEPT- HYDRAULIC EQUIPMENT 
COHANZIE- ROOF REPLACEMENT 
GOSHEN- HALL FLOOR REPLACEMENT 
NEW FIRE HOUSE BUILDING 
JORDAN WINDOW REPLACEMENT 

Hi 

ij!/1,l 

��-il!il,11• 
'MOBILE & PORTABLE RADIO REPLACEMENT 
PROGRAM 

fflffll!lliliil!I,, 

TENNIS COURT SURFACE REPAIRS (to be 
offset with federal grant funds) 
BABE RUTH BACKSTOP REPLACEMENT 

CHILDREN'S PLAYGROUND CIVIC TRIANGLE 
1 FUNDING OFFSET OF $11,000 AVAILABLE 
WATERFORD BEACH PARK IMPROVEMENTS 
(AMPHITHEATER) 
STENGER FARM PARK RESTROOMS (to be 
offset with federal grant funds 

VETERANS FIELD LIGHT REPLACEMENT 

I 

I 

I 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2022-2026 CIP 

10140 TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING EXPENDITURE FU� 

150,000 150,000 
1·!ffln;:!lt1ail!" 

1',;-, 

14,000 14,000 14,000 14 000 

.16,000 16,000 
22,500 22,500 
12 500 12 500 

110,000 110,000 

1"'11 'IIU11,l1ra;;l1,1Jffl1f .,L 

200,000 200,000 345,600 

100,000 100,000 I I I I 

I I I o I I 0 

273,810 273,810 I I I 
:lli\1!11'"1 

,,, 
I 

I I I 
I I I 

I 150,000 I 150,000 I 30,000 I I 30,000 I 

14,000 ''i;ii�l1\JIJP.J!Olll� 14,ooo I 

16,000 llilliMfl 16,000 I 
22 500 �ii'..;'!i;,�!ilo:i$�.lmc- 22,500 

1�_:,l';',,l'!l,1,:1:ili:l!itl, 
;:,·;1�l

1

�i�IIJ!!:!lj1 l 

l'l¾��,ri'l:�I I 

•'.,l'P.:i��;;:.-��-il•�>i•iii 
I i· i�i:Ji:i:i•�tw:ta:ta(ll 

�--,, 
��.;;ii. 

30,000 llfi/l!ll!Il:ll;mf&.iii] 30,000 I 

VETERANS GARAGJ,_ADDITIONS PLAN 
ljnijllJlllll\ll,---1/ffi-ll!Ri!t®'lli llil11llll!llli�llil!l®lJJlilllllllllail!mlli11i·!ffl�iif�.0;®.o]fil1Mlillm�ll.li!l1l 

11111�:ll�l!IIIIHI
57855 REDESIGN/RECONSTRUCT BRAMAN 1 T 263,410 T 263,410 T T l l 1��1!1 1 
57743 JORDAN COVE BRIDGE REPLACEMENT 
57785 OIL MlLL RD CULVERT 
57800 GALLUP LANE RECLAIM/REPAVE 
57695 MUNICIPAL COMPLEX RENOVATIONS 

I I 14,ooo I ol 0.00% 

I I 16.000 I 16,000 l #DIV/0! 

lllllllDl,llmilll•'"!'""""'"""'""'"lfflll 
l l 

T l o l ooo,oooi1 -100.00% 

0 (273,810) -100.00% 
'I\ -,�,-

#DIV/01 I I 30,000 I (120,000)1 -80.00% 

l T o l (263,470>1 -100.00% 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2022-2026 CIP 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10140 TRANSFERS TO CAPITAL AND NON-RECURRING EXPENDITURE FU1' 

157814 
57831 

[57832 

157815 
NEW 
IS 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

NEW 

NEW 

NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

57802 
57816 

57817 

NEW 
57608 
57780 
57804 
57805 
57818 
57819 
57830 
57839 
NEW 
57857 

[NEW 

57840 

NEW 

57840 

57806 
NEW 
57841 

MILL & REPAVE RICHARDS GROVE ROAD 
MILL& PAVE VAUXHALL EXT 
LED STREETLIGHT CONVERSION 
REDESIGN/RECONSTRUCT GARDINERS 
WOOD ROAD (DESIGN/PERMITTING)\ 
Millstone East Neighborhood 

- . \ ',t 

,, 

FARGO LANE/DOUGLASS HILL TANK REHAB 
CRYSTAL MALL EMERGENCY POWER 
REPLACE MARILYN ROAD EJECTORS 
CROSS ROAD PS PARTIAL UPGRADE 
STONEY BROOK PS PARTIAL UPGRADE 
PARTIAL UPDGRADE FOR OTHER 17 
STATIONS 
INFLOW & INFILTRATION MITIGATION & 
CONTROL 
PLEASURE BEACH WATER LINE 
REPLACMENT 
BARLETT CORNER PS DECOMMISSION 

FORCE MAIN AIR RELEASE VALVES-
EVALUATE & REPLACE 
OLD NORWICH PS (STATION REHAB\ 
WASTEWATER PUMP STATIONS -FLOOD 
PROTECTION 

I I 

I 

I I I 
,,, .. ," I I' 

0 
0 

100,000 I 100,000 

, ,,�11:ili lliitml!Jll!llf,� 
I 

�
'11'!!..,,iiiiiiiil 

I ,,.,-,�,ii, 
I iill■,1.i�-!!1.;,:

o I Ii.-��,,�,,: 

0 

0 0 
I I I I 

==�fffil!r�-jlllfll1ll••1IWIRl!ll111 
MAGO POINT WA YFINDING SIGNS 
TOWN HALL YSB/WINDOWS & DOORS 
TOWN HALLIYSB HVAC 
YSB HVAC 
YSB FLOORING 
TOWN HALL FLOORING 
YSB ROOF REPLACEMENT 
THAMES RIVER MARINA DOCK 
TOWN HALL EMERGENCY EGRESS 
JORDAN VILLAGE SIDEWALKS I I 100,000 I 
CIVIC TRIANGLE UPGRADES I I 50 000 I 
NEVINS COTTAGE REPAIRS I I I 
LIBRARY HV AC UPGRADE 

PLAN OF CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT 

TOWN HALL & YSB ELEVATOR UPGRADE 

PLAN OF CONSERVATION DEVELOPMENT 
N64MiNiiWi4!11W!!f 

CLMS ENTRANCE MODIFICATION 
SECURITY 

CLMS HEAT PUMP REPLACEMENT 
BUS LOT OFFICE 

100,000 
50 000 

I 150,000 I I ISO 000 I 1 so ooo II ·-·-,rni�,®lil 
•.. ·-

100,000 I I 

•�•u1�1r•�ii-�!lj!B�111:mo;,IJ�•-•ii-•1umF�l111 
· �,!!;!,111:111ii1

!ii , 

0 0 
75 000 75,000 75,000 'I 111!!',111Jl\!i:�,p!!)QO� 75 000 

lr•••.:.�1�,, 

I 100,000 I 100,000 I #DJV/01 

75,000 75,000 



TOWN OF WATERFORD 
GENERAL FUND 

2022-2026 CIP 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10140 TRANSFERS TO CA PIT AL AND NON-RECURRING EXPENDITURE FU� 

55857 
57820 
57821 
57822 
57823 
NEW 
NEW 
NEW 

CHARRIOT SCRUBBERS 
SCHOOL SECURITY 
HIGH SCHOOL FIELD 

o IFLOORING/BLEACHERS 
WHS - TIJRF FIELD AND TRACK oJ 
CLMS GLYCOL SYSTEM REPLACEMENT 
IT LEARNING BOARDS-END OF LIFE 200,000 I 
IT SECURITY DVR CAMERAS 01 
BOE MUNIS IMPLEMENTATION OJ 
UPGRADE DISTRICT PHONE SYSTEM 
IT TV STUDIO SYSTEMS 0 

lll■-11111 '. 
I I I 

ijL
�1lllil!l!II 

UNDESIGNATED FUND BALANCE 
CT PUBLIC LIBRARY CONSTRUCTION 
GRANT 

I 0 
l 0 

I 200.000 I 
I 0 

l 0 

I I 
jllillllMif"":'a�!ffll!j, 

200,000 l;'!'l'!i/;i;i,1'PJ2P:()!OJJP11 200,000 I I I 2000001 200,000 

jmli•l,li!''�i'!)ll_i!!Jlzg�QqO; , . \Ill 
lfflil!ill!liil!.!i!li 1 !il!11:!l'irl!r' ·�I I 

· .. ; 111,11,:,1.,1;,�dl'®oJ1!11111JBl'�l!!l�Ul.!!l8[ li!iilLL®llll!ffli•«i�i 

-;uiffii&liii&"'isii.mil,,l�fillilllll!tmiliiiillW..i & iillmlmili111111111ibilll!fll!11111m1t11llil!!milllllillli1i1!111m11W:
:1
=�=�1lJ:;:;:;r::LJ. :: · ,J:I-J�:::1=



DEPT/AGENCY: 10141 FLOOD & EROSION CONTROL BD. 

760 
58 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

760 
58 

f!IIU IIIIIl!llll!)lll�fttl!I 

300 300 300 
25 25 25 

950 950 950 
20 20 20 

I 
1 1 

25J 25J 25 

3001 300 
257 25 

9501 950 
20I 20 

111!!li!'"ll""'''''™11,""l!�i' l,!l!ii!l!II ,i:i1' 
l 
I 

251 25 

o1 
ol 
01 
ol 

I 
I 

ol 
il.llm!� 

0.00%1 
0.00%1 
0.00%1 
0.00%I 

,!.111111 

I 
0.00%I 

I 
I 
I 

____L 

1 

300 
25 

950 
20 

25 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10143 ETHICS COMMISSION 

0 0 

0 0 

0 0 

150 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

ll\1,i\'lt; J'.11�111iilll1l�l ,,,',ii;" ii,llil:!l,iJl'iilffll ill/il;llt [6! 1:111J,IJll\'lllli 1jj!1 

600 

50 

�l:IH£ll1

0 

150 150 

50 



DEPT/AGENCY: 

CAL 

52010 
52020 
52030 PROFBSSIONAL FEBS 

52040 SERVICE CONT.&, REPAIR 

52050 DUES CONF. &, EDUCATION 

52070 REIMBURSABLE EXPENSE 

52300 TRAININO 

52570 EMPLOYEE ASSIST. PROGRAM 

53 020 
53140 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

10145 HUMAN RESOURCES DEPARTMENT 

128,327 127 468 

38 545 58,542 

0 

12 140 14,23 0 

, I' I, 

5,840 4,200 

808 824 

53,177 54,019 

2.063 2,208 
420 1,201 

200 
500 

l,991 

650 
200 

,, 

 

125,548 
60,639 

0 
6 844 14,243 

I 

1,411 4,000 
311 832 

17,620 54,000 
800 1,710 
219 1,201 

150 
500 

1991 

751 650 
200 

1;!5,548 125 548 125 548 125,548 
60,639 60 639 60639 60,639 

0 0 0 0 

14,243 14 243 14,243 14,243 
Ii! ' .�' 

4 000 4,000 4,000 200 -4.76% 4000 
832 832 832 8 0.97% 832 

54,000 54,000 54,000 19 -0.04% 54,000 
1,710 1,710 1,710 498 -22.55% 1,710 
1,201 1,201 l,201 0 0.00% 1,201 

150 150 150 50 -25.00% 150 
500 500 500 0 0.00% 500 

I 91 1,991 1,991 0 0.00% 1991 

650 650 650 0 0.00% 650 
200 200 200 0 0.00%" 200 ·

,! 



2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

DEPT/AGENCY: 10147 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

INFORMATION TECHNOLOGY 



DEPT/AGENCY: 10160 

TOWN OF WATERFORD 

GENERAL FUND 

2021-2022 PROPOSED BUDGET 

EDUCATION 

(397,576 

Al 

273,156 

!!JIIW�!i 
0.54% 
� 

rm 




